Contents

9770.3 – Cook nlet	2
9770.3.1 – Alexander Creek	5
9770.3.2 – Anchor Point	7
9770.3.3 – Anchorage/Municipality of Anchorage	8
9770.3.4 – Big Lake	
9770.3.5 – Butte	13
9770.3.6 - Chickaloon	15
9770.3.7 – Chugiak	18
9770.3.8 – Clam Gulch	20
9770.3.9 – Cohoe	21
9770.3.10 – Cooper Landing	22
9770.3.11 – Crown Point	24
9770.3.12 – Curry	25
9770.3.13 – Eagle River	26
9770.3.14 – Eklutna	29
9770.3.15 – Fox River	31
9770.3.16 – Fritz Creek	32
9770.3.17 – Funny River	33
9770.3.18 – Girdwood	
9770.3.19 – Halibut Cove	36
9770.3.20 – Happy Valley	
9770.3.21 – City of Homer	39
9770.3.22 – Hope	43
9770.3.23 – Houston	44
9770.3.24 – Jakolof Bay	46
9770.3.25 – Kachemak	48
9770.3.26 – Kalifornsky	49
9770.3.27 – Kasilof	51
9770.3.28 – City of Kenai	53
9770.3.29 – Kenai Peninsula Borough	56

9770.3.30 – Knik-Fairview	58
9770.3.31 – Lazy Mountain	60
9770.3.32 – Matanuska-Susitna Borough	62
9770.3.33 – Meadow Lakes	65
9770.3.34 – Moose Pass	67
9770.3.35 – Nanwalek	68
9770.3.36 – Nikiski	70
9970.3.37 – Nikolaevsk	72
9970.3.38 – Ninilchik	75
9770.3.39 – Palmer	77
9770.3.40 – Port Graham	79
9770.3.41 - Primrose	82
9770.3.42 - Ridgeway	83
9770.3.43 - Salamatof	84
9770.3.44 - Seldovia	86
9770.3.45 - Seward	88
9770.3.46 - Skwentna	91
9970.3.47 - Soldotna	93
9770.3.48 - Sterling	95
9770.3.49 – Sutton-Alpine	97
9970.3.50 - Talkeetna	100
9970.3.51 – Trapper Creek	102
9970.3.52 – Tyonek	104
9970.3.53 - Wasilla	106
9770.3.54 - Whittier	108
9770 3 55 - Willow	111

9770.3 - Cook Inlet

The Cook Inlet Geographic Zone encompasses the Matanuska-Susitna Borough, the Municipality of Anchorage, and the Kenai Peninsula Borough. Regional organizations exist for all three political subdivisions. Most major organizations are listed below.

Boroughs

Borough	Organization	Phone
Municipality of Anchorage Borough	Municipal Clerk	343-4311
Multicipality of Afficiolage Borough	Emergency Management	343-1401
Kongi Doningula Paraugh	Borough Office	262-4441
Kenai Peninsula Borough	Emergency Management	262-4910
	Borough Office	861-7801
Matanuska / Susitna Borough	Department of Emergency	861-8000
	Services	001-0000

Regional Native Corporations

CORPORATIONS	ADDRESS	PHONE	FAX	WEBSITE
Chugach Alaska Corporation Region includes southern Kenai Peninsula	3800 Centerpoint Drive, Suite 1200 Anchorage, Alaska 99503	563- 8866	563- 8402	http://www.chugach.com
Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI) Region includes remainder of Cook Inlet Subarea	725 E. Fireweed Lane, Suite 800, Anchorage, AK 99503	274- 8638	274- 8836	http://www.ciri.com/

School Districts

ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	FAX	WEBSITE
Anchorage School District	5530 East Northern Lights Blvd, Anchorage, AK 99504	742- 4000	742- 4318	http://www.asd.k12.ak.us
Chugach Schools (Whittier School)	9312 Vanguard Dr., #100, Anchorage, AK 99507	522- 7400	522- 3399	http://www.chugachschools.com/
Kenai Peninsula School District	148 N. Binkley St., Soldotna, AK 99669	714- 8888	262- 9645	http://www.kpbsd.k12.ak.us
Matanuska- Susitna School District	501 N Gulkana St Palmer, AK 99645	746- 9255	761- 4076	http://www.matsuk12.us

Regional Economic Development

ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	FAX	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Anchorage Convention & Visitors Bureau	524 West 4th Ave., Anchorage, AK 99501	276- 4118	278- 5559	http://www.anchorage.net

Anchorage Economic Development Corporation	510 L Street, Suite 603 Anchorage, AK 99501	258- 3700	258- 6646	http://aedcweb.com
Kenai Peninsula Economic Development District	14896 Kenai Spur Hwy, Kenai, AK 99611	283- 3335	283- 3913	http://www.kpedd.org
Kenai Peninsula Tourism Marketing Council	35571 Kenai Spur Hwy. Soldotna, AK 99669	262- 5229	262- 5212	http://www.kenaipeninsula.org
Mat-Su Convention & Visitors Bureau	7744 E. Visitors View Court Palmer, AK 99645	746- 5000		http://www.alaskavisit.com
Mat-Su Resource Conservation & Development	991 N Hermon Rd Ste 250 Wasilla, Alaska 99654	373- 1016	373- 1013	info@matsudevelopment.org http://matsudevelopment.org/

Housing Authorities

ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	FAX	WEBSITE
Alaska Finance Housing Corp.	4300 Boniface Parkway, Anchorage, AK 99504	330-8452	338-9218	www.ahfc.us
Association of Alaska Housing Authorities	4300 Boniface Parkway, Anchorage, AK 99504	338-3970	338-4904	cdushkin@aahaak.org www.aahaak.org
Cook Inlet Housing Authority	3510 Spenard Rd., # 201 Anchorage, AK 99503	793-3000	793-3075	cgore@cookinlethousing.org www.cookinlethousing.org
North Pacific Rim Housing Authority	8300 King Street, Anchorage, AK 99518	562-1444	562-1445	olen@nprha.com www.nprha.com

Regional Health Corporations

ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	FAX	WEBSITE
Alaska Native	4000	562-	563-	http://www.anhb.org
Health Board	Ambassador	6006	2001	
	Drive, Suite			
	101,			
	Anchorage,			
	AK 99508			

Alaska Native	4000	563-		http://www.anthctoday.org/
Tribal Health	Ambassador	2662		
Consortium	Drive ¤			
	Anchorage,			
	AK 99508			
Chugachmiut	1840 Bragaw	562-	563-	http://www.chugachmiut.org/
	Street, Suite	4155	2891	
	110,			
	Anchorage,			
	AK 99508			
Southcentral	4501	729-	729-	http://www.southcentralfoundation.org/
Foundation	Diplomacy,	4955	5000	
	Anchorage,			
	AK 99508			

9770.3.1 – Alexander Creek

9770.3.1 – Alexander	1
	ALEXANDER CREEK
Location and Climate	Alexander is located on the Susitna River Delta, which flows into Cook Inlet, near the mouth of Alexander Creek, 27 miles northwest of Anchorage across Cook Inlet. It lies at approximately Latitude 61.4218 Longitude -150.5999 Alexander Creek falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. *Alexander Creek is a remote location with few year-round residents, with access primarily by air (no road access). Goods and services can be obtained in Anchorage and transported to this location as necessary.
History, Culture, & Demographics	Alexander Creek, with the Native name Tuqentnu (originally translated as Taguntna Creek), empties into the Susitna River just a few miles from its mouth in Cook Inlet. The historical Alexander Creek Village, known as Tuqen Kaq by its original Alaska Native inhabitants, is located just over 27 miles northwest of Anchorage, Alaska. The community was first noted as a small Indian village in 1898 by the U.S. Geological Survey. Tuqen Kaq was a large village with abundant resources. But the whooping cough, measles and influenza epidemics in the early 1900's decimated the Native population and after the influenza epidemic of 1918, the few survivors of the Alexander Creek Village moved to Tyonek. By 1939 the Alexander Creek site had been re-occupied by Native families. The village of Alexander Creek became a popular location for sport fishing during and after World War II because of its easy accessibility from Anchorage. The residential population is mostly Alaska Native; there is an increasing population of recreational-use cabin owners who are not native. Census information is not tracked for this community.

	Population f	fluctuates seasonally (summer and winter residents).				
	Members of	Alexander Creek have been working on becoming a				
	federally-red	federally-recognized tribe; however, they are recognized under ANCSA.				
Economy	-					
Subsistence	Hunting and	I fishing are important local activities and food sources,				
	particularly	for members of the Alexander Creek, Inc. who have land				
	allotments i	n the area.				
Population	None available, few (if any) year-round residents.					
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough					
In						
Incorporation	Unincorpora	ated				
Туре						
Native Entities	Regional:	Cook Inlet Regional, Inc. (Anchorage)				
	Profit:	Alexander Creek, Incorporated				
	Nonprofit:					
	Tribe:	(Alexander Creek is not a federally recognized tribe)				

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
State Troopers	Palmer Trooper Post: 745-2131
Fire	None
Medical	None

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Cook Inlet	725 E. Fireweed Lane,	274-8638	www.chugach-ak.com
Regional, Inc.	Suite 800, Anchorage,	297-8836	info@ciri.com
(CIRI)	AK 99503	(fax)	
Alexander Creek,	8128 Cranberry Street	242-0263	
Incorporated	Anchorage, AK 99502		

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	Alexander Creek is an isolated community accessible only by air or
_	water. Primary access is via floatplane.

FACILITIES & UTILITIES

Alexander Creek is an isolated location, comprised primarily of recreational cabins and few year-round residents. There are no known facilities or utilities at this location. Contact Alexander Creek, Inc. for information on available facilities or equipment in the area.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	Contact Alexander Creek, Inc. to identify any potential facilities		
Posts (cabins) that may be available for use in the area.			
Potential Staging Areas	None identified.		

Local Spill Response	None identified
Equipment	

9770.3.2 – Anchor Point

9770.3.2 - AHCHOLFOL		ANCHOR POINT	
Location and	Anchor Poin		
Climate	Anchor Point is located on the Kenai Peninsula at the junction of the Anchor River and its north fork, 14 miles northwest of Homer. It lies at		
Cilinate	mile 156 of the Sterling Highway. Latitude 59.7767 Longitude -151.8314		
	Anchor Point falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone,		
		ed by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild	
	summers.	a by a seriii and atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild	
	Sammers.		
	*Anchor Poi	int relies on Homer for many supplies and services. Please	
		Homer community profile for facilities and services.	
History, Culture, &	In the summer of 1778, Captain James Cook and crews of the		
Demographics	Resolution and Discovery sailed into the Inlet looking for a Northwest		
	Passage and gave Anchor Point its name after losing a kedge anchor to		
	the awesome tidal currents. A post office was established in 1949.		
	Anchor Point has a visitor's center, a chamber of commerce, the Two		
	Rivers Coalition (an organization formed to examine the watershed).		
Economy			
Subsistence	_	fishing are important local activities and food sources.	
Population	•	Department of Labor Estimate)	
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough		
In			
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated		
Native Entities	Regional:	Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)	
	Profit:		
	Nonprofit:		
	Tribe:		

	EMERGENCY SERVICES	
State Troopers	Anchor Point Trooper Post, 235-8239	
Fire	Anchor Point Volunteer Fire Department and Rescue, 235-6700	
Medical	Anchor Point Health Center, 226-2238	
	Nearest Hospital in Homer: South Peninsula Hospital, 235-8101	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Anchor Point	P.O. Box 610	235-2600	http://www.anchorpointchamber.org/
Chamber of	Anchor Point, AK		
Commerce	99556		

TRANSPORTATION

Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage. A boat
	launch/retrieval service is available at the mouth of Anchor River;
	however, the boat launch is seasonal, but small boats may be launched
	in the river. Additional information can be found in the following
	website: http://dnr.alaska.gov/parks/units/anchoriv.htm. Nearby
	Homer offers an airport, state ferry access, and docking and boat
	launching facilities (See the Homer Community Profile).

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI.	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	0.
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	Ä
	Wi-Fi available at Anchor Point Library.	Ĭ
TV Stations	See Part III, M. Media	N
Radio Stations	See Part III, M. Media	COMMUNICATIONS
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	\mathcal{C}
Teleconferencing	Anchor Point Library	
Electricity	Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	Local gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane.	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	sing Anchor River Inn. Multiple hotels and accomodations available in	
	Homer, AK.	
Water & Sewage	Anchor Point Water Treatment System	
Miscellaneous	Landfill and Refuse: Soldotna KPB Central Landfill	
	School: Chapman School K-8	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Contact Chamber of Commerce for potential facilities.		
Posts	Anchor Point Public Library		
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Kenai and		
Equipment	Homer.		

9770.3.3 – Anchorage/Municipality of Anchorage

J	ANCHORAGE/ MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
Location and	Anchorage, the most populated municipality in Alaska, is located in
Climate	southcentral Alaska at the head of Cook Inlet. It is 3 hours' flight time
	from Seattle. Latitude 61.2181 Longitude -149.9003
	Anchorage falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
	*The municality of Anchorage includes the communities of Chugiak, Eagle River, Eklutna, Girdwood, Indian, Joint Base Elmendorf- Richardson, Peters Creek and Portage. See the community profiles for

	these leasti	and for additional information and office to these		
	these locations for additional information specific to these communities.			
History Cultura 0	Construction began in 1914 on a federal railroad from the port of			
History, Culture, &		· ·		
Demographics		o miles south of Anchorage, through the coalfields of Interior ne gold claims near Fairbanks, 358 miles to the north. The		
		nstruction headquarters was Anchorage, and, by July of		
	•	ands of job seekers and opportunists had poured into the		
		n a tent city on the banks of Ship Creek near the edge of the		
	•	Intown. City of Anchorage was incorporated in 1920. From		
	1939 to 1957, major military impacts and government construction of			
	roads, airports, and harbors throughout Alaska contributed to the			
	•	nchorage. The port was completed by the early 1960s. The		
		horage Area Borough was formed in 1964. The Good Friday		
	•	in 1964 destroyed a large part of the city. During the 1970s,		
		ment of the Prudhoe Bay oilfields and the Trans-Alaska ught rapid growth to Anchorage; population, office space,		
	•	tripled within a ten-year period. On Sept. 15, 1975, the city		
		n governments were unified, along with the cities of		
	Girdwood and Glen Alps.			
	on awood and olon mps.			
	Anchorage has a history of cultural diversity. Many residents participate			
	in nearby recreational and subsistence activities. Anchorage has over			
		ncluding 10 large reserves. Recreation activities include		
		d cross-country skiing, ice hockey, fishing, golf, swimming,		
	•	g, and camping. The George Sullivan Sports Arena, Alaska Arts Center, Egan Convention Center, and many other		
	facilities host cultural and entertainment events.			
Economy		s the commercial and transportation hub for the state.		
2000.11				
Subsistence	Hunting fish	ing (including clamming) are important local activities and		
	food sources.			
Population	300,549 (2014 DCCED Commissioner Certified Figure)			
_	Municipality of Anchorage			
In				
Incorporation Type	Unified Home Rule Borough			
Native Entities	Regional: Profit:	Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)		
	Nonprofit:	Eklutna, Inc. Cook Inlet Tribal Council, Incorporated (Regional Non-		
	ινοπρισιιτ:	profit)		
	Village:	promy		

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
Police	Anchorage Police Department, 786-8900
Fire	Anchorage Fire Department, 267-4936
Medical	Multiple medical clinics are located in Anchorage
	Nearest Hospitals in Anchorage: Alaska Regional Hospital (276-1131);

Providence Hospital (562-2211); Alaska Native Medical Center (563-2662)

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL	
Alaska Native Health Board, Incorporated (Community Non-profit)	1840 Bragaw Street, Suite 220, Anchorage, AK 99508	562-6006/ 563-2001 (fax)	http://www.anhb.or	
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium	4000 Ambassador Drive, Anchorage, AK 99508	729-1900/ 729-1901 (fax)	http://www.anthctoday.org	
Anchorage Chamber of Commerce	1016 West Sixth Avenue, Suite 303, Anchorage, AK 99501	272-2401/ 272-4117 (fax)	http://www.anchor agechamber.org	
Anchorage Convention and Visitors Bureau	524 West 4th Ave., Anchorage, AK 995012-122	276-4118/ 278-5559 (fax)		
Anchorage Economic Development Corporation	510 L Street, Suite 603, Anchorage, AK 99501	258-3700/ 258-6646 (fax)	http://www.aedcwe b.com	
Cook Inlet Housing Authority	3510 Spenard Rd, Suite 201, Anchorage, AK 99503	793-3000/ 793-3075 (fax)	http://www.cookinlethousing.org cgore@cookinlethousing.org	
Cook Inlet Region, Incorporated (ANCSA Regional Corporation)	P.O. Box 93330, Anchorage, AK 99509-3330	274-8638/ 279-8836 (fax)	http://www.ciri.com info@ciri.com	
Cook Inlet Tribal Council, Incorporated (Regional Native Non-profit)	3600 San Jeronimo Dr, Anchorage, AK 99508	793-3600/ 793-3422 (fax)	http://www.citci.co m info@citci.org	
Eklutna, Inc. (ANCSA Village Corporation/ major landowner)	16515 Centerfield Dr #201 Eagle River, AK 99577	696-2828	www.eklutnainc.co m	
Municipality of Anchorage (City Hall)	PO Box 196650, Anchorage, AK 99501	343-4311/ 343-4313 (fax)	http://www.muni.or g wwmasmc@muni.o rg	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Anchorage is the transportation hub of Alaska. The Glenn and Seward	
	Highways connect Anchorage to the North, East and South. The Alaska	

	Railroad has a large Anchorage Terminal. The Anchorage International		
	Airport has extensive passenger and cargo service. The Port of		
	Anchorage is the major port for Alaska.		
Airport Facilities	Anchorage International Airport and multiple small plane airports		
Airline Services	Major passenger and cargo providers, charter and scheduled flights.		
Freight	Air, rail, vessel and truck.		
Vessel Support:	Port of Anchorage <u>www.portofalaska.com</u>		

FACILITIES & UTILITIES			
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI	S	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	N	
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	Ĭ	
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	/S	
TV Stations	See Part III, M. Media	COMMUNICATIONS	
Radio Stations	See Part III, M. Media	¥	
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	ő	
Teleconferencing)	
Electricity	Municipal Light and Power, Chugach Electric Association		
Fuel	Multiple fuel service providers		
Fuel Storage			
Housing	Hundreds of hotel rooms available, however, at peak tourist season		
	(June-August) availability may be limited. Non-traditional lodging		
	options may need to be explored, including university dormitories,		
14/ / 0.0	military housing, or vacation rental homes.		
Water & Sewage	Alaska Water and Wastewater Utility		
Miscellaneous			

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	ADEC and EPA have local facilities capable of supporting a small-		
Posts	moderate sized command. Hotel conference rooms may be available.		
	Conference rooms are also available at the Denaina Center, Egan		
	Center, University of Alaska and Loussac Library. Additional facilities		
	include:		
	o Anchorage Emergency Operations Center (343-1400)		
	o State Emergency Coordination Center (428-7000)		
Potential Staging	Multiple locations. Potential sites include: EPA Response Warehouse,		
Areas	ADEC Response Warehouse, Alaska DOT/State Trooper facility at		
	Tudor and Boniface; facilities on JBER, Anchorage International		
	Airport.		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Containers; Navy SUPSALV. CISPRI and Chadux		
Equipment	have equipment warehouses in Anchorage.		

7770.5.4 – Big Lake	BIG LAKE
Location and Climate	Big Lake is a community on the shore of Big Lake, 13 miles southwest of Wasilla, in the Chugach Mountains. It lies adjacent to Houston and Knik-Fairview. Latitude 61.5256 Longitude -149.9415 Big Lake falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. *Big Lake relies on Wasilla for many supplies and services. Please refer to the Wasilla community profile for facilities and services.
History, Culture, & Demographics	Early inhabitants were the Athabascan Dena'ina Natives. Around 1899, the Boston and Klondike Company made the first sled trail north into the Talkeetna Mountains from Knik via Big Lake. Homesteaders in 1929 and after World War II settled Big Lake. Materials were transported from Pittman Railroad Station over eleven miles of rough trail. By 1959, a number of lodges and several children's camps were operating on the lake, and at least 300 cottages and camps were owned by individuals. Lake-front lots became accessible in the 1960s and 1970s, with the expansion of roads and power. In June 1996, the "Miller's Reach" wildfire destroyed more than 37,500 acres in the Big Lake and Houston area, including 433 buildings and homes valued at \$8.9 million. Low housing costs, the semi-rural lifestyle, and a 45-minute commute to Anchorage have supported growth in the Mat-Su Valley. Boating and fishing are extremely popular on the lake during the summer months. High school students attend Houston Middle and High Schools.
Economy	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	3,575 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation	Unincorporated
Туре	
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Alaska State Trooper Post (745-2131)	
Fire	Big Lake Volunteer Fire Department (892-7750)	
	West Lakes Fire Department (861-8081)	
Medical	See Wasilla Community Profile for nearest medical clinics	
	Nearest Hospital in Wasilla: Mat-Su Regional Medical Center (861-6000)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Big Lake Chamber	P.O. Box 520067	892-6109	http://www.biglakechamber.org
of Commerce	Big Lake, AK 99652	892-6189	
		(fax)	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Big Lake Road is accessible from mile 52 of the George Parks Highway.	
	State-owned gravel airstrip and float plane docks are available. Several	
	boat launches and a marina support recreational watercraft.	
Airport Facilities	Big Lake Airport: 2,450-feet gravel runway. Beaver Lake Seaplane Base	
	(5000-feet, water)	
Airline Services	None identified	
Freight	None identified	
Vessel Support:	Big Lake South boat launch facility, State Recreational Site that is	
	managed and maintained by State Parks. It is located at mile 5.2 South	
	Big Lake Road.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	GCI and Matanuska Telephone Association (MTA)	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NS
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet	0.
Provider	service available from GCI and MTA.	Ä
	Wi-Fi available at Big Lake Public Library.	Ĭ
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		Ī
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	$^{\circ}$
Teleconferencing	Big Lake Public Library	
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel	Multiple fuel service providers	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Lodging available in Palmer or Wasilla; additional hotels in Anchora	ge
	and Eagle River.	
Water & Sewage		
Miscellaneous	Palmer MSB Central Landfill	
	Big Lake Elementary (PK-5 th)	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command Contact Big Lake Chamber of Commerce or Mat-Su Borough for		
Posts	available facilities.	
Potential Staging Areas	None Identified	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex location in Wasillla.	
Equipment		

9770.3.5 - Butte

	ВИТТЕ
Location and	Butte is located south of Palmer in the Mat-Su Borough, between mile
Climate	9 and mile 16 of the Old Glenn Highway. It lies at the foot of Bodenberg
	Butte, east of a Matanuska River, 42 miles north of Anchorage. Latitude
	61.5422 Longitude -149.0333.

	Butte falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-		
	arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
	*Butte relies on palmer for many supplies and services. Please refer to		
	the Palmer community profile for facilities and services.		
History, Culture, &	Athabascan Dena'ina Natives traveled through the Butte area on a		
Demographics	winter trail from Eklutna up the Knik River to the Copper River. A large		
	Dena'ina village called Hutnaynut'l, or "burnt over," existed in the		
	Bodenburg area. The first farm was homesteaded in 1917 by John		
	Bodenburg. In 1935, 25 tracts were settled in the Butte area by the		
	Matanuska Colonists, around "Camp 10" along Bodenburg Loop Road.		
	More land was settled after World War II. Several saw mills operated		
	between 1940 and 1970. Low housing costs, the semi-rural lifestyle,		
	and a reasonable commute to Anchorage have supported growth in the		
	Mat-Su Valley.		
	'The Butte' is a large suburban settlement. Students are bused to		
	Palmer for middle and high school.		
Economy			
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.		
Population	3,418 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)		
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough		
In			
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated		
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)		

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Alaska State Trooper Post (745-2131)
Fire	Butte Volunteer Fire Department (745-4221)
Medical	Refer to Palmer Community Profile for nearest clinic
	Nearest Hospital in Wasilla: Mat-Su Regional Medical Center (861-6000)

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Butte Community	P.O. Box 3713	745-1672	http://buttecc.org/
Council	Palmer, AK 99645		

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	Butte lies along the Old Glenn Highway. A public airstrip, owned and
	operated by the Butte Airman's Association, is available. The railroad
	and other means of transportation are also accessible in Palmer and
	Anchorage.
Airport Facilities	Butte Municipal Airport (1,806-gravel runway); larger and better
	condition airport facilities located in Palmer, Chugiak and Anchorage.

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	GCI and Matanuska Telephone Association (MTA)	00

Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet
Provider	service available from GCI and MTA.
TV Stations	
Radio Stations	
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI
Teleconferencing	
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association
Fuel	Multiple fuel service providers
Fuel Storage	
Housing	Lodging available in Palmer or Wasilla; additional hotels in Anchorage
	and Eagle River.
Water & Sewage	
Miscellaneous	School: Butte Elementary, PK thru 5

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex location in Wasilla.	
Equipment		

9770.3.6 - Chickaloon

	CHICKALOON
Location and	The unincorporated community of Chickaloon is located within the
Climate	Matanuska-Susitna Borough, northeast of the community of Sutton. Its
	western boundary is in the vicinity of the Kings River and its eastern
	boundary is in the vicinity of Purinton Creek (Between Mile 66 and 90
	of the Glenn Highway). The Talkeetna Mountains lie to the northwest,
	and the Chugach Mountains and Matanuska River lie to the southeast.
	The Chickaloon River and the Kings River are the two major tributaries
	to the Matanuska River. There are several lakes within the area: Fish
	Lake, Drill Lake, Bonnie Lake, Harrison Lake, and Long Lake. Latitude
	61.7967 Longitude -148.4628.
	Chickaloon falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a
	semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
	*Chickaloon relies on Palmer for many supplies and services. Please
	refer to the Palmer community profile for facilities and services.
History, Culture, &	Traditionally, Chickaloon territory was a center of trade for copper,
Demographics	sheep, and goats from the north and salmon, beluga, and fur seals from
	the south. The Ahtna, and formerly the Dena'ina, Athabascans of
	Chickaloon traveled extensively within the Copper River and Cook Inlet
	areas. The Chickaloon River was named after Chief Chiklu, the last
	Denai'ina chief in this area. What is now the community of Chickaloon
	was once a primary fishing camp of Chickaloon Village. Nay'dini'aa Na'
	is the Ahtna name for the original settlement of Chickaloon Village on

	the north bank above the mouth of the Chickaloon River. An 1898 army exploration party located a vein of high-quality coal near the Chickaloon River. The deposits were hard to reach, and there was little interest in them until a railroad was built to Interior Alaska. During the winter of 1913-1914, an Alaskan freighter named Jack Dalton used the frozen Matanuska River to haul the first test coal from the Chickaloon coal deposits. When construction of the Alaska Railroad was approved in 1914, the plan included a spur line to the Chickaloon coal field. From 1915 to 1922, the U.S. Navy sponsored a coal mining boom in Chickaloon drainage, which had a negative impact on Chickaloon Village, especially with respect to their once-valued fishing camp. At the same time, it provided an opportunity for jobs and the development of Chickaloon. Coal mining also took place in the area around Sutton, at the Wishbone Hill Naval Coal Reserve, Coal Creek, and Carbon Creek. Like so many other Alaska mining towns, Chickaloon grew quickly and almost as quickly declined. By 1925, the navy had halted coal development in Chickaloon, and the land reverted to public domain and was opened to homesteaders by 1958. Today, local businesses provide employment for community residents and serve the needs of residents and visitors alike. Today, local businesses provide employment for community residents and serve the needs of residents and others live in Sutton and surrounding communities.	
	The tribally-owned and -operated Ya Ne Dah Ah ('Ancient Teachings') School, located in Moose Creek, serves tribal members living in Chickaloon and surrounding communities. The indigenous language is Ahtna.	
Economy	Local retail businesses and government provide the majority of employment - some positions are in the Palmer/Wasilla area, while others travel to the North Slope. Subsistence is an important activity for both native and non-native residents. There is high local interest in agricultural activities. Several guides cater to a variety of recreational activities.	
Subsistence	Fishing, hunting, gathering, and trading are important activities for both Athabascan and non-Native residents.	
Population	232 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)	
Borough Located	Unorganized	
In	ga-112-04	
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated	
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)	
	Profit: Chickaloon-Moose Creek Native Association, Incorporated	
	Village: Chickaloon Native Village (Federally Recognized Tribe)	

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
State Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Trooper Post: 745-2131
Fire	Chickaloon Fire Service, Inc.: 351-2360
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Wasilla: Mat-Su Regional Medical Center (861-6000)

LOCAL CO	LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES		
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chickaloon	P.O. Box	745-3480	http://www.chickalooncommunitycouncil.org
Community	1145		
Council,	Chickaloon,		
Incorporated	AK 99674		
Chickaloon	P.O. Box	745-0749	http://www.chickaloon.org
Native Village	1105	745-0709	cvadmin@chickaloon.org
	Chickaloon,	(fax)	
	AK 99674		
Chickaloon-	P.O. Box	373-1145	http://www.chickaloon.org
Moose Creek	875046	373-1183	
Native	Wasilla, AK	(fax)	
Association,	99687		
Incorporated			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Chickaloon is accessible by the statewide highway system, on the Glenn	
	Highway	
Airport Facilities	Castle Mountain Airstrip, private turf airstrip	
Freight	Freight is brought in via highway from Anchorage or Palmer.	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	GCI and Matanuska Telephone Association (MTA)	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NS
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet	<u> </u>
Provider	service available from GCI and MTA.	Ä
	Wi-Fi available at Sutton Public Library.	Ĭ
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		Ĭ
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	$^{\circ}$
Teleconferencing	Sutton Public Library	
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel	Nearest gas stations in Sutton.	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Lodging available in Palmer or Wasilla; additional hotels in Anchora	ge
	and Eagle River.	
Water & Sewage		
Miscellaneous		

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Contact Chickaloon Native Village for information on available	
Posts	facilities.	
Potential Staging Areas		

Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex location in Wasilla.
Equipment	

9770.3.7 – Chugiak

9770.3.7 – Chugiak	OLULOIAV.		
	CHUGIAK		
Location and	Chugiak is located 21 miles north of Anchorage, along the Glenn		
Climate	Highway between miles and .		
	It is located between Eagle River to the south, and Eklutna to the		
	north, and between Knik Arm to the west and the Chugach Mountains		
	to the east. It is currently one of the main sites of suburban expansion		
	near Anchorage, and often included as part of the Chugiak-Eagle River		
	area. To the north are the smaller unincorporated communities of		
	Birchwood, Peters Creek and Eklutna which are often referred to by		
	name, but are served by the Chugiak Post Office, with Chugiak		
	addresses. Latitude 61.3889 Longitude -149.4819 Chugiak falls within		
	the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid		
	atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
	* Chugiak relies on Anchorage for many supplies and services. Please		
	refer to the Anchorage community profile for facilities and services.		
History, Culture, &	The name "Chugiak" comes from a Dena'ina word meaning "place of		
Demographics	many places". Chugiak was first heavily settled in the 1950s, primarily		
	by former military personnel who had served in Alaska during World War II and homesteaded here. It is part of the Municipality of		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
F	Anchorage.		
Economy	The majority of residents commute to Anchorage or Joint Base		
Cubaiotanaa	Elmendorf Richardson.		
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources,		
	although most of these activities in the vicinity of Chugiak, occur in		
Donulation	Chugach State Park or on Joint Base Elmendorf Richardson.		
Population	5,463 (Alaska Population Estimates by Census Tract, July 2013 Estimate)		
Paraugh Lacated In			
Borough Located In	Municipality of Anchorage		
Incorporation Type Native Entities	Unincorporated Pogional: Cook Inlet Pogion, Inc. (CIPI)		
ivative critities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)		
	Profit: Eklutna, Inc.		

	EMERGENCY SERVICES
Police	Anchorage Police Department, 786-8900
Fire	Chugiak Volunteer Fire Department, 688-2686
Medical	Multiple medical clinics are located in Eagle River Nearest Hospitals in Anchorage: Alaska Regional Hospital (276-1131); Providence Hospital (562-2211); Alaska native Medical Center (563-2662)

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chugiak-Eagle	PO Box 770353	694-4702	http://cer.org/index.php
River Chamber of	Eagle River, AK 99577	694-1205	
Commerce	-	(fax)	
Eklutna, Inc.	16515 Centerfield Dr	696-2828	www.eklutnainc.com
(major landowner)	#201		
	Eagle River, AK 99577		

	TRANSPORTATION
Accessibility	Chugiak is located approximately 21 miles northeast of Anchorage on
	the Glenn Highway. The Alaska Railroad corridor runs the community
	near
Airport Facilities	Birchwood Airport, public airport, 4010' asphalt
Airline Services	None identified.
Freight	Freight is available via the highway from Anchorage.
Vessel Support:	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	GCI and Matanuska Telephone Association (MTA)	S
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NC
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet	\T(
Provider	service available from Alaska Communications, GCI and MTA.	/2
TV Stations	Multiple location stations produced in Anchorage, AK.	UN
Radio Stations	Multiple location stations produced in Anchorage, AK.	JM
Cable Provider	GCI.	COMMUNICATIONS
Teleconferencing	Chugiak-Eagle River Library)
Electricity	Chugach Electric Association and Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel	Multiple gas stations providing gasoline, diesel, and propane. Heati	ng
	fuel also available via multiple vendors.	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Multiple housing options available in Eagle River and Anchorage, Al	Κ.
Water & Sewage	Anchorage Water and Wastewater Utility; many locations are serve	ed
	by well and septic systems.	
Miscellaneous	The area is served by 2 elementary schools, 1 middle school and 1 h	nigh
	school. Additional public schools are located in Eagle River and	
	Anchorage.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Command Posts would likely be located in Anchorage, AK. Local		
Posts	facilities may be available; contact the Chamber of Commerce		
	(694-4702), Eagle River/Chugiak Parks and Recreation (343-1500),		
	Municipality of Anchorage and Anchorage School District (742-		
	4000).		
Potential Staging Areas			

Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response equipment is located in Anchorage.
Equipment	

9770.3.8 – Clam Gulch

9110.3.0 - Clairi Guici		
	CLAM GULCH	
Location and	Located on the Kenai Peninsula, Clam Gulch lies on the Sterling Highway	
Climate	24 miles south of the City of Kenai. Latitude 60.2311 Longitude -	
	151.3936. Clam Gulch falls within the gulf coast transitional climate	
	zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and	
	mild summers.	
	*Clam Gulch relies on Soldotna and Kenai for many supplies and	
	services. Please refer to the Soldotna and City of Kenai community	
11' 1 0 11 0	profile for facilities and services.	
History, Culture, &	Reported in 1947 by Barnes and Cobb of the U.S. Geological Survey, it	
Demographics	was named after the Clam Gulch Ravine. A post office was established	
	in 1950. Clam Gulch is best characterized as a roadside development	
	with a primarily non-Native population.	
Economy	A post office is in Clam Gulch. The Kenai area economy provides a	
	variety of employment opportunities. Recreational activities and	
	tourism are an important to the local economy. Clam Gulch is visited by	
	tourists who participate in clam digging on the beach during low tides.	
	There is a State Recreation Area with a large campground and access to	
	the clamming beaches. In the winter there are many 'poker runs' by	
	snow-machine enthusiasts and in the past Clam Gulch has been the	
	half-way point for the Tustumena 200 Sled Dog Race.	
Subsistence	Hunting fishing (including clamming) are important local activities and	
Subsistence	food sources.	
Donulation		
Population	232 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)	
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough	
<u>In</u>		
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated	
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)	

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
State Troopers	Ninilchik Trooper Post, 567-3660
Fire	Central Emergency Services, 262-4792
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Soldotna: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404)

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage and beyond.
	Nearby Kenai offers an airport and docking facilities. Hackney Landing
	Seaplane Base is a private seaplane landing 4 miles north of Clam Gulch
	but is located on State land/water.

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI.	00:

Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.
	Wi-Fi available at Kasilof Public Library.
TV Stations	
Radio Stations	
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI
Teleconferencing	Kasilof Public Library
Electricity	Homer Electric Association
Fuel	Local gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane in Kasilof and
	Soldotna.
Fuel Storage	
Housing	Clam Gulch Lodge (260 – 3778). Multiple hotels and other
	accommodations in Soldotna. Many small businesses offer rental
	cabins and B&Bs nearer Clam Gulch.
Water & Sewage	
Miscellaneous	Nearest schools are located in Kasilof to the North and Ninilchik to the
	south.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Kenai and	
Equipment	Homer.	

9770.3.9 – Cohoe

	СОНОЕ
	Pronunciation koh' hoe
Location and	Cohoe is located on the Kenai Peninsula on the west bank of the Kasilof
Climate	River, 13 miles south of the City of Kenai on the Sterling Highway. Latitude
	60.3680 Longitude -151.3086 Cohoe falls within the gulf coast transitional
	climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold
	winters, and mild summers.
	* Cohoe relies on Soldotna and Kenai for many supplies and services.
	Please refer to the Soldotna and City of Kenai community profile for
	facilities and services.
History, Culture,	Victor Holm constructed a cabin in Cohoe in 1890. Holm sailed from
& Demographics	Finland to Alaska to make his home. The cabin and many of Holm's
	handmade items still remain; the cabin is listed on the National Register
	of Historic Places. Cohoe was originally an agricultural settlement where a
	post office was established in 1950. Cohoe is best characterized as a
	roadside development.
Economy	
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.

Population	1,394 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Unorganized
In	
Incorporation	Kenai Peninsula Borough
Туре	
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
State Troopers	Soldotna Trooper Post (262-4453)
Fire	Central Emergency Services (262-4792)
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Soldotna: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404)

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage. Kenai offers an
	airport and docking facilities.

FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI.
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular service
Internet Service	available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service available from
Provider	Alaska Communications and GCI.
	Wi-Fi available at Kasilof Public Library.
Fuel	Local gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane in Kasilof and
	Soldotna.
Housing	Multiple hotels and other accommodations in Soldotna. Many small
	businesses offer rental cabins and B&Bs nearer Cohoe.
Miscellaneous	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT (Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	, , ,	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Kenai and	
Equipment	Homer.	

9770.3.10 – Cooper Landing

	COOPER LANDING
Location and	Cooper Landing is at the west end of Kenai Lake on a stretch of the
Climate	Sterling Highway (Milepost 45-53), 30 miles northwest of Seward in the
	Chugach Mountains (Latitude 60.4900 Longitude -149.8342) Cooper
	Landing falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone,
	characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild
	summers.
	* Cooper Landing relies on Soldotna for many supplies and services.
	Please refer to the Soldotna community profile for facilities and services.

History, Culture, & Demographics	the area. Cooper Landing was named for Joseph Cooper, a miner who discovered gold here in 1884. Cooper Creek was first recorded in 1898 by the U.S. Geological Survey. In 1900, the census found 21 miners and 1 wife living at Cooper Creek. The Riddiford Post Office began operations in 1924, and the Riddiford School opened in 1928. In 1938, a road was constructed to Seward. In 1948, a road to Kenai was opened, and by 1951 residents could drive to Anchorage. The Cooper Landing Community Club was first formed in 1949. The Cooper Landing Community Club is the community's civic organization. The population of the area nearly doubles each summer to support tourism businesses and activities.		
	K'Beq' Interpretive Site, cultural site, located at milepost 52.6 of the Sterling Highway, Cooper Landing, Alaska, directly across from the entrance to the Russian River Campground. Jointly managed by Chugach National Forest and Kenaitze Indian Tribe		
Economy	The economy of the area is diverse. Tourism-related employment and seasonal businesses provide the majority of employment. The 86-room Kenai Princess Lodge accommodates Princess cruise ship passengers and other tourists. Chugach Electric Association and the School District are significant employers.		
Subsistence			
Population	295 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)		
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough		
In			
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated Designate Cook lates Paging Inc. (CIDI)		
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)		
	Village: Kenaitze Indian Tribe		

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers	Cooper Landing Trooper Post (595-1233)	
Fire	Cooper Landing Volunteer Fire Department (595-1800)	
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Soldotna: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Cooper Landing	P.O. Box 809	595-8888	http://www.cooperlandingchamber.com
Chamber of	Cooper Landing,	595-8888	
Commerce and	AK 99572	(fax)	
Visitors Bureau			
Cooper Landing	P.O. Box 508	595-3094	
Community Club	Cooper Landing,		
	AK 99572		
Cooper Landing	Mile .8 Bean	595-1241	
Community	Creek Road		
Library			

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL			
	Cooper Landing, AK 99572			

	TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage and beyond. Kenai		
	offers air transportation and docking facilities. There is a state-owned		
	and a privately-owned boat launch available. The state-owned Quartz		
	Creek Airport provides a gravel runway, and float planes may land at		
	Cooper Lake.		
Airport Facilities	Quartz Creek Airport, 2,200 ft. x 60 ft. gravel runway		
Freight	Via Highway		

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI.	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NS
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	01.
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	Ä
	Wi-Fi available at Cooper Landing Public Library.	Ĭ
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		M
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	\sim
Teleconferencing	Cooper Landing Public Library	
Electricity	Chugach Electric Association	
Fuel	Local gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane.	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Multiple small B&B and cabin rentals and larger Kenai Princess Lodge	
	located in Cooper Landing, many are open seasonally.	
Water & Sewage		
Miscellaneous		

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Cooper Landing Community Library		
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Seward and		
Equipment	Kenai.		

9770.3.11 – Crown Point

	CROWN POINT
Location and	Crown Point is on the Kenai Peninsula on the Seward Highway and at
Climate	mile 24.5 of the Alaska Railroad. It lies between Kenai Lake and Lower
	Trail Lake, 22 miles north of Seward in the Chugach Mountains

	(Latitude 60.4222 Longitude -149.3667). Crown Point falls within the gulf coast maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. * Crown Point relies on Seward for many supplies and services. Please refer to the Seward community profile for facilities and services.	
History, Culture, & Demographics	U.S. Geological Survey agents reported a railroad station called "Trail Lake Station" at this site in 1912. Crown Point includes approximately 40 homes near Kenai Lake.	
Economy		
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.	
Population	71 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)	
Borough Located	Unorganized	
In		
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated	
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers	Crown Point Trooper Post (288-3346)	
Fire	Moose Pass Volunteer Fire and EMS Crown Point Unit (288-3666)	
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Seward: Providence Seward Medical and Care	
	Center (224-5205)	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Accessibility The Seward and Sterling Highways provide access to Anchorage and	
	beyond. The Lawing Airport serves Crown Point, in addition to the	
	nearby Kenai and Seward airport and docking facilities.	
Airport Facilities	Lawing Airport	
Freight	Freight service available via highway or railroad.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES				
Please see the Sewar	Please see the Seward Community Profile for information on facilities, services and utilities.			
Telephone	Telephone Alaska Communications and GCI.			
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular			
Internet Service	ernet Service service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service			
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.			
Miscellaneous				

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex located in Seward.			
Equipment			

9770.3.12 - Curry

	CURRY			
Location and	Curry is an unincorporated area north of Talkeetna, and along the			
Climate	Alaska Railroad corridor. It is not road accessible, and the majority of			
	lands are owned by the State or Borough.			
	* Curry relies on Talkeetna for many supplies and services. Please refer			
	to the Palmer community profile for facilities and services.			
History, Culture, &				
Demographics				
Economy	Chase residents are devoted to self-sufficiency, living a subsistence			
	lifestyle supplemented by public assistance payments.			
Subsistence	Yes, see above.			
Population	(2014 Department of Labor Estimate)			
Borough Located	Unorganized			
In				
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated			
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)			

EMERGENCY SERVICES			
Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Trooper Post: 745-2131		
Fire	No local service.		
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Wasilla: Mat-Su Regional Medical Center (861-6000)		

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Chase is accessible via the Alaska Railroad or via air, although no	
	airstrips are identified.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
There are no local facilities or utilities.		

9770.3.13 – Eagle River

	EAGLE RIVER			
Location and	Eagle River is located within the Municipality of Anchorage, between			
Climate	Fort Richardson and the Chugach State Park. The area north of Fort			
	Richardson to the municipal boundary includes Eagle River, Chugiak,			
	Birchwood, Peters Creek, Thunderbird Falls, and Eklutna (Latitude			
	61.3222 Longitude -149.5667). Eagle River falls within the transitional			
	climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold			
	winters, and mild summers.			
	* Eagle River relies on Anchorage for many supplies and services. Please			
	refer to the Anchorage community profile for facilities and services.			
History, Culture, &	The name Eagle River was first reported in 1939 by the U.S. Geological			
Demographics	Survey. The Eagle River/Chugiak area was settled by homesteaders and			

	prospered on agricultural activities. The Eagle River Post Office was established in 1961. In spite of local opposition, Chugiak and Eagle River became annexed to the Municipality of Anchorage, when the City of Anchorage and the Greater Anchorage Area Borough were unified in 1975.				
	Many reside activities.	Many residents participate in nearby recreational and subsistence activities.			
Economy	Eagle River is the shopping hub between Anchorage, Palmer, and				
		jor stores are Wal-Mart, Fred Meyer and Carrs Safeway.			
	Many residents commute to Anchorage or Joint Base Elmendorf				
Cubalatanaa	Richardson.				
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources,				
	although most of these activities in the vicinity of Eagle River, occur in Chugach State Park or on Joint Base Elmendorf Richardson.				
Population	6,062 (Alaska Population Estimates by Census Tract, July 2013 Estimate)				
Borough Located	Municipality of Anchorage				
In					
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated				
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)				
	Profit: Eklutna, Inc.				
	Nonprofit:	Cook Inlet Tribal Council, Incorporated (Regional Non-profit)			

EMERGENCY SERVICES				
Police	Anchorage Police Department, 786-8900			
Fire	Anchorage Fire Department, 267-4936			
	Chugiak Volunteer Fire Department, 688-2686			
	South Fork (Eagle River) Volunteer Fire Department, 696-8414			
Medical	Multiple medical clinics are located in Eagle River			
	Nearest Hospitals in Anchorage: Alaska Regional Hospital (276-1131);			
	Providence Hospital (562-2211); Alaska native Medical Center (563-			
	2662)			

LOCAL CON	LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL		
Alaska Star	16941 N. Eagle	694-2727	http://www.alaskastar.com		
(Newspaper)	River Loop	694-1545			
	Eagle River, AK	(fax)			
	99577				
Chugiak-Eagle	PO Box 770353	694-4702	http://cer.org/index.php		
River Chamber of	Eagle River, AK	694-1205			
Commerce	99577	(fax)			
Eagle River Valley	P.O. Box 772812	694-2426	http://www.communitycouncils.org/		
Community	Eagle River, AK		servlet/content/11.html		
Council	99577				

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL	
Eklutna, Inc.	16515 Centerfield	696-2828	www.eklutnainc.com	
(major	Dr #201			
landowner)	Eagle River, AK			
	99577			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Eagle River is located approximately 21 miles northeast of Anchorage	
	on the Glenn Highway with access to the same transportation	
	infrastructure as Anchorage.	
Airport Facilities	Nearest faciltiies at Anchorage International Airport (Anchorage) and	
	Birchwood Airport (Chugiak)	
Airline Services	None identified.	
Freight	Freight is available via the highway from Anchorage.	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Alaska Communications, GCI and Matanuska Telephone	
	Association (MTA)	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet	
Provider	service available from Alaska Communications, GCI and MTA.	
TV Stations	Multiple location stations produced in Anchorage, AK.	
Radio Stations	Multiple location stations produced in Anchorage, AK.	
Cable Provider	GCI.	
Teleconferencing	Chugiak-Eagle River Public Library	
Electricity	Chugach Electric Association and Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel	Multiple gas stations providing gasoline, diesel, and propane. Heating	
	fuel also available via multiple vendors.	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Multiple housing options available in Eagle River and Anchorage, AK.	
Water & Sewage	Anchorage Water and Wastewater Utility; many locations are served	
	by well and septic systems.	
Miscellaneous	Eagle River has numerous public, parochial and charter school	
	programs available for K-12 grades. The public school district is the	
	Anchorage School District (ASD).	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Command Posts would likely be located in Anchorage, AK. Local	
Posts facilities may be available; contact the Chamber of Commerce		
(694-4702), Eagle River/Chugiak Parks and Recreation (343-150)		
Municipality of Anchorage and Anchorage School District (742-		
4000).		
Potential Staging Areas		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response equipment is located in Anchorage.	
Equipment		

9770.3.14 – Eklutna			
		EKLUTNA	
		Pronunciation ee kloot' nuh	
Location and Climate History, Culture, & Demographics	Eklutna is located at the head of the Knik Arm of Cook Inlet, at the mouth of the Eklutna River, 25 miles northeast of Anchorage. It is within the boundaries of the Municipality of Anchorage. In addition to the Native Village of Eklutna, west of the Glenn Highway, there are residential areas up Eklutna Lake Road and near Thunderbird Falls (Latitude 61.4545/Longitude -149.3545). Eklutna falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. *Eklutna relies on Anchorage for many supplies and services. Please refer to the Anchorage community profile for facilities and services. The Eklutna area was the site of many Athabascan villages as little as 800 years ago. Today's residents are descendants of the Danaina tribe. Russian Orthodox missionaries arrived in the 1840s. A railroad station was built in 1918. The Eklutna Power House supplies hydroelectric power to Anchorage.		
	Eklutna is 2 communities: an Athabascan village and a primarily non- native community located off of Thunderbird Falls and Eklutna Lake Road. Eklutna Village has approximately 65 residents. Village residents practice a subsistence lifestyle and the Russian Orthodox religion is prevalent. The indigenous language is Dena'ina, although English is the primary language of residents. A federally recognized tribe is located at Eklutna: Eklutna Native Village. Eklutna, Incorporated is the ANCSA village/urban Corporation, and in a major landowner in the area.		
Economy	The Matanuska Electric Association Eklutna Power House		
	(hydroelectric) and Eklutna Generation Station (natural gas) supplies hydroelectric power to Anchorage and the Mat-Su. Local residents are		
	or Anchorag	to find employment in the urban area of nearby Eagle River	
Subsistence	_	I fishing are important local activities and food sources.	
Population	54 (ANVSA July 2013 estimate)		
Borough Located	Unorganized		
In			
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated		
Native Entities	Regional:	Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)	
	Profit:	Eklutna, Inc.	
	Nonprofit:	Cook Inlet Tribal Council, Incorporated (Regional Non-profit)	
	Village:	Native Village of Eklutna	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police Anchorage Police Department, 786-8900		
Fire Chugiak Volunteer Fire Department, 688-2686		

Medical	Eklutna Village Clinic (688-6031); Multiple medical clinics are located in	
	Eagle River	
	Nearest Hospitals in Anchorage: Alaska Regional Hospital (276-1131);	
	Providence Hospital (562-2211); Alaska native Medical Center (563-	
	2662)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Eklutna Native	26339 Eklutna Village	688-6020	http://www.eklutna-nsn.gov
Village	Road	688-6021	nve@eklutna-nsn.gov
	Chugiak, AK 99567	(fax)	-
Eklutna,	16515 Centerfield Dr.	696-2828	http://www.eklutnainc.com
Incorporated	#201	696-2845	
	Eagle River, AK 99577	(fax)	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Accessibility The village lies on the highway between Anchorage and Palmer and	
	therefore has ready access to a variety of transportation services in	
	those communities. Two privately-owned airstrips, as well as the Alaska	
	Railroad system, are located in the area.	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Alaska Communications, GCI and Matanuska Telephone	
	Association (MTA)	z
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	19
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet	CA
Provider	service available from Alaska Communications, GCI and MTA.	Ξ
TV Stations		COMMUNICATION
Radio Stations		MC
Cable Provider	GCI.	
Teleconferencing	Chugiak-Eagle River Public Library	
Electricity	Chugach Electric Association and Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel	Gasoline stations in Chugiak and Eagle River.	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Multiple hotels and accommodations available in Eagle River and	
_	Anchorage, AK.	
Water & Sewage	Well and septic systems	
Miscellaneous		

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT				
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	Command Posts would likely be located in Anchorage, AK. Local			
Posts	facilities may be available; contact the Chamber of Commerce			
	(694-4702), Eagle River/Chugiak Parks and Recreation (343-1500),			
Municipality of Anchorage and Anchorage School District (742-				
4000).				

Potential Staging Areas	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response equipment is located in Anchorage.
Equipment	

9770.3.15 – Fox River

	FOX RIVER		
Location and	Fox River is located on the north shore of Kachemak Bay, 24 miles		
Climate	northeast of Homer at the end of East End Road (Latitude		
	59.8616/Longitude -151.0197). Fox River falls within the gulf coast		
	transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere,		
	long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
	* Fox River relies on Homer for many supplies and services. Please refer		
	to the Homer community profile for facilities and services.		
History, Culture, &	Fox River was reported by Dall of the U.S. Geological Survey in 1895		
Demographics	and may have been named for Theodore Fox, Vice President of North		
	Pacific Mining and Transportation Company, which operated in		
	Kachemak Bay in 1894. The population of Fox River frequently		
	commutes to Homer for supplies and services.		
Economy	The school provides employment, and many residents commute to		
	Homer for jobs.		
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.		
Population	644 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)		
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough		
In			
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated		
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)		

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers Anchor Point Trooper Post, 235-8239		
Fire		
Medical Nearest Hospital in Homer: South Peninsula Hospital, 235-8101		

TRANSPORTATION				
Accessibility	East End Road provides access to Homer, which is 17 miles away. The			
	Sterling Highway in Homer provides access to Anchorage and beyond.			
	Homer offers an airport, harbor and docking facilities, and a state ferry			
	landing.			

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Please see the Homer Community Profile for information on facilities, services and		
utilities.		
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI.	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	

Miscellaneous Voznesenka School is a public school in Fox River, Alaska. It has 108 students in grades PK and K-12. (235-8549)

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT				
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)				
Potential Command				
Posts	Posts			
Potential Staging Areas				
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex located in Homer.			
Equipment				

9770.3.16 - Fritz Creek

9770.3.10 - FILLZ CIEE				
	FRITZ CREEK			
Location and	Location Fritz Creek is located 7 miles northeast of Homer, on the north			
Climate	shore of Kachemak Bay, off of East End Road. It lies at the foot of Bald			
	Mountain (Latitude 59.7484/Longitude -151.2778). Fritz Creek falls			
	within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-			
	arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.			
	*Fritz Creek relies on Homer for many supplies and services. Please refer			
	to the Homer community profile for facilities and services.			
History, Culture, &	The local name was first reported in 1904 by R.W. Stone of the U.S.			
Demographics	Geological Survey. Fritz Creek residents rely on Homer for most supplies			
	and services.			
Economy	Nearby Homer offers fishing, fish processing and a relatively diverse			
	economy.			
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.			
Population	2,024 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)			
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough			
In	-			
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated			
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)			

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers Anchor Point Trooper Post, 235-8239		
Fire	Kachemak Emergency Service, 235-9811	
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Homer: South Peninsula Hospital, 235-8101	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	East End Road provides access to Homer, which is 7 miles away. The	
Sterling Highway in Homer provides access to Anchorage and beyond. Homer offers an airport, harbor and docking facilities, and a state ferrillanding.		

FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Please see the Homer Community Profile for information on facilities, services and	
utilities.	

Miscellaneous | Broadband internet and cell phone service is available.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex located in Homer.			
Equipment			

9770.3.17 – Funny River

7770.3.17 – Fullity Kiv	FUNNY RIVER	
Location and Climate	Funny River is located on the Kenai Peninsula, approximately 15 miles east of Soldotna along the Kenai River, from River mile 29 to 45, off of Funny River Road (Latitude 60.4827/Longitude -150.8463). Funny River falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. * Funny River relies on Soldotna for many supplies and services. Please refer to the Soldotna community profile for facilities and services.	
History, Culture, & Demographics	Funny River is the local name of a nearby stream, first published in 1904 by the U.S. Geological Survey. Homesteading and farming expanded to the Funny River area during the late 1950s and early 1960s. Funny River Road originated as a bulldozed trail from Soldotna to the homesteads. A paved road now connects Funny River with Soldotna. The community is primarily non-Native; however, a large portion of the land in this area is owned by Alaska Native corporations (primarily Cook Inlet Region, Inc.)	
Economy	Most Funny River residents who are employed commute to Soldotna, Kenai and Nikiski, where they work in retail businesses or service operations associated with the oil or tourism industries. There are several farms in the area with cattle or pack horses, and one alpaca ranch. Sport fishing is the major attraction in this area of the peninsula.	
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.	
Population	877 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)	
Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough	
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated	
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers	Ninilchik Trooper Post, 567-3660	
Fire	Central Emergency Services, 262-4792	
Medical	Nearest Hospital in Soldotna: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Funny River	35850 Pioneer Access Road		
Chamber of	Soldotna, AK 99669		
Commerce and			
Community			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Soldotna and Kenai airports serve local air traffic. The Sterling	
	Highway provides access to Anchorage and other destinations.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Please see the Soldotna Community Profile for information on facilities, services and		
utilities.		
Miscellaneous	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex located in Kenai.		
Equipment			

9770.3.18 – Girdwood

	GIRDWOOD
Location and	Girdwood is located on Turnagain Arm in the Municipality of
Climate	Anchorage, 35 miles southeast of downtown Anchorage off of the
	Seward Highway. The area is accessed by the Seward Highway.
	Girdwood is bordered on three sides by the Chugach State Park and
	Chugach National Forest (Latitude 60.9417/Longitude -149.1667).
	Girdwood falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a
	semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
	* Girdwood relies on Anchorage for many supplies and services. Please
	refer to the Anchorage community profile for facilities and services.
History, Culture, &	The community was named for James E. Girdwood, who staked a claim
Demographics	at Crow Creek in 1896. The Girdwood post office was established in
	1907. In 1951, the Seward Highway was completed, linking Anchorage
	to the Kenai Peninsula. The City of Girdwood was formed during the
	1960s, but the community was unified with the City of Anchorage and
	the Greater Anchorage Area Borough in 1975. Residents enjoy the rural
	lifestyle of Girdwood. Girdwood is home to the Alyeska Ski Resort. It is
	frequented by Anchorage and Kenai residents during winter months
	and tourists during summer months.
Economy	Local employment includes the school, business, and leisure and
	hospitality services, including the Alyeska Resort. It is Alaska's most

	popular ski resort area. Several artists live in the area. Some residents commute to Anchorage. There are many seasonal-use homes in Girdwood.	
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.	
Population	2,694 (Alaska Population Estimates by Census Tract, July 2013 Estimate)	
Borough Located	Municipality of Anchorage	
In		
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated	
Native Entities	Regional: Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI)	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers	Girdwood Trooper Post, 783-0972 (scheduled for closure in 2016)	
	Anchorage Police Department, 786-8900	
Fire	Girdwood Volunteer Fire & Rescue, 783-2511	
Medical	Girdwood Medical Clinic, (783-1355) 131 Lindblad Avenue, Girdwood,	
	Alaska, 99587Nearest Hospitals in Anchorage: Alaska Regional Hospital	
	(276-1131); Providence Hospital (562-2211); Alaska native Medical	
	Center (563-2662)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Girdwood	P.O. Box 1313		http://www.girdwoodchamber.com/
Chamber of	Girdwood, AK		
Commerce	99587		
Girdwood	P.O. Box 870390	272-8401	
Community	Girdwood, AK	274-3698	
Council	99587	(fax)	
Scott and Wesley	250 Egloff Drive	343-4024	
Gerrish	Girdwood, AK		
Neighborhood	99587		
Library			
Turnagain Times	P.O. Box 1044	783-1135	
(newspaper)	Girdwood, AK	783-1136	
	99587	(fax)	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Accessibility Nearby Anchorage provides a number of transportation options.	
	Girdwood is 38 miles on the Seward highway from Anchorage.	
	Girdwood has a gravel airstrip.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications, GCI	
Wireless and	Cellular phone service coverage is limited in some developed areas	
Internet Service	of the valley. Service available from AT&T, GCI, Verizon. Internet	
Provider	service available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	
TV Stations	See Part III, M. Media	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Radio Stations	Glacier City Radio, KEUL 88.9 FM, 754 2489	
Cable Provider	GCI	
Teleconferencing	Girdwood Public Library	
Electricity	Chugach Electric Association	
Fuel	Fuel is available at the Tesoro gas station located at the intersection of	
	the Seward and Alyeska Highways.	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Alyeska Resort and Hotel	
Water & Sewage	Anchorage Water and Wastewater Utilty	
Miscellaneous	Girdwood Elementary School	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex located in Anchorage.		
Equipment	·		

9770.3.19 – Halibut Cove

7770.3.17 – Halibut C		
	HALIBUT COVE	
Location and	Halibut Cove is in the Kachemak Bay State Park on the Kenai Peninsula. It	
Climate	lies on the south shore of Kachemak Bay, 12 miles across the inlet from	
	the Homer Pit (Latitude 59.5977/Longitude -151.2238). Halibut Cove is	
	located in the Homer Recording District. Halibut Cove falls within the	
	gulf coast maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere,	
	long, cold winters, and mild summers.	
History, Culture, & Demographics	The Cove was named by W.H. Dall of the U.S. Coast & Geodetic Survey in 1880. Between 1911 and 1928, Halibut Cove had 42 herring salteries and	
	a population of over 1,000, according to one resident. From 1928 to	
	1975, the population stayed around 40, mostly fishermen.	
	The contemporary community of Halibut Cove is primarily an artist colony. Several artists live and work in Halibut Cove, attracting visitors and apprentices to their galleries and studios.	
Economy	Seasonal, businesses rely heavily on tourism and many residents are	
	self-employed. In 2010, 13 residents held commercial fishing permits	
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.	
Population	76 (2010 U.S. Census)	
Borough Located	Unorganized	
In		
Incorporation	Unincorporated	
Туре		

EMERGENCY SERVICES

Alaska State	Ninilchik Post (567-2046), Anchor Point Trooper Post (235-8239)
Troopers	
Fire	
Medical	Nearest Hospital: South Peninsula Hospital (235-8586, Homer)

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	Halibut cove is an isolated community accessible only by water (boat or
	float plane). A private ferry service provides the majority of the
	transportation.
Airport Facilities	None identified.
Airline Services	None identified.
Freight	None identified.
Vessel Support:	Halibut Cove has a small boat harbor and dock

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	S
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	NC
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	\T(
TV Stations		/2II
Radio Stations		N N
Cable Provider	None	COMMUNICATIONS
Electricity	Homer Electric Association, Inc., Gerry Willard Generation Plant	lo:
	(Seldovia)	0
Fuel		
Fuel Storage	Tank Owner: / Number of Tanks: / Tank Capacity:	
Housing	Several lodges, B&Bs, and rental cabins	
Water & Sewage	Halibut Cove residents derive water from a central water source or have	
	water delivered. In addition, 20% of homes have individual wells. Hal	f of
	the residences in Halibut Cove are fully plumbed and have individual	
	septic systems, while the other half use outhouses (NOAA, 2011)	
Miscellaneous	The community does not have a landfill, or a refuse collection service	
	established.	
	No public schools identified.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	None identified.	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None identified.	
Local Spill Response	None identified.	
Equipment		

9770.3.20 – Happy Valley

HAPPY VALLEY

Location and Climate	Happy Valley lies on the west coast of the Kenai Peninsula on the Sterling Highway, 22 miles northwest of Homer (Latitude 59.9358/Longitude -151.7372). Happy Valley is located in the Homer Recording District. Happy Valley falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture,	The local name was reported and published by the U.S. Geological
& Demographics	Survey in 1950.
Economy	
	residents work in larger southern Kenai Peninsula communities or
	commute to Alaska's oil regions, and seasonal construction jobs.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	566 (2014, Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough
In	
Incorporation	Unincorporated
Туре	

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
Alaska State	Ninilchik Post (567-2046), Anchor Point Trooper Post (235-8239)
Troopers	
Fire	Anchor Point Volunteer Fire Department and Rescue (235-6700)
Medical	Anchor Point Health Center (226-2238)
	Nearest Hospital in Homer: South Peninsula Hospital (235-8101)

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage. A boat
	launch/retrieval service is available at the mouth of Anchor River.
	Nearby Homer offers an airport, state ferry access, and docking and boat
	launching facilities (See the Homer Community Profile).
Airport Facilities	None identified.
Airline Services	None identified.
Freight	None identified.
Vessel Support:	None identified.

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI.	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	۷S
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	0
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	;AT
	Wi-Fi available at Anchor Point Library.	N
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		M
Cable Provider	Dish, GCI	CC
Electricity	Homer Electric Association, Inc.	

Fuel	Local Gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane (See Ninilchik
	and Anchor Point)
Housing	Several lodges in area. Multiple hotels and accommodations available in
	surrounding communities (See Ninilchik, Anchor Point, and Homer.)
Water & Sewage	The majority of homes use individual water wells and septic tank
	systems. The remainder of residences haul or have water delivered, and
	use privies. 60% of homes are fully plumbed. Many homes in this area
	are only used seasonally.
Miscellaneous	Refuse hauled to the Borough-operated Central Landfill, a class I landfill
	(ADEC # SW1A006-16) in Soldotna. The borough also operates a Transfer
	Station in Homer, which accepts Hazardous wastes, and recycling.
	No schools located in the community.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	None identified	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None identified	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Kenai and	
Equipment	Homer.	

9770.3.21 – City of Homer

	CITY OF HOMER
Location and	Homer is located on the north shore of Kachemak Bay on the
Climate	southwestern Kenai Peninsula. The Homer Spit, a 4.5-mile long bar of
	gravel, extends from the Homer shoreline. It is 227 road miles south of
	Anchorage, at the southern-most point of the Sterling Highway (Latitude
	59.6434/Longitude -151.5555). Homer falls within the gulf coast maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold
	winters, and mild summers. This area lacks prolonged periods of freezing
	weather at low altitudes and is characterized by cloudiness and frequent
	fog. The combination of heavy precipitation and low temperatures at
	high altitudes in the coastal mountains of southern Alaska accounts for
	the numerous mountain glaciers.
History, Culture,	The Homer area has been home to Kenaitze Indians for thousands of
& Demographics	years. In 1895 the U.S. Geological Survey arrived to study coal and gold
	resources. Prospectors bound for Hope and Sunrise disembarked at the
	Homer Spit. The community was named for Homer Pennock, a gold
	mining company promoter, who arrived in 1896, built living quarters for his crew of 50 on the Spit and mined the beach sands along Cook Inlet,
	from Homer to Ninilchik. The Homer post office opened shortly
	thereafter. In 1899, Cook Inlet Coal Fields Company built a town and
	dock on the Spit, a coal mine at Homer's Bluff Point, and a 7-mile-long
	railroad which carried the coal to the end of Homer Spit. Various coal
	mining operations continued until World War I, and settlers continued
	to trickle into the area, some to homestead in the 1930s and 40s, others

1	
	to work in the canneries built to process Cook Inlet fish. Coal provided
	fuel for homes, and there is still an estimated 400 million tons of coal
	deposits in the vicinity of Homer. The City government was incorporated
	in March 1964. After the Good Friday earthquake in 1964, the Homer
	Spit sunk approximately 4 to 6 feet, and several buildings had to be
	relocated. While commercial and sport fishing are the center of the
	economic activity, Homer has a large community of artists.
Economy	Homer is primarily a fishing, fish processing, trade and service center,
	and enjoys a considerable seasonal tourist industry. Approximately 10
	cruise ships dock in Homer each summer. Sport fishing for halibut and
	salmon contributes significantly to the economy. In 2014, 1266 area
	residents held commercial fishing permits. The fish dock is equipped
	with cold storage facilities, ice manufacturing, and a vacuum fish-loading
	system. The Alaska Islands and Ocean Visitor Center is popular for
	tourism and also serves as the headquarters for the Alaska Maritime
	National Wildlife Refuge and Kachemak Bay National Estuarine Research
	Reserve. The National Park Service maintains a regional office.
	Government and health care are major employers. During summer
	months, the population swells with tourists, as well as students and
	others seeking fishery employment.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	5,003 (2010 U.S. Census)
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough
ln	•
Incorporation	1 st Class City
Туре	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police Department	235-3150	
Alaska State	Anchor Point Post (235-8239)	
Troopers		
Fire	Homer Volunteer Fire Department (235-3155); Kachemak Emergency	
	Services (235-9811)	
Medical	Multiple health clinics in community. Nearest Hospital: South Peninsula	
	Hospital (235-8586, Homer)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL	
City of Homer	491 East Pioneer Ave.	235-8121	http://www.cityofho	
	Homer AK 99603	235-3143 (fax)	mer-ak.gov/	
Chamber of	201 Sterling Hwy	235-7740	http://www.homeral	
Commerce	Homer, AK 99603	235-8766 (fax)	aska.org/	
Port Of Homer	4311 Freight Dock	907-235-3160	http://www.cityofho	
	Rd.	235-3152 (fax)	mer-ak.gov/port	
	Homer, AK 99603		- '	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL	
Kachemak Bay Research Reserve	95 Sterling Hwy, Ste. 2 Homer, AK 99603	235-6377/4799 235-4794 (fax)	http://www.adfg.alas ka.gov/index.cfm?adf g=kbrr.home	
	3977 Lake Street Homer, AK 99603	235-8551 235-3313 (fax)	http://www.homerel ectric.com/	

	TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Homer is accessible by the Sterling Highway to Anchorage, Fairbanks,		
	Canada and the lower 48 states. It is often referred to as "The End of the		
	Road," because it lies at the terminus of the Sterling Highway.		
Airport Facilities	The State owns and operates the Homer Airport, with a 6,700- foot		
	asphalt runway and float plane basin, and a seaplane base at Beluga		
	Lake. There are four additional private landing strips in the vicinity.		
Airline Services	Numerous air services, including, but not limited to: Ravn Alaska;		
	Kachemak Air Service; Bald Mountain Air; Beluga Lake Float Plane		
	Service;; Maritime Helicopters; Stellar Air; Smokey Bay Air; Emerald Air		
	Service		
Freight	Air, vessel, truck		
Vessel Support:	The deep-water dock can accommodate 30-foot drafts, and 340-foot		
	vessels. There is a boat harbor with moorage for 750 vessels, and a 5-		
	lane boat launch ramp. The Alaska Marine Highway and local ferry		
	services provide water transportation.		

FACILITIES & UTILITIES			
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	S	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	Ž C	
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	Ĭ	
Provider	from Alaska communications and GCI	2	
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS	
Radio Stations			
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	Į į	
Teleconferencing)	
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association. Homer Electric Assoc. operates		
	the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Plant and is part owner of the Alaska		
	Electric Generation & Transmission Cooperative, which operates a gas		
	turbine plant in Soldotna. It also purchases electricity from Chugach		
	Electric.		
Fuel	Local Gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane		
Housing	Numerous hotels, lodges, B&B's, and rental properties. Locations		
	include, but are not limited to: Land's End Resort; Best Western		
	Bidarka Inn; Driftwood Inn & RV Park; Alaska's Pioneer Inn; Bay View		
	Inn; Heritage Hotel-Lodge; Tutka Bay Lodge; Seaside Farms; Ocean		

	Shores Motel; Billikin; numerous B&Bs Homer Spit Campground/RV			
	Park; Land's End RV Park; Ocean View RV park; Island Watch B&B			
Water & Sewage	Over 90% of homes are fully plumbed. Water is supplied by a dam and			
	35-acre reservoir at Bridge Creek, is treated, stored in a five 100,000-			
	gallon tank, and piped to the majority of homes in the City. The system			
	provides 2 million gallons per day. Others residents use individual wells			
	or have water delivered to home tanks. City sewage is piped to a deep			
	shaft sewer treatment plant; capacity is 1.4 million gallons per day.			
Miscellaneous	Refuse is collected by Alaska Waste, a private firm, and hauled to the			
	Borough-operated Central Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A006-			
	16). The borough also operates a Transfer Station in Homer, which			
	accepts Hazardous wastes, and recycling.			
	Eight schools are located in the community, attended by approximately			
	1,383 students.			

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT				
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	Contact City of Homer for available facilities			
Posts				
Potential Staging Areas	Airport, and other government facilities.			
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Kenai and			
Equipment	Homer			
	CISPRI maintains a response equipment depot in Homer and a sea			
	otter rehabilitation facility in Seldovia. Add- Seldovia to the ADEC			
	connex locations. Seldovia maintains a volunteer oil spill response			
	organization with trained responders and equipment.			

7770.3.22 – Hope	НОРЕ
Location and Climate	Hope lies on the northern end of the Kenai Peninsula, on the south shore of the Turnagain Arm of Cook Inlet. The community lies on the 17-mile Hope Highway, northwest of the Sterling Highway, near the mouth of Resurrection Creek (Latitude 60.916/Longitude -149.633) Hope is located in the Seward Recording District. Hope falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, & Demographics	"Hope City" was a mining camp for Resurrection Creek, established in 1896; the Hope post office began operating in 1897. Portions of the town were destroyed in the 1964 earthquake. There are two community associations. Many of the homes are vacation or weekend get-a-ways for Anchorage and Kenai residents. Tourism peaks in the summer.
Economy	The school and local retail businesses provide the only employment in Hope. Some mining activities continue today. A small sawmill is used by the community.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	196 (2014 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough
In	
Incorporation	Unincorporated
Туре	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Alaska State	Cooper Landing Post (595-1233)	
Troopers		
Fire	Hope/ Sunrise Volunteer Fire Department (782-3436)	
Medical	Nearest Hospitals: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404, Soldotna);	
	Providence Seward Medical and Care Center (224-5205, Seward)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAI			
Post Office	19059 Logman Ln	782-3352	
	Hope AK,99605	782-3747 (fax)	
Hope Community	18487 A Avenue	782-3121	
Library	Hope, AK 99605	235-8766 (fax)	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility		
	Anchorage and the Kenai area offer a variety of transportation services.	
Airport Facilities	A state-owned 2,000-foot long by 90-foot wide gravel airstrip is	
	available.	
Airline Services	None identified.	
Freight	Truck	

Vessel Support: None identified.

FACILITIES & UTILITIES				
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	S		
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NC		
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI.	Ĭ		
Provider		2		
TV Stations				
Radio Stations		COMMUNICATIONS		
Cable Provider	None.	Į į		
Teleconferencing				
Electricity	Chugach Electric Association			
Fuel	Gas stations in nearby communities with gasoline, diesel and propane			
	(See Cooper Landing and Girdwood).			
Housing	Several privately-owned campgrounds, lodges, and B&Bs			
Water & Sewage	Approximately one-fourth of homes use individual water wells and			
	septic tank systems, and are fully plumbed. The school operates its			
	own well water system. Many homes in this area are used only			
	seasonally.			
Miscellaneous	Refuse hauled to the Borough-operated Central Landfill, a class I lan			
	(ADEC # SW1A006-16). The borough operates a transfer site in Hope,			
	which accepts household wastes, and recycling.			
	One school in the community, attended by approximately 22 stude	nts.		

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	None-Identified	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	Contact privately-owned campgrounds.	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Kenai, Seward,	
Equipment	and Anchorage	

9770.3.23 – Houston

	HOUSTON
Location and	Houston is located north of Wasilla in the Mat-Su Borough, 29 miles
Climate	north of Anchorage. It lies on the George Parks Highway, at mile 174.9
	of the Alaska Railroad (Latitude 61.633/Longitude -149.833). Houston
	is located in the Palmer Recording District. Houston falls within the
	transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere,
	long, cold winters, and mild summers. Winds are frequently lower than
	the Palmer/Wasilla area, with daily averages ranging from 0 to 6 mph.
History, Culture, &	Herning Trail (now Willow Creek Sled Trail) was used for freighting
Demographics	supplies to the Willow Creek Mining District. "Houston Siding" was first
	listed on a blueprint map of the Alaska Railroad in 1917. A railroad spur
	was constructed to the Janios & Athens coal mine, which supplied coal

Economy	to Anchorage and the LaTouche Mining Co. in Prince William Sound. In the mid-1920s, the Heaven brothers operated a mink farm at mile 60. In 1953-54, gravels roads and power lines were extended west of Wasilla, and Houston was quickly settled. In 1966, Houston became an incorporated city. In June 1996, the "Miller's Reach" wildfire destroyed more than 37,500 acres in the Houston and Big Lake area, including 433 buildings and homes valued at \$8.9 million. Houston is home to a number of popular recreation sites, including Bonnie Lake, Finger Lake and Long Lake. There are several community organizations, such as Mid-Valley Seniors and the Homesteaders Community Center. Residents are employed in the nearby Wasilla/Palmer area, and some commute to Anchorage. In 2009, one resident held a commercial
	fishing permit. Houston is a popular fishing center for anglers on the Little Susitna River and area lakes, and there are businesses that perform hospitality services
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	1,965 (2014 DCCED Commissioner Certified Figure)
Borough Located In	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
Incorporation Type	2nd Class City

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Alaska State		
Troopers		
Fire	Houston Volunteer Fire Department (892-6457); Mat-Su Borough	
	Emergency Services, Ambulance (861-8123, Willow)	
Medical	Nearest Hospitals: Mat-Su Regional Medical Center (861-6620, Palmer),	
	Providence Alaska Medical Center (212.3111, Anchorage), Alaska	
	Regional Hospital (276-1131, Anchorage)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
City of Houston	P.O. Box 940027	892-6869	http://www.houston-
	Houston AK, 99694	892-7677 (fax)	ak.gov/
Chamber of	P.O. Box 356	892-6812	http://www.houston
Commerce	Houston, AK 99603	892-6813 (fax)	<u>akchamber.com</u>
	TRANSPO	PRTATION	
Accessibility		Houston is accessible by the Parks Highway to	
		Anchorage and beyond	
Airport Facilities		A privately-owned turf airstrip	
Airline Services		None identified.	
Freight Tru		Truck	
Vessel Support: None identified.			

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	S
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NC
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	\TI
Provider	from Alaska communications and GCI	/3
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		Į₽
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	ő
Teleconferencing		0
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel	Local Gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane	
Housing	Several privately-owned campgrounds, lodges, and B&Bs	
Water & Sewage	60% of residents have individual wells, septic tanks, and complete	
	plumbing. The school uses its own well water system. The remainder	
	haul water and use outhouses. A number of homes in this area are	
	used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	, · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	(ADEC # SW1A007-20) in Palmer. The borough also operates a Tran	nsfer
	Station in Willow which accepts Hazardous wastes, and recycling.	
	Two schools in the community, attended by approximately 117	
	students.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	None identified.	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None identified.	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Sutton and	
Equipment	Wasilla	

9770.3.24 – Jakolof Bay

	JAKOLOF BAY
Location and	Jakolof Bay is on the Kenai Peninsula, in the Kachemak Bay State Park,
Climate	6.5 miles northeast of Seldovia (Latitude 59.4659/Longitude -
	151.5378). Jakolof Bay is located in the Seldovia Recording District.
	Jakolof Bay falls within the gulf coast maritime climate zone,
	characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild
	summers.
History, Culture, &	The local name was first reported in 1915 by the U.S. Geological Survey.
Demographics	Jakolof Bay is connected by road with Seldovia but neither community
	is otherwise accessible by road to the outside world.
Economy	Local businesses and timber provide the majority of employment.
	Oyster farming occurs in the area. A university research center is
	located nearby as well.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	40 (2000 census)

Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police Department	None.	
Alaska State	Ninilchik Post (567-3660)	
Troopers		
Fire	Homer Volunteer Fire Department (235-3155); Kachemak Emergency	
	Services (235-9811)	
Medical	Nearest hospitals: South Peninsula Hospital (235-8586, Homer); Central	
	Peninsula Hospital (714-4404, Soldotna)	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Limited access by air or sea (See Seldovia)	
Airport Facilities	An 1,000- feet long by 35-feet wide public gravel airstrip along beach	
	(tidal affected)	
Airline Services	None-identified	
Freight	Various water taxi services to and from Homer and Seldovia	
Vessel Support:	Small dock	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	S
Wireless and	Cell phone service is available. Cellular service available from	NC I
Internet Service	AT&T, GCI.	I
Provider		/3
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		¥
Cable Provider	None.	Ö
Teleconferencing		0
Electricity	Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	See Seldovia	
Housing	Several privately-owned campgrounds, lodges, and B&Bs. See Seldo	ovia.
Water & Sewage	The majority of homes haul water and use privies. A few residents	have
	individual wells and septic systems. One-third of homes are fully	
	plumbed. Many homes in this area are used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	No waste or refuse services (See Seldovia).	
	No state - operated schools reported	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command None identified		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None identified.	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Homer, Kenai,	
Equipment	and Seldovia	

9770.3.25 – Kachemak

	КАСНЕМАК
Location and	Kachemak is on the East Road, adjacent to Homer, on the Kenai
Climate	Peninsula. It is on the northern shore of Kachemak Bay (Latitude
	59.6771/Longitude -151.4199). Kachemak is located in the Homer
	Recording District. Kachemak falls within the gulf coast maritime
	climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold winters,
	and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	According to W.H. Dall of the U.S. Coast & Geodetic Survey, "Ka" means
Demographics	water, "chek" means cliff, and "mak" is a suffix meaning high, great or
	large. It is a Native name, first published in 1847 on a Russian
	Hydrological chart. The city was incorporated in 1961.
Economy	Nearby Homer offers a variety of employment opportunities. There are
	few businesses within the city boundaries; supplies and services are
	provided by Homer.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	483
Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough
Incorporation Type	2 nd Class City

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
Police Department	235-3150 (contract)
Alaska State	Anchor Point Post (235 8239)
Troopers	
Fire	Homer Volunteer Fire Department (235-3155, contract); Kachemak
	Emergency Services (235-9811)
Medical	Nearest hospitals: South Peninsula Hospital (235-8586, Homer); Central
	Peninsula Hospital (714-4404, Soldotna)

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
City of Kachemak	P.O. Box 958	253-8897	kachemak@xyz.net
	Homer AK 99603	235-8854	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage and beyond.	
	Nearby, Homer offers an airport, harbor/dock, and State Ferry access.	
Airport Facilities	See Homer	
Airline Services	See Homer	
Freight	Air, vessel, truck	
Vessel Support:	See Homer	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	ပ

Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	
Provider	from Alaska communications and GCI	
TV Stations		
Radio Stations		
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	
Teleconferencing	Alaska Communications, and GCI	
Electricity	Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	Local Gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane	
Fuel Storage	See Homer.	
Housing	Several lodges and B&Bs (See Homer).	
Water & Sewage	Residents haul water, have water delivered to home storage tanks, or	r
	have individual wells and/or cisterns. The City of Homer provides som	
	homes with piped sewer, and the remainder use individual septic tank	
	systems or privies. Approximately 75% of households are fully	
	plumbed. Some homes in this area are used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	Refuse is collected by Alaska Waste, a private firm, and hauled to the	
	Borough-operated Central Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A006-	
	16) in Soldotna. The borough also operates a Transfer Station in	
	Homer, which accepts Hazardous wastes, and recycling.	
	Two schools in the community, attended by approximately 527 students.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command See Homer		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	See Homer	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Homer, Kenai,	
Equipment	and Seldovia	

9770.3.26 – Kalifornsky

	KALIFORNSKY
Location and	Kalifornsky is located on the Kenai Peninsula on the east shore of Cook
Climate	Inlet. This area lies on Kalifornsky Beach Road, and is not locally
	considered a community. It lies off the Sterling Highway, 10 miles south
	of the City of Kenai (Latitude 60.4866/ Longitude -151.1426).
	Kalifornsky is located in the Kenai Recording District. Kalifornsky falls
	within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-
	arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	The village of Kalifonsky was first noted in 1916 by the U.S. Coast and
Demographics	Geodetic Survey. The family name "Kalifornsky" is attributed to a
	Dena'ina Indian who worked at the Fort Ross colony in California
	between 1812 and the 1820s; "Kali" means fishermen. Peter
	Kalifornsky, now deceased, was born in the village and was the last
	fluent speaker of the Lower Cook Inlet dialect of the Dena'ina language.

Economy	Nearby Kenai and Soldotna offer a variety of employment opportunities. Kalifornsky Beach Road is well-traveled by Kenai River sport fishing enthusiasts. The economy of the area is diverse: oil and gas processing, timber, commercial and sport fishing, government, retail businesses and tourism-related services provide employment.
Subsistence	
Population	8,534 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough
Incorporation Type	CDP

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police		
Department		
Alaska State	Soldotna Post (262-4453)	
Troopers		
Fire	Borough Central Emergency Services (CES) (262-4792/4453)	
Medical	Nearest Hospital: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404, Soldotna)	

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage and beyond.	
Airport Facilities	See Kenai and Soldotna	
Airline Services	See Kenai and Soldotna	
Freight	Air, vessel, truck	
Vessel Support:	See Kenai and Soldotna	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	
Wireless and	d Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	
Internet Service	e service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	
Provider	from Alaska communications and GCI	
TV Stations		
Radio Stations		COMMUNICATION
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	00
Teleconferencing	Alaska Communications, and GCI	
Electricity	Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	Local Gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane	
Fuel Storage	See Kenai and Soldotna	
Housing	Several lodges and B&Bs (See Kenai and Soldotna).	
Water & Sewage	All homes are connected to individual water wells and septic tank systems and are fully plumbed. The schools also have well systems. Many houses in this area are used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	, ,	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	See Kenai or Soldotna		
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas	See Kenai or Soldotna		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Homer, Kenai,		
Equipment	and Seldovia		

9770.3.27 - Kasilof

	KASILOF
Location and Climate	Kasilof is located on the east shore of Cook Inlet on the Kenai Peninsula. It lies on the Sterling Highway, 12 miles south of the City of Kenai (Latitude 60.3249/Longitude -151.2568). Kasilof is located in the Kenai Recording District. Kasilof falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, & Demographics	Kasilof was an agricultural settlement of Kenaitze Indians, which grew around a stockade built by the Russian Kolomin of the Lebedef-Lastochkin Company. A partial excavation of the area in 1937 found 31 well-preserved houses. Kasilof is a geographic location on the Kenai Peninsula, rather than a community. Most residents now are non-Native.
Economy	The economy of the Kenai area is diverse: oil and gas processing, timber, commercial and sport fishing, government, retail businesses and tourism-related services provide employment. In 2009, 122 Kasilof residents held commercial fishing permits.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	560 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough
<u>In</u>	ODD
Incorporation	CDP
Туре	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police Department	None.	
Alaska State	Soldotna Post (262-4453)	
Troopers		
Fire	Borough Central Emergency Services (CES) Fire/Rescue/EMT (262-	
	4792/4453)	
Medical	Multiple clinics in nearby communities (See Kenai, Soldotna, Homer)	
	Nearest Hospital: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404, Soldotna)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL		WEBSITE/EMAIL
Cohoe/Kasilof	P.O. Box 592		
Community Council,	Kasilof AK 99610		
Inc.			
Public Library	PO Box 176	PO Box 176 260-3959 http://kasile	
	Kasilof, AK 99610	rary.org/	
Post Office	23758 Kalifornsky 262-7458 <u>http://w</u>		http://www.uspspost
	Beach Rd <u>offices.</u>		offices.com/ak/kasilo
	Kasilof, AK 99610		<u>f/kasilof</u>
Kasilof Regional	P.O. Box 3	262-2999	http://www.kasilofhi
Historic Association	Kasilof, AK 99610 <u>storicalsociet</u>		storicalsociety.org/
Tustamena 200	P.O. Box 220 394-1318 http://tustum		http://tustumena200
	Kasilof, AK 99610		<u>.com/</u>

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage and beyond.	
Airport Facilities	The State owns and operates the 2,165-foot gravel airstrip, and there	
	are three additional private airstrips in the vicinity. See Kenai and	
	Soldotna	
Airline Services	See Kenai and Soldotna	
Freight	Air, truck	
Vessel Support:	There is a boat launch at the Kasilof River. See Kenai, Soldotna, and	
	Homer	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	
Provider	from Alaska communications and GCI	
TV Stations		COMMUNICATION
Radio Stations		⋛
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	l O
Teleconferencing	Alaska Communications, and GCI	
Electricity	Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	Local Gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane	
Fuel Storage	See Kenai, Soldotna, and Homer	
Housing	Several lodges and B&Bs (See Kenai, Soldotna, Homer).	
Water & Sewage	The majority of homes use individual water wells and septic tanks and	
	are fully plumbed. The school operated its own well water and	
	treatment system.	
Miscellaneous	Borough-operated Central Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A006-	
	16) in Soldotna. The borough also operates a refuse transfer site is	
	available at mile 110.4 Sterling Highway in Kasilof. The landfill also	
	accepts Hazardous wastes, and recycling	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
	There is one school located in the community, attended by 181 students	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	Potential Command See Kenai and Soldotna		
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas	See Kenai and Soldotna		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Homer and		
Equipment Kenai			

9770.3.28 - City of Kenai

	181
	CITY OF KENAI
Location and Climate	Kenai is located on the Kenai Spur Highway along the western coast of the Kenai Peninsula, fronting Cook Inlet, and on the western boundary of the Kenai National Wildlife Refuge. It is approximately 65 air miles and 155 highway miles southwest of Anchorage via the Sterling Highway (Latitude 60.5537/Longitude -151.2546).
	Kenai falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, & Demographics	Prior to Russian settlement, Kenai was a Dena'ina Athabascan Indian village. Russian fur traders first arrived in 1741, at which time, about 1,000 Dena'ina lived in the village of Shk'ituk't, near the River, and the traders called the people "Kenaitze," or "Kenai people." In 1791, a fortified Russian trading post, Fort St. Nicholas, was constructed for fur and fish trading, the second permanent Russian settlement in Alaska. In 1849, the Holy Assumption Russian Orthodox Church was established. A post office was established in 1899. Through the 1920s, commercial fishing was the primary activity. In 1940, homesteading enabled the area to develop. The first dirt road from Anchorage was constructed in 1951. In 1957, oil was discovered at Swanson River, 20 miles northeast of Kenai - the first major Alaska oil strike. The city was incorporated in 1960. In 1965, offshore oil discoveries in Cook Inlet fueled a period of rapid growth. Kenai has been a growing center for oil exploration, production and services since that time. Alaska Natives represent 12% of the population; a federally recognized tribe is located in the
Economy	community – the Kenaitze Indian Tribe. In 1965, offshore oil discoveries in Cook Inlet fueled a period of rapid
Leonomy	growth. Kenai has been a growing center for the oil and gas industry since that time, providing services and supplies for Cook Inlet's oil and natural gas drilling and exploration. Tesoro Alaska's oil refining operations and the now-closed Unocal urea plant are located in north Kenai. Both in-state and out-of-state visitors, especially for sport fishing along the Kenai River, provide a significant tourism industry. Other

	important economic sectors include sport, subsistence and commercial fishing, fish processing, timber and lumber harvesting, agriculture, transportation services, construction and retail trade. Approximately 222 area residents hold commercial fishing permits. The largest employers are the borough school district, Peak Oilfield Services, Tesoro Alaska, the borough, and Central Peninsula General Hospital. Logging of spruce bark beetle-killed timber is a growing industry in the area.	
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.	
Population	7,229 (2015 DCCED Commissioner Certified Figure)	
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough	
In		
Incorporation Type	Home Rule City	
Native Entities	Regional:	Cook Inlet Region, Inc.
	Profit:	CIRI Inc.
	Village:	Kenai Natives Association

	EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police Department	City Police Department (283-7879)		
Alaska State	Soldotna Detachment (283-8590)		
Troopers			
Fire			
	9811) Civil Air Patrol; Borough Central Emergency Services (CES)		
	Fire/Rescue/EMT (262-4792/4453)		
Medical	Multiple clinics within community		
	Nearest Hospital: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404, Soldotna)		

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
City of Kenai	210 Fidalgo Ave, #	283-7535	www.ci.kenai.ak.us
	200	283-3014 (fax)	
	Kenai AK, 99611		
Chamber of	402 Overland	283-7978	info@kenaichamber.
Commerce	Kenai AK 99611	283-2230 (fax)	org
			www.kenaichamber.
			org
Visitor and	11471 Kenai Spur	283-1991	www.visitkenai.com/
Convention Bureau	Hwy.,	283-2230 (fax)	
	Kenai AK, 99611		
Kenai Natives	215 Fidalgo Ave,	283-4851	
Association	#203	283-4854 (fax)	
	Kenai AK 99611		
Kenaitze Indian Tribe	P.O.Box 988	283-3633	www.kenaitze.org/
	Kenai AK, 99611	283-3052 (fax)	
Peninsula Clarion	P.O. Box 3009	283-3633	www.peninsulaclario
(newspaper)	Kenai AK 99611	283-3052 (fax)	<u>n.com</u>

	TRANSPORTATION
Accessibility	Homer is accessible by the Sterling Highway to Anchorage and beyond.
Airport Facilities	The City-owned Kenai Municipal Airport provides a 7,575' asphalt
	runway, a 1,000' turf strip, a float plane strip, and helicopter service. A
	Flight Service Station is available. Float plane facilities are also available
	at Island Lake and Arness Lake. There are five additional privately-
	owned airstrips in the vicinity.
Airline Services	Numerous air services, including, but not limited to: Ravn Alaska; Grant
	Aviation; Southcentral Air (freight); Alaska West Air; Justin Tyme Air
	Service; Kenai Air Alaska; Kenai Aviation; White's Air Service; 4W Air
Freight	Air, truck
Vessel Support:	The Kenai City Dock and boat ramp are located near the mouth of the
	Kenai River. There are also a number of private commercial fish
	processing docks, but no boat moorage.

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Alaska Communications, and GCI	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NS
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	0
Provider	from Alaska communications and GCI	CAI
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		M
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	M
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network; Kenai Peninsula Legislative	\mathcal{S}
	Information Office	
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association.	
Fuel	Gasoline and diesel	
Housing	Numerous hotels, Lodges, and B&Bs. Including, but not limited to:	
	Katmai Hotel; Kenai King's Inn; Uptown Motel; Kenai Merit Inn;	
	Harborside Cottages; Alicia's Eagle Rock Lodge; Daniels Lake Lodge;	
	Tanglewood B&B Summit Lake Lodge; Overland RV Park; Betty's RV	/
	Park; Beluga Lookout RV Park	
Water & Sewage	Water is supplied by three artesian wells, is treated and piped to 75	
	of households. A fourth well is under construction. Sewage is piped	land
	receives secondary treatment. The remaining 25% of households u	ıse
	individual water wells and septic systems.	
Miscellaneous	Refuse is collected by Alaska Waste, a private firm, and hauled to the	
	Borough-operated Central Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A00	ე6-
	16) in Soldotna. The borough also operates a Transfer Station, whi	ch
	accepts Hazardous wastes, and recycling.	
	There are 5 schools located in the community, attended by	
	approximately 1,963 students.	
	Natural gas from Enstar is primarily used for home heating purpose	es .

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Contact City of Kenai for available facilities	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	Airport, and other government facilities.	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Kenai and	
Equipment	Homer	

9770.3.29 – Kenai Peninsula Borough

9770.3.29 – Keriai Feri	KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH
Location and	The Kenai Peninsula Borough is comprised of the Kenai Peninsula, Cook
Climate	Inlet, and a large unpopulated area northeast of the Alaska Peninsula. The borough includes portions of the Chugach National Forest, Kenai National Wildlife Refuge, Kenai Fjords National Park, and portions of the Lake Clark and Katmai National Park. The twin cities of Kenai and Soldotna are the population centers of the borough, approximately 65 air miles south of Anchorage.
	The Kenai Peninsula Borough is split between the transitional and maritime climate zones. The region experiences cold winters and a drier, transitional climate toward the western end, and a strong maritime influence on its eastern end.
History, Culture, &	The Kenaitze Indians (Dena'ina) have occupied the Peninsula
Demographics	historically. The City of Kenai was founded in 1791 as a Russian fur trading post. In the early 1900s cannery operations and construction of
	the railroad spurred development. The Kenai Peninsula was the site of
	the first major Alaska oil strike, in 1957, and has been a center for
	exploration and production since that time. The borough was
	incorporated as a second-class borough in 1964. The Kenai River is a
	major sport fishing location for both state residents and tourists. The
	river is world renowned for trophy king and silver salmon, so the Peninsula is well-traveled by sportsmen during summer months.
Economy	The borough economy is diverse. Off-shore oil and gas production in
Zoonomy	Cook Inlet and downstream production primarily take place north of
	Kenai. In-state, out-of-state, and overseas travelers visit the Kenai
	Peninsula for sport fishing and other recreational activities. Other
	important economic sectors include commercial fishing and fish
	processing. In 2009, 1,407 borough residents held commercial fishing permits, which allow fishing for salmon, cod, halibut, and other species.
	Retail centers have developed in the Soldotna, Kenai, Homer, and
	Seward areas.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	57,763 (2015 DCCED Commissioner Certified Figure)
Borough Located	N/A
<u>In</u>	
Incorporation Type	Second Class Borough
Native Entities	See individual communities for Native Entities

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police Department	Some local communities (Kenai, Soldotna, etc.) have local police	
	departments, all other areas of the borough are covered by the	
	Department of Public Safety via several AST posts.	
Alaska State	Soldotna Detachment (262-4453)	
Troopers		
Fire	Borough Central Emergency Services (CES) Fire/Rescue/EMT (262-4792)	
	See individual communities within the borough for additional	
	information	
Medical	Multiple clinics within community as well as hospitals located in Homer,	
	Seward, and Soldotna. See additional information listed under these	
	communities for additional information.	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Kenai Peninsula	144 N. Binkley Street	262-4441	jblankenship@kpb.us
Borough	Soldotna AK, 99669	262-1892 (fax)	
Kenai Peninsula	144 N. Binkley Street	714-2160	http://www.kpb.us/a
Borough Assembly	Soldotna AK, 99669	714-2388 (fax)	ssembly-clerk
_			jblankenship@kpb.us

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Most communities within the borough are accessible by the Sterling	
	Highway to Anchorage and points beyond. These same communities	
	and most others are also accessible by air and/or water through	
	numerous airports harbors and other private docks.	
Airport Facilities	See individual communities for airport information	
Airline Services	Scheduled and charter small plane, airlines, and helicopter services are	
	available.	
Freight	Air, truck, water	
Vessel Support:	The State Ferry serves Homer	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Numerous hard lined and cellular companies provide service	
	across the borough.	S
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NC
Internet Service	service available from AT&T and GCI among others.	\TI(
Provider		/2
TV Stations		S
Radio Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	lo:
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network; Kenai Peninsula Legislative	0
	Information Office	
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association, Chugach Electric Association	n,
	and others including private generation.	
Fuel	Gasoline, diesel, propane	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES
Fuel Storage	The borough has small fuel tanks servicing buildings and schools in
	areas where natural gas is not available. See individual communities
	for additional information.
Housing	
	communities for additional information.
Water & Sewage	Public and/or private water supplies and sewage are available across
	most of the borough.
Miscellaneous	The borough operates the Central Peninsula Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A006-16) near Soldotna. The borough also operates several transfer station. The Central Peninsula Borough Landfill accepts Hazardous wastes on specified days, and also provides for recycling wastes.
	There are 43 schools located in the community, attended by approximately 9,150 students.
	Natural gas provided to portions of the borough is a primary source of heat in areas where available.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Contact Kenai Peninsula Borough or local communities for		
Posts	available facilities.		
Potential Staging Areas	Airport, and other government facilities.		
Local Spill Response	Emergency response equipment owned by CISPRI is located at and		
Equipment			
	are held by several companies and cities within the borough.		
	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations are in Seward,		
	Homer, and near Soldotna.		

9770.3.30 – Knik-Fairview

	KNIK-FAIRVIEW
	Formerly Knik, and not to be confused with Knik River
Location and	Knik-Fairview is on the northwest bank of the Knik Arm of Cook Inlet, 37
Climate	road miles northwest of Anchorage in the Mat-Su Borough. It lies south
	of Wasilla, Big Lake and Meadow Lakes, off of Knik-Goose Bay Road and
	Fairview Loop Road (Latitude 61.5169/Longitude -149.59373). Knik-
	Fairview falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a
	semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	Knik is a Dena'ina (Tanaina) Athabascan Indian name meaning "fire,"
Demographics	which originally applied to several villages at the head of Cook Inlet. A
	Russian Orthodox mission was in Knik as early as 1835. The primary
	village was listed as "Kinik" in the 1880 U.S. Census. Gold found in
	Interior Alaska in 1908 brought prospectors and supplies to disembark
	at Knik. Construction of the Iditarod Trail brought mail from Knik to
	Nome and shipments of gold by dog team to meet the boat at Knik. At
	its peak between 1913 and 1915, the town was home to 500 people
	during the summer and 1,000 during the winter. For a while, more

	Dena'ina lived in Knik than did white settlers and miners. When the Alaska Railroad bypassed Knik in 1915, most residents relocated to Anchorage and Wasilla. Camp 13 of the Matanuska Colony, with 6 farms, was established along Fairview Road in 1935. Land was also homesteaded by veterans after World War II and the Korean War. Most of the historic docks and commercial district were destroyed in the 1960s when Knik-Goose Bay Road was constructed. This community is relatively large, with 6,146 total housing units as of July 1, 2015. Knik, a check-point for the Iditarod Sled Dog Race, is called the "Dog Mushing Center of the World." High-school students are bused to Wasilla. Low housing costs, the semi-rural lifestyle, and a tolerable commute to Anchorage have supported new growth in this portion of the Mat-Su Valley.
Fconomy	59% of residents (6,683) employed in 2014. 84% employed in private
Economy	
	sector, 9% local government.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	17,617 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated (Census Designated Place)
Native Entities	Regional: None

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Alaska State Trooper Post (745-2131)	
Fire	Borough Fire Department	
Medical	Auxiliary health care provided by Valley Hospital clinic in Wasilla (352-	
	2888) or hospital in Palmer (746-8600) or Anchorage Hospitals. Local	
	emergency service is provided by volunteers.	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Knikatnu,	P.O. Box 872130,	376-2845	knikcorp@gci.net
Incorporated	Wasilla, AK 99687	376-2847 (fax)	
(Village Corporation)			
Knik Tribal Council	P.O. Box 877885,	373-7991	kniktribe@matonline
(Village Council)	Wasilla, AK 99687	373-2161 (fax)	.net
Friends of Old Knik	HC 30 Box 5480-B,	373-2161	
	Knik, AK 99654		
Knik-Fairview	P.O. Box	376-7056 (William	KFCC@pobox.mtaonl
Community Council	877291,Wasilla, AK	Johnson)	ine.net
(Non-Profit	99687-7476		
Corporation)			

TRANSPORTATION

Accessibility	The George Parks Highway, Glenn Highway, and other local roads
	connect the area to Anchorage, the remainder of the state, and
	Canada. The Alaska Railroad serves the Fairbanks to Seward route. The
	Wasilla and Palmer airports provide scheduled commuter and air taxi
	services. Float planes land at Wasilla Lake, Jacobsen Lake, and Lake
	Lucille. There are ten additional private airstrips in the vicinity.
	Commercial jet flights are operated out of Anchorage International
	Airport.

FACILITIES & UTILITIES			
Telephone	Matanuska Telephone Association		
Wireless and	Available		
Internet Service			
Provider		NS	
TV Stations	Kakm, Ktuu, Kimo, Ktva, Kyes, K25fm, K27fj, K50ep, K39ep,	COMMUNICATIONS	
	K43EY, K44EQ, K46EN, K49EE, K52FI, K53FN, K63FT, K64FA,	SAT	
	K65GM, K67GT, K68FF	ž	
Radio Stations	AM Stations: KENI, KFQD, KBYR, KTZN, KUDO, KHAR, KSLD, KCHU,	MU	
	KJNP, KSRM, KBBI, KGTL, KIAM	⅀	
	FM Stations: KFAT, KRPM, KNIK, KGOT, KASH, KQEZ, KNBA, KSKA,	00	
	KEAG, KDBZ, KWHL, KYMG, KRUA, KATB, KAFC		
Cable Provider			
Teleconferencing			
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association		
Fuel	None identified.		
Fuel Storage	None identified.		
Housing	Unknown		
Water & Sewage	Unknown		
Miscellaneous	The borough operates the Palmer Matanuska-Susitna Borough Cen Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A001-16). The borough also operates several transfer station. The borough landfill accepts hazardous wastes.	tral	
	There are 2 schools located in the community, attended by approximately 914 students.		

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response			
Equipment			

9770.3.31 – Lazy Mountain

LAZY MOUNTAIN

Location and Climate	The community lies at the base of 3,720-foot Lazy Mountain, 3 miles east of Palmer in the Mat-Su Borough. It lies east of the Matanuska River, off the Old Glenn Highway. It is approximately 45 miles from Anchorage (Latitude 61.6283/Longitude -149.0460). Lazy Mountain is located in the Palmer Recording District. Lazy Mountain falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized
History, Culture, & Demographics	by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. Around 1900, "Palmer's Upper House," a boat-accessible trading post, was located on the east side of the Matanuska River, just upriver from today's Matanuska River Bridge on the Old Glenn Highway. George Palmer's store catered to Dena'ina Athabascans who traded with the Ahtna from Copper River. The area was homesteaded as early as 1915, when the railroad brought employment. Lazy Mountain Children's Home operated from 1947 until the early 1960s. At one time, the MatSu Borough established a ski lift and warm-up hut at the Lazy Mountain recreation area. It has since been dismantled.
	Lazy Mountain is a large developed area outside of Palmer. Most residents are non-Native. Students are bused to schools in Butte or Palmer. As of July 1, 2015 there were 677 total housing units (Alaska Gazetteer).
Economy	51% of population (582) employed in 2014. 75% employed in private sector, 14% local government, 10% state government (2014)
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	1,578 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Organized
In	
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated (Census Designated Place)
Native Entities	Regional: None

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Alaska State Trooper Post, 453 South Valley Way,	
	Palmer, AK 99645	
	Phone: 745-2131; Fax: 269-5465	
Fire	Mat-Su Borough Emergency Services (861-8000)	
Medical	Lazy Mountain Public Health Nursing - Mat-Su Itinerant Nursing; 3223	
	East Parks Hwy, Suite3, Wasilla, AK 99654 Phone: 352-6600 Fax: 376-	
	3096	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Lazy Mountain	16005A E. Shawn Sr	775-0223	
Community Council	Palmer, AK 99645		

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility The George Parks Highway, Glenn Highway, and other local road		
	connect the area to Anchorage, the remainder of the state, and	

	Canada. The Alaska Railroad serves the Fairbanks to Seward route. The Wasilla and Palmer airports provide scheduled commuter and air taxi services. Float planes land at Wasilla Lake, Jacobsen Lake, and Lake Lucille. There are ten additional private airstrips in the vicinity. Commercial jet flights are operated out of Anchorage International Airport.
Airport Facilities	The Lazy Mountain Area is served by numerous private airports.
Airline Services	Scheduled and charter small plane, airlines, and helicopter services are available.
Freight	Air, truck, water
Vessel Support:	The State Ferry serves Homer

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	GCI and Matanuska Telephone Association (MTA)	S
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NC
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet	\TI
Provider	service available from GCI and MTA.	/2
TV Stations		5
Radio Stations		¥
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	COMMUNICATIONS
Teleconferencing		0
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel		
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Unknown	
Water & Sewage	Unknown	
Miscellaneous The borough operates the Palmer Matanuska-Susitna Borough Central Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A001-16). The borough also operates several transfer station. The borough landfill accepts hazardous wastes.		tral
	There are 3 schools located in the community, attended by approximately 1,688 students.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas		
Local Spill Response		
Equipment		

9770.3.32 – Matanuska-Susitna Borough

	MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH
Location and	The borough is comprised of the lush farmlands of the Matanuska and
Climate	Susitna Valleys, approximately 40 miles northeast of Anchorage
	(Latitude 61.6811/Longitude -149.0913) The area encompasses

	24681.50 sq. miles of land and 578.30 sq. miles of water. Matanuska-
	Susitna Borough falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized
	by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture,	By 1920, gold, coal mining, and construction of the Alaska railroad
& Demographics	sustained the local population. The Matanuska Valley was settled by
,	homesteaders who led an agricultural lifestyle in the 1930s.
	Construction of the statewide road system and the rich farmlands fueled
	population growth. Today, Borough residents enjoy a more rural lifestyle
	close to metropolitan Anchorage. Low housing costs, the rural lifestyle,
	and a reasonable commute to Anchorage for employment and services
	has made the Mat-Su Borough one of the fastest growing areas of Alaska
	in recent years.
Economy	The economy is diverse, and residents are employed in a variety of
	retail, professional, and government occupations. Top employers are
	Mat-Su schools, Valley Hospital, Wal-Mart, Carrs/Safeway, and Fred
	Meyer. About one-third of the borough's labor force commutes to
	Anchorage for employment.
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.
Population	100,178 (2015 DCCED Commissioner Certified Population)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation	Second Class Borough
Туре	
Native Entities	See individual communities for Native Entities

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
Police Department	Wasilla Police Department (352-5401)
State Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Alaska State Trooper Post, 453 South Valley Way,
	Palmer, AK 99645
	Phone: 745-2131; Fax: 269-5465
Fire	Mat-Su Borough Emergency Services (861-8000)
Medical	Mat-Su Regional Medical Center (861-6000)

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Matanuska-Susitna	350 East Dahlia Ave.	861-7801	http://www.matsugo
Borough	Palmer, AK 99645		v.us/
Mat-Su Convention	501 N. Gulkana St	746-5000	http://www.matsugo
and Visitors Bureau,	Palmer, AK 99645		v.us/
Incorporated			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Matanuska-Susitna Borough can be accessed via the Glenn	
	Highway, George Parks Highway, and Denali Highway. There are four	
	public transit providers operating throughout the borough and	

	TRANSPORTATION
	connecting to Anchorage. Ocean access is provided through Port MacKenzie, at the head of Cook Inlet along the Knik Arm. The port includes a 1250' trestle dock with -60 feet of water at low tide, and a 500 foot bulkhead barge dock with -20 feet of water at low tide. The docks are configured to handle bulk commodities. A 32-mile rail extension is being completed to connect the port to the Alaska Railroad mainline. The Alaska Railroad bisects the Matanuska-Susitna Borough on its way from Anchorage to Fairbanks. There are over 180-miles of rail within the borough along which passengers can board or disembark at "whistle stops".
Airport Facilities	The borough has the highest concentration of public and private airports in the nation. With 10 public airports and over 200 private airports, over 1,000 aircraft, more pilots per capita than most of the rest of Alaska and the nation, and millions of dollars of economic impacts to the region's economy, aviation is vitally important to the economy of the region and lifestyle of its residents. The borough contains over 200 airports concentrated primarily along the road system. The largest concentration of airports occurs between the Cities of Wasilla and Palmer, but the Willow and Talkeetna areas also have a significant number of airports. Most of the airports are privately owned and operated and used for travel, sightseeing, and recreation. There are also public airports at Palmer, Wasilla, and Talkeetna. The borough has many active floatplane lake and some of these lakes have been registered with the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). Virtually all lakes large enough are used for floatplane operations at some time during the year. There are over 2,000 miles of hiking, snowshoeing, skiing, snowmobiling, and ATV trails throughout the borough.
Freight Voscal Supports	Air, truck, railroad None
Vessel Support:	None

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	GCI and Matanuska Telephone Association (MTA)	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	z
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, MTA, and Verizon. Internet	10
Provider	service available from GCI and MTA. See specific communities for	CA
	internet service provider.	Z
TV Stations		M
Radio Stations		COMMUNICATION
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	S
Teleconferencing	See individual communities for more information.	
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel	Local Gas stations with gasoline, diesel and propane	
Fuel Storage		
Housing	See individual communities for more information.	

Water & Sewage	See individual communities for more information.
Miscellaneous	The borough operates the Palmer Matanuska-Susitna Borough Central Landfill, a class I landfill (ADEC # SW1A001-16). The borough also operates several transfer station. The borough landfill accepts hazardous wastes.
	There are 45 schools located in the borough.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	See individual communities for more information.	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	See individual communities for more information.	
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Wasilla,	
Equipment	Sutton, and Talkeetna.	

9770.3.33 – Meadow Lakes

	MEADOW LAKES
Location and	Meadow Lakes lies between the Little Susitna River and the Alaska
Climate	Railroad, off of the George Parks Highway. It is west of Wasilla,
	continuing east and northeast of Houston. It is accessed by Pittman
	Road, Church Road, and Schrock Road. It is approximately 45 miles from
	Anchorage (Latitude 61.6243/Longitude -149.6036). Meadow Lakes
	falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid
	atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	The area has served as a transportation corridor since around 1906,
Demographics	when the first of the trails leading out of Knik to the Gold Mines in the
	Willow Creek Mining District, the Carle Wagon Road, was constructed.
	This is now the Wasilla-Fishhook Road. In 1917, Pittman was
	established on the Alaska Railroad at Mile 166.5, and a water station
	was added in 1920. Homesteaders settled the area after World War II,
	and the area continued to develop after a Department of Natural
	Resources land disposal during the mid-1960s. Low housing costs, the
	semi-rural lifestyle, and employment in Palmer, Wasilla and Anchorage
	have supported growth in the Mat-Su Valley.
Economy	The Wasilla/Palmer area and Anchorage employ individuals in a wide
	variety of federal, state, local and private sector jobs.
Subsistence	
Population	8,381 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated
Native Entities	Regional: None

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Troopers	Palmer/Mat-Su West Alaska State Trooper Post, 453 South Valley Way,	
	Palmer, AK 99645	

	Phone: 745-2131; Fax: 269-5465
Fire	Mat-Su Borough Emergency Services (861-8000)
Medical	Mat-Su Regional Medical Center (861-6000); Meadow Lakes Public
	Health Nursing – Mat-Su Itinerant Nursing (352-6600)

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Meadow Lakes	1210 N. Kim Drive,	352-3737	
Community Council	Ste. B		
Incorporated	Wasilla, AK 99645		
Meadow Lakes	3223 East Parks	352-6600	
Public Health	Highway, Suite 3		
Nursing – Mat-Su	Wasilla, AK 99654		
Itinerant Nursing			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The area is connected to the statewide highway system via the George	
	Parks Highway. Nearby Palmer, Wasilla, and Anchorage offer air	
	services. A turf runway can be used in the summer time only.	
Airport Facilities	A 1300' by 200' turf runway can be used in the summer time only.	
	Nearby Palmer and Wasilla offer air service. Float planes can access	
	Meadow Lake.	
Airline Services		
Freight		
Vessel Support		

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Matanuska Telephone Association (In-State):	
	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / <u>www.att.com</u>	٧S
Wireless and		COMMUNICATIONS
Internet Service		CAI
Provider		Ž
TV Stations		MU
Radio Stations		M
Cable Provider		\mathcal{C}
Teleconferencing		
Electricity	Provided by Matanuska Electric Association	
Fuel		
Fuel Storage		
Housing		
Water & Sewage	Approximately 80% of homes use individual water wells, septic systems, and are fully plumbed; the remainder haul water from a sa source and use outhouses. A large number of homes in the area are seasonal use.	
Miscellaneous	There are 3 schools located in the community, attended by 839 students. Refuse is collected by a private firm or hauled to the borough landfill in Palmer.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response			
Equipment			

9770.3.34 - Moose Pass

9770.3.34 – Moose Pa	SS
	MOOSE PASS
Location and Climate	Moose Pass is located 26 miles north of Seward on the Kenai Peninsula. It is on the southwest shore of Upper Trail Lake, off the Seward Highway, at mile 29.3 of the Alaska Railroad (Latitude 61.4864/Longitude -149.3683). Moose Pass falls within the gulf coast maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. This zone lacks prolonged periods of freezing weather at low altitudes and is characterized by cloudiness and frequent fog. The combination of heavy precipitation and low temperatures at high altitudes in the coastal mountains of southern Alaska accounts for the numerous mountain glaciers. There is little to no freezing weather, moderate precipitation, occasional high winds, and frequent cloud cover and fog. Severe storms are common from December through February.
History, Culture, &	The community was first named in 1912 as a station on the Alaska
Demographics	Railroad. The name is reportedly derived from a mail carrier's team of
	dogs that in 1903 had considerable trouble gaining the right-of-way
	from a moose. A post office was established in 1928.
Economy	The State Division of Forestry and local businesses provide most
	employment. The community is not within an easy commute of either
	Seward or Kenai. In 2009, two residents held commercial fishing
Code alat	permits.
Subsistence	None
Population	226 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough
In .	Heteroom and a
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated
Native Entities	Regional: None

	EMERGENCY SERVICES
Closest Police	Seward Police Department 224-3338
Closest State	Cooper Landing 595-1233
Troopers	
Fire	Borough/Moose Pass Vol. Fire/EMS (288-3666/8665); Moose Pass Fire
	Hall

Medical	Auxiliary health care is provided by Moose Pass Volunteer Fire/EMS
	(288-3666/8665); Seward General Hospital (224-5205) or Central
	Peninsula Hospital (262-4404) in Soldotna.

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL			
	None listed		

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Seward and Sterling Highways provide access to Anchorage.	
Airport Facilities	Nearby Seward offers an airport. Seaplanes land at Summit Lake.	
Airline Services	Scenic Mountain Air	
Freight	Nearby Seward offers a railroad, harbor/dock facilities.	
Vessel Support:	Nearby Seward offers a, harbor/dock facilities and State Ferry access.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	In-State: Interior Telephone Co./TelAlaska Long Distance: AT&T	
	Alascom; GCI	NS
Wireless and	Seward Internet Services (www.seward.net)	01.
Internet Service		CAI
Provider		ž
TV Stations	ARCS	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KSWD-AM; KYAK-AM; KFQD-AM	M
Cable Provider	None	\mathcal{C}
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	
Electricity	Provided by Chugach Electric Association.	
Fuel		
Fuel Storage		
Housing	Moose Pass RV Park; Trail Lodge; Summit Lake Lodge	
Water & Sewage	systems; over 50% of households are fully plumbed. The school	
	operates is own water system. The remainder of residences haul or	
	have water delivered, and use privies. Many homes in this area are	
	used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	There is one school located at 31810 Eepot Rd Moose Pass, AK	
	attended by 11 students.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas	Potential Staging Areas		
Local Spill Response			
Equipment			

9770.3.35 – Nanwalek

		NANWALEK
		(nan-WAH-leck); formerly English Bay
location and	Manualak	
Location and Climate		is located at the southern tip of the Kenai Peninsula,
Cilmate		of Seldovia and east of Port Graham (Latitude ongitude -151.9202). Nanwalek falls within the gulf coast
		limate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold
		nd mild summers.
History, Culture, &	•	the site of a Russian Trading Post called Alexandrovsk, the
Demographics		later called "Odinochka," meaning "a person living in
2 om egrapmes		A Russian Orthodox Church was built in the community in
		230, a replacement Church was constructed, and it is a
		I national historic site. In 1991, locals changed the
	community name of English Bay to Nanwalek, meaning "place by	
	lagoon." Many of the current residents are of mixed Russian and	
	Sugpiaq (A	lutiiq) lineage. Villagers speak Sugtestun, a dialect of Eskimo
		'up'ik. Subsistence activities are a large part of the culture.
Economy	The school, subsistence activities, and summer employment at the Port	
		nnery provide income. Six residents hold commercial fishing
	•	ne community is working on a project to reestablish the local
	sockeye ru	n, which has been very low in recent years.
Subsistence	004/0045	
Population		Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	kenai Peni	nsula Borough
In Incorporation Type	U1	
Incorporation Type Native Entities		Chugach Macka Corporation
ivative critities	Regional: Profit:	Chugach Alaska Corporation
		English Bay Corporation (Homer)
	Village:	Native Village of Nanwalek (Federally Recognized Tribe)

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Trooper	Ninilchik Alaska State Trooper Post (567-3660)	
VPSO	Charles Harselle (281-2206 or vpsohartzell@hotmail.com)	
Fire	Nanwalek Volunteer Fire Department (281-2274)	
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Nanwalek Health Clinic (281-	
	2250/2251). Auxiliary health care is provided by Nanwalek First	
	Responders & Clinic (281-2250).	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
English Bay	1637 Stanton Avenue	562-4703	
Corporation	Anchorage, AK	281-2220 (fax)	
	99508		
Native Village of	P.O. Box 8028	281-2274	nanwalek@yahoo.co
Nanwalek	Nanwalek, AK	281-2252 (fax)	m
	99603-6628		

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Nanwalek is not accessible by road. Boats are the primary means of	
	transportation locally.	
Airport Facilities	A State-owned 1,850' gravel airstrip is available.	
Airline Services	N/A	
Freight		
Vessel Support:	The State ferry provides service to nearby Seldovia.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone		S
Wireless and	None	COMMUNICATIONS
Internet Service		4TI
Provider		
TV Stations	See Part III, M. Media	
Radio Stations	See Part III, M. Media	M
Cable Provider	None	S
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network)
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association.	
Fuel		
Fuel Storage	Tank Owners (27,016 gallon oil storage tank 12,409 gallon gas stora	age
	tank) 5,000 gallon containment tank for overflow	
Housing		
Water & Sewage	Water is derived from a surface stream and is treated; a new surface water source is under development. Nanwalek has a piped water at sewer system which serves all homes in the village; most are completely plumbed. The village needs a larger water storage tank, water treatment, new water and sewer mains, new fire hydrants, a landfill expansion.	nd
Miscellaneous	The Nanwalek School is located in the community at 63550 Alexandrovsky St Nanwalek, AK 99603-9999, Phone : (907) 281-2210 attended by 78 (2015) students.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Seldovia and	
Equipment	Homer.	

<u>9770.3.36 – Nikiski</u>

	NIKISKI
Location and	Nikiski is located on the Kenai Peninsula, 9 miles north of the City of
Climate	Kenai, off of the Sterling Highway. It is also known as Port Nikiski and
	Nikishka (Latitude 60.7346/Longitude -151.2969). Nikiski falls within

	the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid		
	atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
History, Culture, &	Traditionally a Kenaitze Indian territory, the area was homesteaded in		
Demographics	the 1940s, and grew with the discovery of oil on the Kenai Peninsula in		
	1957. By 1964, oil-related industries located here included Unocal,		
	Phillips 66, Chevron and Tesoro.		
Economy	Nikiski is the site of a Tesoro Alaska oil refinery, where Cook Inlet and		
	some North Slope crude oil is processed into mainly jet fuel, gasoline,		
	and diesel. Agrium, Inc. ceased operations several years ago after once		
	employing approximately 500 residents at its fertilizer plant, producing		
	1 million tons of urea and 600,000 tons of ammonia annually. Timber,		
	commercial and sport fishing, government, retail businesses, and		
	tourism-related services also provide employment.		
Subsistence	Hunting and fishing are important local activities and food sources.		
Population	4,553 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)		
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough		
In			
Incorporation Type	CDP		
Native Entities	Kenai Natives Association		
	Kenaitze Indian Tribe		
	Salmantof Native Association		

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Alaska State	Soldotna Detachment (262-4453)	
Troopers		
Fire	Borough/Nikiski Fire Dept./EMS/Rescue (776-6401-Station1, 776-6402-	
	Station2)	
Medical	Multiple clinics within community	
	Nearest Hospital: Central Peninsula Hospital (714-4404, Soldotna)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Kenai Peninsula	144 N. Binkley Street	262-4441	jblankenship@kpb.us
Borough	Soldotna AK, 99669	262-1892 (fax)	
Kenai Natives	215 Fidalgo Ave,#203	283-4851	
Association	Kenai AK 99611	283-4854 (fax)	
Kenaitze Indian Tribe	P.O. Box 988	283-3633	www.kenaitze.org/
	Kenai AK, 99611	283-3052 (fax)	
Salmantof Native	230 Main Street Loop	283-7864	info@salamatof.com
Association	Kenai, AK 99611		

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	Nikiski is accessible by the Sterling Highway to Anchorage and points
	beyond. Also accessible by air and water through numerous airports
	and harbors.
Airport Facilities	In addition to private runways and helipads, an airport at nearby Kenai
	provides airport facilities.

Airline Services	Scheduled and charter small plane, airlines, and helicopter services are		
	locally available.		
Freight	Air, truck, water		
Vessel Support:	Two docks exist in Nikiski, and the area is supported by additional docks		
	in Kenai, Homer, and Seward.		

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Numerous hard lined and cellular companies provide service.	
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NS
Internet Service	service available from AT&T and GCI among others.	0.
Provider		CAT
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		MU
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI	M
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network; Kenai Peninsula Legislative	\mathcal{C}
	Information Office	
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	Gasoline, diesel, and propane	
Fuel Storage	No community fuel tanks	
Housing		
	and nearby communities (Kenai and Soldotna).	
Water & Sewage	Mainly private water supplies and septic systems are utilized	
	throughout Nikiski.	
Miscellaneous	3	
	students.	
	The borough operates the Central Peninsula Landfill, a class I landfill	
	(ADEC # SW1A006-16) near Soldotna. The borough also operates a	
	transfer facility is located in Nikiski on Poolside Avenue. The Centra	al
	Peninsula Borough Landfill accepts Hazardous wastes on specified of	
	and also provides for recycling.	-
	Natural gas provided to portions of the community is a primary sou	rce
	of heat in areas where available.	ICC
	oi neat in areas where available.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Numerous potential command posts exist in Nikiski and the	
Posts	nearby area including CISPRI, local schools, and other public and	
	private offices and buildings.	
Potential Staging Areas	Numerous lay down yards, private lots, and docks are available.	
Local Spill Response	Emergency response equipment owned by CISPRI is located at and	
Equipment	nearby their office in Nikiski. Additional spill response resources	
	are held by companies including Hilcorp, Tesoro, and ASRC in the	
	Nikiski area. An ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex is nearby	
	between Soldotna and Kenai.	

9970.3.37 – Nikolaevsk

	NIKOLAEVSK
Location and Climate	Nikolaevsk is located on the Kenai Peninsula, inland near Anchor Point. It lies on a road leading from North Fork Road and the Sterling Highway. It was named to honor St. Nicholas, the patron saint of the town's church (Latitude 59.8119/Longitude -151.6106). Nikolaevsk falls within the gulf coast maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy
	atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, & Demographics	Nikolaevsk is the location of a settlement of "Russian Old Believers," whose ancestors settled in Woodburn, Oregon after the Bolshevik Revolution of 1917 forced them out of Russia. The first Old Believer settlers on the Kenai Peninsula received a grant from the Tolstoy Foundation in New York and purchased land there in 1967. The community includes Russian Orthodox, Russian Old Believers (Old Right Believers) and some non-Russian people, living in three distinct settlements. The Old Believers in this area lead a family-oriented, self-sufficient, separatist lifestyle. They use modern utilities, and food sources are from gardening, fishing, hunting, and cattle. The first school opened in 1972 and until 1980, students attended classes through the ninth grade, then began their adult lives; many students now go on to complete their education. Families are typically very large (8 to 12 children.) Traditional clothing is worn, Russian is the first language, and the church dictates that males do not shave. Boys typically marry at age 15 or 16, while girls are married at 13 or 14. As growth occurred during the 1980s and 1990s, additional settlements
Economy	have developed in the area. Many residents are employed in the Anchor Point and Homer areas ,
	primarily in fishing and construction. The Fefelov Mercantile, a general store and post office, is the only year-round business and provides groceries, fabric, and other items.
Subsistence	None
Population	276 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough
Incorporation Type	CDP
Native Entities	Regional: None

EMERGENCY SERVICES			
State Troopers	Ninilchik Alaska State Trooper Post (567-3660)		
Fire	Certified Community Volunteers & Fire Truck; Borough Rescue/EMT		
Medical	Auxiliary health care is provided by Anchor Point Fire/EMS (235-		
	6700/2427); South Peninsula Hospital (235-8101) in Homer.		

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES						
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL						
Nikolaevsk	P.O. Box 5062	235-2731	ncws@alaska.net			
Community Council,	Nikolaevsk, AK	235-2941 (fax)				
Inc.						

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES						
ORGANIZATION	ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMA					
Nikolaevsk Public	195 east Bunnell	235-8857	www.hss.state.ak.us/			
Health Nursing –	Ave., Suite C	235-7090 (fax)	dph/nursing/			
Homer Itinerant	Homer, AK 99603					
Nursing						

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage.	
Airport Facilities	Nearby Homer offers an airport.	
Airline Services		
Freight		
Vessel Support:	Nearby Homer offers harbor/docking facilities and a State Ferry	
	landing.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES			
Telephone	In-State Phone: ACS of the Northland		
	Long-Distance Phone: AT&T Alascom; United Utilities	NS	
Wireless and	Alaska Communications	01.	
Internet Service		:AT	
Provider		N	
TV Stations		M	
Radio Stations		COMMUNICATIONS	
Cable Provider	None	$^{\circ}$	
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network		
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association.		
Fuel			
Fuel Storage			
Housing			
Water & Sewage	A new water treatment building, water mains and household water service lines were installed in 1997. The majority of homes are fully plumbed - 49 residents, the school and community-wide fire hydrar are connected to the water system. 80% of households use septic to for sewage disposal. Two subdivisions (Nahodka and Kluchevaya) are located outside of the main hub of Nikolaevsk. They have an independent water system that taps two local springs; they do not want to be connected to the new water system. The community has asked for funding to remedy failing individual septic tanks.	nts anks e	
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 64 students.		

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			

Local Spill Response	
Equipment	

9970.3.38 - Ninilchik

9970.3.30 - MITHICTHK		NINILCHIK	
Location and	Nipilchik lios	s on the west coast of the Kenai Peninsula on the Sterling	
Climate	J S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S		
omnato	from Anchorage. The community lies between mileposts 119 and 144 of		
	the Sterling Highway; a business center has developed between		
	Ninilchik River and Deep Creek (Latitude 60.0432/Longitude -151.6758).		
		s within the gulf coast transitional climate zone,	
		d by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild	
	summers.		
History, Culture, &	The Kenai Pe	eninsula was historically used by Dena'ina Indians for fur-	
Demographics	•	fishing. The Dena'ina word "Niqnilchint" means "lodge by	
		n the 1820s, the Russian American Fur Company, burdened	
		r of elderly, disabled and sick employees who could not	
		n to Russia, established self-sustaining retirement	
		in Alaska. The Transfiguration of Our Lord Russian	
		nurch was constructed in 1846. In 1896, a Russian village	
		built, and a post office established in 1925. The 1940s	
	•	nesteaders to the area and in 1949 the Berman Packing egan fish canning operations. The Sterling Highway reached	
		ear later, and the current Ninilchik school built the next	
	year.	ear later, and the current minicilik school built the next	
	Alaska Natives represent 17% of the population; the Village Ninilchik, a federally recognized tribe, is a traditional Athabascan Native village,		
	although the majority of the population is non-Native. The village		
	-		
Economy		is actively involved in local issues. il businesses, tourism, timber, and oil and gas comprise the	
LCOHOITIY	•	private sector activities in Ninilchik. Declining fish prices,	
	,	ing, and timber harvesting have affected income	
	opportunities. King Salmon fishing on Deep Creek and Ninilchik River		
	lure thousands of sport fishermen to Ninilchik between late May and		
		oth saltwater and freshwater sport fishing occur seasonally	
	in the area.		
Subsistence	Residents of Ninilchik hunt, fish and gather for the following food		
	sources in and around Ninilchik: salmon, halibut, waterfowl, bear, clams		
	and berries.		
Population	849 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)		
Borough Located	Kenai Penins	sula Borough	
In Incorporation Type	CDP		
Incorporation Type Native Entities	Regional:	Cook Inlet Region, Incorporated	
ivative Littiles	Nonprofit:	Cook Inlet Region, incorporated Cook Inlet Tribal Council, Incorporated	
	Profit:	Ninilchik Natives Association, Incorporated	
	i i Oiit.	runnorm ruativos Association, incorporatou	

Village: Ninilchik Village (Federally Recognized Tribe	e)
--	----

EMERGENCY SERVICES			
State Troopers	Ninilchik Alaska State Trooper Post (567-3660)		
Fire Ninilchik Emergency Services (567-3342)			
Medical	Ninilchik Emergency Services (567-3342) Ninilchik Community Clinic		
	(567-3970)		

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL	
Chamber of	P.O. Box 39164	567-3571	ninilchikchamber@g	
Commerce	Ninilchik, AK 99639	(fax)	<u>mail.com</u>	
Ninilchik Native	P.O. Box 39130	567-3866	http://www.nnai.net	
Association	Ninilchik, AK 99639	567-3867 (fax)		
Ninilchik Traditional	P.O. Box 39070	567-3313	ntc@ninilchiktribe-	
Council	Ninilchik, AK 99639	567-3308 (fax)	nsn.gov	
Cook Inlet Tribal	3600 San Jeronimo	793-3600	info@citci.org	
Council	Dr	793-3422 (fax)	http://www.citci.com	
	Anchorage, AK 99508		<u>/</u>	
Cook Inlet Region	P.O. Box 93330	274-8638	info@ciri.com	
	Anchorage, AK	279-8836 (fax)	http://www.ciri.com/	
	99509			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage and beyond.	
Airport Facilities	A State-owned 2,400' dirt/gravel airstrip is located in Ninilchik. Homer	
	also offers an airport.	
Airline Services	None identified	
Freight	None identified	
Vessel Support:	Boat launching from this location occurs during the summer months.	
	Launching from this location is not possible without assistance by	
	tractor and is weather and surf dependent. Nearby Homer also offers	
	harbor/docking facilities and State Ferry access. Boats are launched	
	from Deep Creek beach.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Alaska Communications and GCI.	S
Wireless and	Broadband internet and cell phone service is available. Cellular	NC N
Internet Service	service available from AT&T, GCI, and Verizon. Internet service	/TI
Provider	available from Alaska Communications and GCI.	IC/
TV Stations		COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations		₩
Cable Provider	DISH, GCI, DirecTV	0
Teleconferencing	Alaska Communications and GCI	3
Electricity	Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	Gasoline and diesel	

Fuel Storage	
Housing	Multiple hotels and other accommodations in Soldotna and Homer.
	Many small businesses offer rental cabins and B&Bs in Ninilchik.
Water & Sewage	The majority of homes use individual water wells or have water
	delivered. Two-thirds of all residences have individual septic systems
	and full plumbing; others use outhouses. The school operates its own
	well and water treatment facility. Many homes in this area are used
	only seasonally. The village has requested funding to construct a piped
	sewer system for homes in the Old Ninilchik Subdivision. Lots are too
	small for both individual wells and septic systems.
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 164
	students. A borough refuse transfer site is located in Ninilchik, at mile
	138.5 Sterling Highway. Soldotna Kenai Peninsula Borough Central
	Landfill is nearest landfill

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	See Homer		
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas	See Homer		
Local Spill Response	ADEC Spill Response Equipment Conex locations in Homer, Kenai,		
Equipment	and Seldovia		

9770.3.39 - Palmer

	PALMER
Location and	Palmer is located in the center of the lush farmlands of the Matanuska
Climate	Valley, 42 miles northeast of Anchorage on the Glenn Highway (Latitude
	61.5934/Longitude -149.1093). Palmer falls within the transitional
	climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold
	winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	Two groups of Athabascans the Ahtna and Dena'ina have lived in
Demographics	this region for centuries. George Palmer, a trader who came to Knik in
	1875, established a trading post on the Matanuska River around 1890.
	A railway siding was constructed in Palmer in 1916. In 1935, Palmer
	became the site of one of the most unusual experiments in US history:
	the Matanuska Valley Colony. A New Deal relief agency planned an
	agricultural colony in Alaska and 203 families, mostly from the upper
	MiddleWest, were invited to join the Colony, arriving in Palmer in the
	early summer of 1935. Although the failure rate was high, many
	descendants still live in the Mat-Su Valley today. The City of Palmer was
	formed in 1951. Construction of the statewide road system, and rapid
	development of Anchorage, has fueled growth in the Mat-Su valley.
Economy	Many residents commute to Anchorage for employment. Palmer's
	economy is based on a diversity of retail and other services and city,
	borough, state, and federal government. Some light manufacturing
	occurs. In 2009, 74 residents held commercial fishing permits. Palmer is

	home to 200 musk ox whose underwool (qiviut) is knitted into garments by Alaska Native women from several rural villages. Between 2,500 and 3,500 garments are created each year by these women and sold by an Anchorage cooperative. The 75-acre musk ox farm is also a tourist attraction. The university has an Agricultural and Forestry Experiment Station Office and a district Cooperative Extension Service office here. The university's Matanuska Research Farm is also located in Palmer. The valley is renowned for the annual Alaska State Fair, where local farmers produce award-winning vegetables.
Subsistence	
Population	6,135 (2015 DCCED Commissioner Certified Population)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation Type	Home Rule City

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police	City Police Dept. (within city limits) (745-4811)	
State Troopers	State Troopers Post (745-2131)	
Fire	City Fire Dept (745-3271); Borough Ambulance; Borough Public Safety	
	Bldg	
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Valley Hospital (746-8600).	
	Auxiliary health care is provided by Palmer Ambulance Service (373-	
	8800/745-4811); Mat-Su Borough Dive Rescue Team (373-8800); Valley	
	Transport Service (373-8800).	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chamber of	550 S. Alaska St,	745-2880 - office	director@palmercha
Commerce	Suite 101	354-2886 - cell	mber.org
	PO Box 45	746-4164 - fax	http://www.palmerc
	Palmer, AK 99645		hamber.org
City of Palmer	231 W. Evergreen	745-3271	citymgr@alaska.net
	Ave., Palmer, AK	745-0930 (fax)	jbower@palmerak.or
	99645		<u>g</u>

	TRANSPORTATION
Accessibility	Palmer lies on the Glenn Highway.
Airport Facilities	Two paved airstrips, one at 6,009' long by 100' wide and the other at
	3,617' long by 75' wide. There are seven additional privately-owned
	airstrips in the vicinity. Float planes may land at nearby Finger Lake or
	Wolf Lake.
Airline Services	Commercial airlines serve the Anchorage International Airport, but the
	Palmer Municipal Airport supports private and chartered services and
	air cargo.
Freight	The Alaska Railroad connects Palmer to Whittier, Seward or Anchorage
	for ocean freight delivery.

Vessel	Sup	port:
--------	-----	-------

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / www.att.com	
Wireless and	ACS Internet (www.acsalaska.net); Arctic.Net/TelAlaska, Inc.	
Internet Service	(www.arctic.net); AT&T WorldNet (www.worldnet.att.net);	S
Provider	Chugach.Net (www.chugach.net); Core Communications	Ž
	(www.corecom.net); Custom CPU (www.customcpu.com); GCI	
	(www.gci.net); MTA Online (www.mtaonline.com); Sinbad	
	Network Communications (www.sinbad.net)	
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTBY; KTUU; KTVA; KYES	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KCHU Public Radio: 835-4665 (office) / 835-4671 (news) /	6
	news@kchu.org / www.kchu.org	0
Cable Provider	KSKA-FM; KATB-FM	
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	
Electric Utility	Matanuska Electric Association, P.O. Box 2929, Palmer, AK 99645,	
	Phone 745-3231, Fax 745-9328; E-mail meacontact@mea.coop; W	/eb
	http://mea.coop	
Fuel	Gasoline and diesel	
Fuel Storage	(Number of Tanks and Capacity): Service Oil & Gas (6 @ 45,000 gals.)	
Housing	Valley Hotel, Pioneer Motel and Apartments; Gold Miner's Hotel;	
	Colony Inn; Fairview Motel; Majestic Valley Wilderness Lodge; Sheep	
	Mountain Lodge; Motherlode Lodge; Mountain View RV Park; Town &	
	Country RV; Homestead RV Park; Matanuska River Park; Tara Dells	
	B&B Pollen's B&B Iditarod House B&B Prickley Rose Garden Inn B&B	
Water & Sewage	A surface water collection system with a dam, treatment, and storage	
	capacity of 50,000 gallons, allows for piped distribution most home	S.
	Approximately 80 % of the resident's homes are fully plumbed.	
	Sewage is piped to a 20,000-gallon community septic tank; some	
	homes use individual septic tanks; some homes use individual septi	C
	tanks.	
Miscellaneous	There are 7 schools located in the community, attended by 2,699	
	students. The Mat-Su Borough operates the landfill outside the city	y
	limits of Palmer. A sludge disposal site is also available.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Contact IRA council for available facilities (573-5131)		
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas			
Local Spill Response			
Equipment			

9770.3.40 – Port Graham

	PORT GRAHAM
Location and	The community is located at the southern end of the Kenai Peninsula on
Climate	the shore of Port Graham. It is adjacent to Nanwalek, 7.5 miles southwest

		of Seldovia, and 28 air miles from Homer (Latitude 59.3515/Longitude - 151.8322). Port Graham falls within the gulf coast maritime climate		
	zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild			
	summers.			
History, Culture,	The earliest known settlers were Russians from the nearby trading post			
& Demographics		at Nanwalek. In 1850, the Russian-American Co. established a coal mine		
Jan San San San San San San San San San S		at Port Graham, but it was not economical and lasted only a few years.		
		m became the site of a cannery and wharf and, in 1911, Aleuts		
	from Nanw	valek moved to the community many to work at the cannery. A		
	•	operated between 1938 and 1961. The cannery burned in		
		ebuilt in 1968 and later sold to the village corporation in 1983.		
		non hatchery began operations in 1991, but in 1998, the		
	•	nd salmon processing plant were destroyed by fire. The		
	•	nd processing plant were rebuilt and re-opened in June 1999. Ty continues to be the main economic activity in the		
		y, employing residents of Nanwalek as well.		
	_	A federally recognized tribe is located in the community the Native		
	,	Village of Port Graham. Alaska Natives represent 88% of the population.		
	Port Graha	Port Graham is a traditional Sugpiaq village with a fishing and subsistence		
	lifestyle.			
Economy		on fish cannery opened on June 19, 1999; the former plant		
		and salmon hatchery were destroyed by fire in January 1998. Locals		
	organized funding to rebuild the facilities; insurance covered only part of the loss. The cannery provides seasonal employment for 70 Port Graham			
	and Nanwalek residents. Red salmon fry are raised for area lakes, and			
	pink salmon are raised for the cannery. Approximately 13 residents hold			
	commercial fishing permits.			
Subsistence				
Population	177 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)			
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough			
<u>In</u>				
Incorporation	Unincorporated			
Type Native Entities	Regional: Chugach Alaska Corp			
ivative Littiles	Profit:	Port Graham Corporation		
	Village:	Village of Port Graham		
	• mago.	Thiago of Fort Oranam		

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police	State VPSO (235-0577)	
State Troopers		
Fire	Port Graham Volunteer Fire/EMS (284-2224)	
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Port Graham Health Clinic (284-	
	2241). Auxiliary health care is provided by Port Graham EMS (284-	
	2227/2262); flight to South Peninsula Hospital (235-8101) in Homer.	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Village of Port	P.O. Box 5510, Port	Phone 284-2227, Fax	pnorman@starband.
Graham	Graham, AK 99603	284-2222	<u>net</u>
			PortGraham@smtp.a
			k.bia.gov
Port Graham	P.O. Box 5569,	Phone 284-2212, Fax	
Corporation	Port Graham, AK	284-2219	
	99603,		

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Port Graham is not accessible by road. There is a 4-mile trail to	
	Nanwalek.	
Airport Facilities	A state-owned 1,975' long by 45' wide dirt/gravel airstrip is available.	
Airline Services	Commercial airlines serve the Anchorage International Airport, but the	
	Palmer Municipal Airport supports private and chartered services and	
	air cargo.	
Freight		
Vessel Support:	Community offers docking facilities.	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	ACS	
Wireless and	ACS, GCI	
Internet Service	WorldNet (www.worldnet.att.net); Chugach.Net	
Provider	(www.chugach.net); Core Communications (www.corecom.net);	0.
	Custom CPU (www.customcpu.com); GCI (www.gci.net); MTA	CAT
	Online (www.mtaonline.com); Sinbad Network Communications	N
	(www.sinbad.net)	MU
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTBY; KTUU; KTVA; KYES	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KSRM-AM; KWHQ-FM; KBBI-AM; KGTL-AM	\mathcal{C}
Cable Provider	None	
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	
Electric Utility	Homer Electric Association.	
Fuel	Gasoline and diesel	
Fuel Storage	(Number of Tanks and Capacity): Petro Marine (10 @ 70,000 gals.)	
Housing	Bunk house owned by Port Graham Corporation; J&L Scenic Wilderness	
	Adventures 284-2327	
Water & Sewage	Water is derived from a surface source, is treated and stored in a	
	50,000-gal. redwood tank. Port Graham has a piped water system and	
	sewage disposal in a community septic tank. A sludge lagoon was	
	recently completed. 66 homes and facilities are served by the system;	
	almost 90% of households are fully plumbed. Port Graham Corporation	
	operates the washeteria.	
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 15	
	students.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command			
Posts			
Potential Staging			
Areas			
Local Spill Response	USCG DRAT Container		
Equipment	http://www.uscg.mil/d17/D17%20Divisions/drm/DRAT/DRATpage.asp		
	ADEC maintains a spill response connex in Seldovia. Seldovia maintains a volunteer oil spill response organization with trained responders and equipment.		

9770.3.41 - Primrose

	PRIMROSE	
Location and	Primrose is on Kenai Lake, off of the Seward Highway, at mile 18.4 of	
Climate	the Alaska Railroad. It lies 15 miles north of Seward (Latitude	
	60.3576/Longitude -149.3526). Primrose falls within the gulf coast	
	maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold	
	winters, and mild summers.	
History, Culture, &	Primrose was first listed as a flag stop on the Alaska Railroad in 1919.	
Demographics		
Economy	The Seward area provides employment in the transportation industry,	
	service sector, and state government.	
Subsistence		
Population	66 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)	
Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough	
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police	None	
State Troopers	Seward AKST Post	
Fire	Moose Pass Volunteer Fire and EMS	
Medical	Seward General Hospital (224-5205).	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL			
None			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Seward and Sterling Highways provide access to Anchorage and the	
	statewide highway system. Nearby Seward offers an airport, railroad,	
	and docking facilities	
Airport Facilities		
Airline Services		
Freight		

Vessel Support:

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES
Telephone	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / www.att.com
Water & Sewage	65% of homes use individual water wells and septic tank systems and are fully plumbed. The remainder of residences haul or have water delivered, and use privies. Many homes in this area are used only seasonally.
Miscellaneous	There are no state operated schools located in the community.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	None listed	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None listed	
Local Spill Response	None listed	
Equipment		

9770.3.42 - Ridgeway

	RIDGEWAY
Location and	Ridgeway is located on the Sterling Highway on the Kenai Peninsula,
Climate	between the cities of Kenai, Soldotna, and Sterling (Latitude
	60.5313/Longitude -151.0811). Ridgeway falls within the gulf coast
	transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere,
	long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	The area has historically been the home of Kenaitze Indians, although it
Demographics	was developed by non-Natives for the rich resources of the Kenai
	Peninsula. Alaska Natives represent 8% of the population. Ridgeway is
	a geographic area between two very large cities on the peninsula and
	most residents are non-Native.
Economy	The economy of the Kenai area is diverse: oil and gas processing,
	timber, commercial and sport fishing, government, retail businesses
	and tourism-related services provide employment.
Subsistence	
Population	2,205 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
None		
Soldotna AKST Post 907-262-4453		
Borough Central Emergency Services (CES) Fire/Rescue/EMT (262-4792/4453)		
Auxiliary health care is provided by Central Emergency Services (262-4792/4453) and Central Peninsula Hospital in Soldotna.		

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
None			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Accessibility There is access to the Sterling Highway that connects to the Alaska road	
	system. Transportation facilities include a dock and airport.	
Airport Facilities	MacKey's Lake is in the area to serve floatplanes.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / www.att.com; GCI	
Wireless and	GCI; AT&T	
Internet Service		
Provider		
Electric Utility	Provided by Homer Electric Association.	
Water & Sewage	Approximately 90% of homes use individual water wells and septic tank	
	systems, and are fully plumbed.	
Miscellaneous	There are no state operated schools located in the community.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command None listed		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None listed	
Local Spill Response	None listed	
Equipment		

9770.3.43 - Salamatof

	SALAMATOF
Location and	Salamatof is on the Kenai Peninsula, on the east shore of Cook Inlet at the
Climate	mouth of Salamatof Creek, 5.5 miles northwest of the City of Kenai
	(Latitude 60.6177/Longitude -151.3334). Salamatof falls within the gulf
	coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere,
	long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture,	Salamatof was first reported in 1911 by the U.S. Geological Survey as a
& Demographics	Dena'ina Indian village. A federally recognized tribe is located in the
	community the Village of Salamatof. Alaska Natives, mostly
	Athabascan, represent 22% of the population.
Economy	Salamatof is attempting to develop a lake-resort area. The economy of
	the Kenai area is diverse: oil and gas processing, timber, commercial and
	sport fishing, government, retail businesses and tourism-related services
	provide employment.
Population	1,163 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula
In	

Incorporation	Unincorporated	
Туре		
Native Entities	Regional:	
	Profit:	Salamatof Native Assoc., Inc., P.O. Box 2682, Kenai, AK
		99611,
		Phone 283-3745, Fax 283-6470; Web: <u>www.salamatof.com/</u>
	Nonprofit:	
	Village:	Village of Salamatof, P.O. Box 2682, Kenai, AK 99611,
		Phone 283-7864, Fax 283-6470 E-mail snainc@alaska.com

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
State Trooper	Soldotna AKST 262-4453	
Fire	Borough Central Emergency Services (CES) Fire/Rescue/EMT (262-	
	4792/4453)	
Medical	Auxiliary health care is provided by Central Emergency Services (262-	
	4792/4453) and Central Peninsula Hospital (262-4404) in Soldotna.	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
None			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage and beyond.	
Airport Facilities	Float planes can land at Arness Lake and Lower Salamatof. Kenai offers	
	an airport and docking facilities.	
Airline Services	None identified	
Freight	None identified	
Vessel Support	None identified	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / www.att.com	AT
Wireless and	GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / <u>www.gci.net</u>	NIC.
Internet Service		NU N
Provider		COMMUNICAT
Cable Provider	GCI	00
Electricity	Homer Electric Association	
Fuel	Gasoline and diesel	
Water & Sewage	The majority of homes use individual water wells and septic tanks, and	
	the remainder are connected to Kenai's piped water and sewer system.	
	Almost all households are fully plumbed. Many homes in this area are	
	used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	There are no state operated schools located in the community.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT (Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)

Potential Command	None identified
Posts	
Potential Staging Areas	None identified
Local Spill Response	None identified
Equipment	

9770.3.44 - Seldovia

9770.5.44 - Seluovia		SELDOVIA	
Location and Climate	15-minute flight across from Homer. Flight time to Anchorage is 45 minutes (Latitude 59.4387/Longitude -151.7150). Seldovia falls within the gulf coast maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
History, Culture, & Demographics	Native residents are mixed Dena'ina Indian, Aleut and Sugpiaq Eskimo (also known as Alutiiq). The name Seldovia is derived from "Seldevoy," a Russian word meaning "herring bay." Between 1869 and 1882, a trading post was located here, and a post office established in 1898. The village developed around commercial fishing and fish processing. The City of Seldovia incorporated in 1945.		
	population	an Alutiiq village. Alaska Natives represent 23% of the and a federally recognized tribe is located in the community. I fishing and subsistence are an integral part of the local	
Economy		a commercial fishing center; shellfish farming also occurs. In sidents held commercial fishing permits. Tourism is	
Population	226 (2015 DCCED Commissioner Certified Population)		
Borough Located In	Kenai Boro	ugh	
Incorporation Type	First Class C	City	
Native Entities	Regional:		
	Profit:	Seldovia Native Association, Inc., P.O. Drawer L, Seldovia, AK 99663, Phone 234-7625, Fax 234-7637 E-mail snai@snai.com Web http://www.snai.com	
	Village:	Village Tribe, P.O. Drawer L, Seldovia, AK 99663, Phone 234-7898, Fax 234-7637, E-mail svt@svt.org Web http://www.svt.org/	

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
VPSO	none	
Fire	City Volunteer Fire/Rescue/Ambulance - 234-7812	
	SVT Barabara Heights Fire Department 435-7875	
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Seldovia Health Clinic (2347825).	
	Auxiliary health care is provided by Seldovia Volunteer Fire & Rescue	

(234-7812/235-3150); flight to South Peninsula Hospital in Homer.

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chamber of	Seldovia Chamber of	234-7612	Email
Commerce	Commerce		<pre>president@seldoviachamber.org</pre>
			Web <u>www.seldoviachamber.org</u>
City	City of Seldovia	234-7643	Email info@cityofseldovia.com
			Web
			http://www.cityofseldovia.com

TRANSPORTATION			
Accessibility	cessibility Isolated community accessible only by air or water. The State Ferry		
	System connects to Homer, where the Sterling Highway enables road		
	access. Seldovia Bay Ferry makes two trips per day Thursday through		
	Monday from Homer during the summer season. Alaska Marine		
	Highway Ferry System provides weekly ferry service		
Airport Facilities	State-owned 1,845' gravel airstrip and seaplane base are available.		
Airline Services	Smokey Bay Air;		
Freight	None identified		
Vessel Support:	A harbor and boat haul-out facilities are available.		

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / <u>www.att.com</u>	
Wireless and	GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / <u>www.gci.net</u>	NS
Internet Service		0.
Provider		CAT
TV Stations	KAKM; KTBY; KTUU; KTVA	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KPEN-FM; KWVV-FM	MU
Cable Provider	None	M
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network; Valdez Legislative Information	\mathcal{C}
	Office	
Electricity	Homer Electric Association (800-478-8551)	
Fuel	Gasoline and heating oil	
Fuel Storage		
	Tank Capacity: 384,000 gals.	
Housing		
	Vacation Rental, Laid Back InnSeldovia, Sea Parrot Inn, Seldovia	
	Fishing Adventures B&B, The Seldovia Harbor Inn, Seldovia Rowing	
	Club, Bridge	
	Keepers Inn	
Water & Sewage	Water is derived from the Fish Creek Reservoir, is treated, stored in a	
	tank, and distributed via water mains. Sewage is piped to a community	
	septic tank for primary treatment, then discharges to an ocean outfall.	
	Approximately 175 homes and facilities are served by the system; all	
	homes are completely plumbed. Individual wells have been unable	to

	produce potable water. \$4.2 million in grants were provided to		
	construct a water storage tank and water treatment plant in Seldovia.		
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 47		
	students. A borough-operated landfill is available.		

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Multi-purpose Room (capacity 100, Internet), 234-7643		
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas	State Ferry dock, 234-7643		
	Cannery property, 234-7643		
	Caravan staging area, 234-7802		
Local Spill Response	Approximately 26 Hazwoper-qualified individuals. Contact SOS,		
Equipment	Spill Response Organization (234-7400) for availability of		
	containment boom (over 2000'), Sorbent boom (150 bags),		
	anchors (4 systems), and sorbent pads (5 bales)		
	ADEC Response Container		
	https://dec.alaska.gov/spar/PPR/local_resp.htm		

9770.3.45 - Seward

	SEWARD
Location and	Seward is situated on Resurrection Bay on the east coast of the Kenai
Climate	Peninsula, 125 highway miles south of Anchorage. It lies at the foot of
	Mount Marathon and is the gateway to the Kenai Fjords National Park.
	Bear Creek and Lowell Point are adjacent to Seward (Latitude
	60.1300/Longitude -149.4433). Seward falls within the gulf coast
	maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy atmosphere, long, cold
	winters, and mild summers. This zone lacks prolonged periods of freezing
	weather at low altitudes and is characterized by cloudiness and frequent
	fog. The combination of heavy precipitation and low temperatures at high
	altitudes in the coastal mountains of southern Alaska accounts for the
	numerous mountain glaciers.
History, Culture,	While sailing from Kodiak to Yakutat, Russian fur trader and explorer
& Demographics	Alexander Baranof found unexpected shelter from a storm in
	Resurrection Bay and named it for the Russian feast day. The first settlers
	came in the 1890's, and in 1903 work began on construction of a railroad.
	.Seward became an incorporated city in 1912. By 1960, Seward was the
	largest community on the Peninsula. Tsunamis from the 1964 earthquake
	destroyed the railroad terminal and killed several residents. Alaska
	Natives represent 21% of the population; Seward is primarily a non-
	Native community, although the Qutekcak Tribe is very active within the
	community.
Economy	As an ice-free harbor and as the southern terminus for the Alaska
	Railroad and road link to Anchorage and the Interior, Seward has long
	been a transportation center. The economy has diversified with tourism,
	commercial fishing, ship services and repairs, oil and gas development, a
	coal export facility for Usibelli Mine, a State Prison, and the University of

		Alaska's Institute of Marine Sciences. Seward has become an important		
	supply center for Interior Alaska. Tourist facilities include the new \$52			
	million Alask	a SeaLife Center, the Kenai Fjords National Park visitor		
	center, and t	he Chugach Heritage Center, which is housed in the historic		
	train depot o	downtown. In 2002, 81 residents held commercial fishing		
	permits. Ove	er 320,000 cruise ship passengers visit Seward annually.		
	Seward's ann	nual Fourth of July celebration and its grueling Mount		
	Marathon ra	Marathon race attracts participants and visitors worldwide.		
Population	2,740 (2015	DCCED Commissioner Certified Population)		
Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula			
In				
Incorporation	Home Rule City			
Туре				
Native Entities	Regional:			
	Profit:	Grouse Creek Corporation, P.O. Box 723, Seward, AK 99664,		
		Phone 224-5902		
	Nonprofit:	Mount Marathon Native Assoc., P.O. Box 995, Seward, AK		
		99664, Ph 224-3118, Fax 224-5874		
	Village:	Qutekcak Native Tribe, P.O. Box 1467, Seward, AK 99664,		
	_	Ph 224-3118, Fax 224-5874; E-mail		
		tribaladmin@qutekcak.net Web http://www.qutekcak.net		

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police	City Police Dept. (within city limits) (224-3338); City	
VPSO		
Fire	City Volunteer Fire/EMS/Ambulance (224-3345/3338); Bear Creek Fire	
	Hall	
Medical	Providence Seward Medical Center (224-5205/3490). Auxiliary health	
	care provided by Bear Creek Volunteer Fire & Rescue, Inc. (224-	
	3345/3338); Seward Volunteer Ambulance Corps (224-3987).	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chamber of	P.O. Box 749,	224-8051	visitseward@seward.
Commerce	Seward, AK 99664	224-5353 (fax)	<u>net</u>
			http://www.seward.c
			<u>om</u>
City	P.O. Box 167,	224-4038	<u>clerk@cityofseward.</u>
	Seward, AK 99664	224-3331 (fax)	<u>net</u>
			http://www.cityofse
			<u>ward.net/</u>
Media, Seward	315 Fourth Ave,	224-8070	rhowell@alaskanews
Phoenix	Seward, AK 99664	224-3157 (fax)	<u>papers.com</u>
			http://www.alaskane
			wspapers.com
TRANSPORTATION			

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STAT	LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES	
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Accessibility	Seward is connected to	the Alaska Highway
	system by the Seward H	ighway.
Airport Facilities	Two paved runways are	utilized, at 4,240 and
	2,300 feet.	
Airline Services	FS Air; Scenic Mountain	· ·
	Alaska Aerial Tours. Dai	ly air services and
	charters are available at	the State-owned
	airport.	
Freight	The Alaska Railroad prov	vides over 1.4 billion
	pounds of cargo transit	3 1
	cargo for the Interior an	
	Pacific Rim. A railroad d	epot was completed in
	the fall of 1997.	
Vessel Support:	Port serves cruise ships,	3 0
	barges and ocean freigh	
	overseas. The small boa	S .
	for 650 boats, and two b	ooat launch ramps.

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / <u>www.att.com</u>	S
Wireless and	GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / www.gci.net	NC
Internet Service	ACS Internet (www.acsalaska.net); GCI (www.gci.net); Seward	\T(
Provider	Internet Services (<u>www.seward.net</u>)	/3
TV Stations	ARCS; KUAC; KYAC	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KSKA-FM; KWVV-FM; KPEN-FM; KFSH-AM; KPFN-FM; KSWD-AM	¥
Cable Provider	GCI Cable, Inc.	0
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	0
Electricity	Provided by Seward Electric System. Seward Electric System purcha	ises
	power from Chugach Electric, and owns five standby diesel generat	ors.
Fuel Storage	Tank Owners (Number of Tanks and Capacity): Shoreside Petroleur	n (6
	@ 120,000 gals.); City (40,000); Other (68,000)	
Housing	Seward Best Western Hotel; Best Western Hotel Seward; Harborvie	:W
	Inn; Marina Motel; Breeze Inn Motel; Murphy's Motel; Van Gilder	
	Hotel; Resurrection Roadhouse; Seward Windsong Lodge; Taroka Inn;	
	Crown Point Lodge; Kenai Fjords Wilderness Lodge; over 30 Bed &	
	Breakfast facilities; Bear Creek RV Park; A Creekside RV Park; City of	f
	Seward RV Park; Miller's Landing RV Park.	
Water & Sewage	Water is supplied by nine wells, and is treated and distributed	
	throughout Seward. Sewage is collected via pipes to a secondary	
	treatment lagoon. Almost all homes are fully plumbed.	
Miscellaneous	There are 4 schools located in the community, attended by 295	
	students. The borough provides solid waste disposal. The borough	
	refuse transfer facility is located on Hemlock Street in Seward.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local	l officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)	
Potential Command	None listed	
Posts		
Potential Staging	None listed	
Areas		
Local Spill Response	https://dec.alaska.gov/spar/PPR/Ira/Conex_Map.htm \	
Equipment	http://www.uscg.mil/d17/D17%20Divisions/drm/DRAT/DRATpage.asp	

9770.3.46 - Skwentna

9770.3.40 - SKWentha	
	SKWENTNA
Location and Climate	Skwentna lies on the south bank of the Skwentna River at its junction with Eight Mile Creek, 70 air miles northwest of Anchorage in the Mat-Su Borough. It lies in the Yentna River Valley (Latitude 61.9662/Longitude -151.1957). Skwentna falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, & Demographics	Dena'ina Athabascans have fished and hunted along the Skwentna and Yentna Rivers for centuries. In 1908, an Alaska Road Commission crew blazed a trail from Seward to Nome, going through Old Skwentna from the Susitna River to Rainy Pass. Many roadhouses were later constructed along the trail to the Innoko Mining District, including the Old Skwentna Roadhouse. Prospectors, trappers and Indians often used sled dogs to transport goods over the trail. A post office opened in 1937, an airstrip built after World War II, and in 1950, the U.S. Army established a radar station at Skwentna and a recreation camp at Shell Lake, 15 air miles from Skwentna. In the 1960s, State land disposals increased settlement.
	Alaska Natives represent 7% of the population. Skwenta residents are scattered over a large area of land. It has a number of seasonal-use homes owned by Anchorage residents. There is a small local store, and residents use snowmachines or aircraft to travel to the post office.
Economy	Employment is provided through local lodges, the post office, and the airstrip
Population	36 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation Type	Unincorporated

	EMERGENCY SERVICES
VPSO	State VPSO (573-2046)
Fire	State VPSO (573-2046)
Medical	Chenega Bay Health Clinic (573-5129). Auxiliary care provided by
	Chenega Bay EMS.

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Community Council	Skwentna		
	Community Council,		
	P. O. Box 24,		
	Skwentna, AK 99667		

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	There is no road access from the George Parks Highway – residents are
	dependent upon air travel.
Airport Facilities	A State-owned 3,400' gravel airstrip is available in Skwentna or at 8
	Mile Strip. A private airstrip and float plane access are located at
	Alexander Lake.
Airline Services	None listed
Freight	None listed
Vessel Support:	None listed

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	MTA; AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / www.att.com	S
Wireless and	GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / www.gci.net	COMMUNICATIONS
Internet Service		ΔTI
Provider		
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTUU; KYES	
Radio Stations	None listed	_ ≥
Cable Provider	satellite	Į į
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	
Electricity	Provided by individual generators.	
Fuel	Gasoline and diesel	
Fuel Storage	Tank Owner: Village Council / Number of Tanks: 4 / Tank Capacity	: (2)
	12,000 gals, (2) 3,000 gals	
Housing	Northwoods Lodge; Barony Lodge (345-7291); Shell Lake Lodge (73	3-
	2817); Skwentna Roadhouse (733-2722)	
Water & Sewage	A number of homes have individual water wells, but very few are fu	-
	plumbed. Outhouses are the primary means of sewage disposal. No	early
	90% of the homes in Skwentna are used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	J. J	
	students. There is no central electric system. Funds have been	
	provided to purchase a community refuse incinerator, however, the	
	community is undecided on a refuse solution. An unpermitted dump	
	site near the airport is currently being used by several families, but	
	most residents burn and bury their own refuse.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	None listed	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None listed	

Local Spill Response	None listed
Equipment	

9970.3.47 - Soldotna

9970.3.47 - SOIGOTHA	SOLDOTNA
Location and	Soldotna is on the Kenai Peninsula, 150 highway miles south of
Climate	Anchorage, at the junction of the Sterling and Kenai Spur Highways. It lies 10 miles inland from Cook Inlet and borders the Kenai River (Latitude 60.4918/Longitude -151.0691). Soldotna falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	The Peninsula has historically been the home to Kenaitze Indians, and
Demographics	was developed by non-Natives for its rich resources, including fish, timber and oil. Soldotna was named for a nearby stream: either from a Russian word meaning "soldier" or an Indian word meaning "stream fork." The first homesteaders were World War II veterans in 1947. That same year, the Sterling Highway right-of-way was constructed from Cooper Landing to Kenai and Soldotna was the site for the bridge crossing the Kenai River. A post office opened in 1949, with stores and a community center shortly thereafter, as development continued because of Soldotna's strategic location at the Sterling-Kenai Spur Highway junction. In 1957, oil was discovered in the Swanson River region, bringing new growth and development. Soldotna was incorporated as a city in 1960. Alaska Natives represent 7% of the population.
Economy	The area economy is highly diverse. Many Soldotna residents are employed in oil industry services for Cook Inlet oil drilling and exploration Oil refining operations occur north of Kenai in Nikiski. Tourism is estimated at a \$95 million per year industry on the Peninsula. The Kenai Convention and Visitors Bureau receives about 800 visitors a day during July. Other important economic sectors include sport, subsistence and commercial fishing, fish processing, government, timber and lumber, agriculture, transportation services, construction and retail trade. The Kenai River offers top trophy king salmon fishing during June and July. In 2009, 143 area residents held commercial fishing permits. Soldotna hosts the Central Peninsula General Hospital, the Kenai Peninsula Community College, the State Troopers' Headquarters, the Kenai National Wildlife Refuge, and the borough and school district offices.
Population	4,319 (2015 DCCED Commissioner Certified Population)
Borough Located In	Kenai Peninsula Borough
Incorporation Type	First Class City

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
Police City Police Dept. (within city limits) (262-4334)	
AKST	State Troopers Post (262-4453)

Fire	Borough Central Emergency Services (CES) Fire/Rescue/EMT	
	(262-4792/4453)	
Medical	Central Peninsula General Hospital (262-4404).) is a qualified Acute Care	
	facility and provides Critical Care Air Ambulance Service. Auxiliary	
	health care is provided by Central Emergency Services (262-4792/4453).	
	Emergency Services have highway, airport, and floatplane access.	
	Emergency service is provided by 911 Telephone Service and paid EMS	
	Service.	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Greater Soldotna	44790 Sterling Hwy.,	262-9814	info@soldotnachamb
Chamber of	Soldotna, AK 99669	262-3566 (fax)	<u>er.com</u> ,
Commerce			
City of Soldotna	177 North Birch	262-9107	tfahning@ci.soldotna
	Street, Soldotna, AK	262-1245 (fax)	<u>.ak.us</u>
	99669		http://www.ci.soldot
			na.ak.us

TRANSPORTATION	
Accessibility	The Soldotna Municipal Airport provides facilities for charter services
	and local air traffic.
	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage, the George Parks
	and Alcan highways.
Airport Facilities	The paved runway is 5,000' in length. The Kenai Municipal Airport,
	located 10 miles away, offers scheduled flights and float plane facilities.
	Seaplanes may also land at nearby Mackeys Lakes. There are four
	additional private landing strips in Soldotna, and a heliport for medical
	emergencies at Central Peninsula General Hospital.
Airline Services	Clearwater Air, Inc.; Natron Air; Rotor Air Alaska, Inc.; Talon Air Service;
	Mavrik Air; High Adventure Air
Freight	None listed
Vessel Support:	None listed

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	ACS; GCI; AT&T, Verizon (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 /	
	<u>www.att.com</u>	NS
Wireless and	AT&T, Verizon, GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / www.gci.net	0.
Internet Service	HughesNet: 1-866-687-7094 / www.isatelliteinternet.com	:AT
Provider		Ĭ
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTBY; KTUU; KTVA; KYES	MU
Radio Stations	KWHQ-FM; KSRM-AM; KWVV-FM; KPEN-FM; KKIS-FM; KSLD-AM	COMMUNICATIONS
Cable Provider	GCI	$^{\circ}$
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network;	
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association. Homer Electric Assoc. oper	ates
	the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project and is part owner of the Alas	ska

	Electric Generation & Transmission Cooperative, which operates a gas turbine plant in Soldotna. It also purchases electricity from Chugach Electric.	
Housing	Best Western King Salmon Motel & RV Park; Soldotna Inn; Riverside	
	House; Kenai River Lodge/Motor Inn; Soldotna B&B Posey's Kenai	
	River Hideaway; Orca Lodge; Kenai River Retreat; Across the River RV	
	Park; River Quest RV Park; Big Eddy Campground	
Water & Sewage	All homes are completely plumbed. Water is derived from four wells, is	
	treated, stored, and piped throughout the community. A new million-	
	gallon steel tank and a second 500,000-gal. tank, built in the 1970s,	
	now provide sufficient capacity. Piped sewage receives secondary	
	treatment with an activated sludge process; effluent discharges into	
	the Kenai River. Individual wells and septic tanks are used by a few	
	households outside of the core area.	
Miscellaneous	There are 10 schools located in the community, attended by 3,542	
	students. The borough has a Class-1 regional landfill and baling facility	
	at mile 98.5 Sterling Highway in Soldotna. Recycling and hazardous	
	waste disposal are available. Natural gas from Enstar is primarily used	
	by residents for home heating.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	None listed		
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas	None listed		
Local Spill Response	None listed		
Equipment			

9770.3.48 - Sterling

J	STERLING
Location and Climate	Sterling is located on the Sterling Highway at the junction of the Moose and Kenai Rivers, 18 miles east of the City of Kenai (Latitude 60.5370/Longitude -150.7970). Sterling falls within the gulf coast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, & Demographics	
Economy	The community caters to the sport fishing industry and summer influx of recreational enthusiasts. The economy of the Kenai area is diverse: oil and gas processing, timber, fishing, government, retail and tourism-related services provide employment. 20 residents hold commercial fishing permits.
Population	5,992 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)

Borough Located	Kenai Peninsula Borough
In	
Incorporation	Unincorporated
Туре	

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
VPSO	None listed
Fire	Borough Central Emergency Services (CES) Fire/Rescue/EMT (262-4792/4453)
Medical	Auxiliary health care is provided by Central Emergency Services (262-4792/4453); Central Peninsula Hospital in Soldotna.

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Sterling Community	P.O. Box 15 Sterling,	907-262-9811	merkes@ptialaska.ne
Club	AK 99672		<u>t</u>

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	The Sterling Highway provides access to Anchorage. Nearby Kenai and	
	Soldotna offer airports and docking facilities.	
Airport Facilities	There is a 2,500' private airstrip in Sterling, and a private seaplane base	
	at Scout Lake.	
Airline Services	None listed	
Freight	None listed	
Vessel Support:	There are two privately-operated boat launches.	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	ACS; GCI; AT&T, Verizon (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 /	
	<u>www.att.com</u>	٧S
Wireless and	AT&T, Verizon, GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / www.gci.net	10
Internet Service	HughesNet: 1-866-687-7094 / www.isatelliteinternet.com	:AT
Provider		Ĭ
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTBY; KTUU; KTVA; KYES	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KWHQ-FM; KSRM-AM; KWVV-FM; KPEN-FM; KKIS-FM; KSLD-AM	M
Cable Provider	GCI	$^{\circ}$
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network;	
Electricity	Provided by Homer Electric Association. Homer Electric Assoc. operates	
	the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project and is part owner of the Alaska	
	Electric Generation & Transmission Cooperative, which operates a gas	
	turbine plant in Soldotna. It also purchases electricity from Chugach	1
	Electric.	
Housing	Bing Brown's Motel & RV Park; Sterling House B&B Rivershore Fish	
	Camp; Big Sky Charter & Fish Camp; Scout Lake Inn; Sterling Gifts &	
	Campground; Angler's Lodge & Fish Camp; Cast Away Riverside RV	Park
	& Cabins	

Water & Sewage	Occupied houses use individual water wells and septic tank systems,
	and are fully plumbed. The school operates its own well water system.
	Many homes in this area are used only seasonally.
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 139
	students. The borough provides a refuse transfer facility at mile 85
	Sterling Highway.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command None listed			
Posts			
Potential Staging Areas	None listed		
Local Spill Response	None listed		
Equipment			

9770.3.49 - Sutton-Alpine

9110.3.49 – Sutton-Al	pine
	SUTTON-ALPINE
Location and	Sutton-Alpine is between miles 52 and 72 of the Glenn Highway, 11
Climate	miles northeast of Palmer in the Mat-Su Borough. The area is accessed
	by Chickaloon Way and Jonesville Road (Latitude 61.7159/Longitude -
	148.8784). Sutton-Alpine falls within the transitional climate zone,
	characterized by a semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild
	summers.
History Cultura 9	
History, Culture, &	Ahtna and Dena'ina Athabascan Indians have occupied this territory for
Demographics	centuries. Ahtna and Dena'ina Athabascan Indians have occupied this
	territory for centuries. During the Russian fur trading era, Ahtna
	transported pelts from the Dena'ina along the Matanuska River to
	Copper Fort in the east. Sutton was founded around 1918 as a station on
	the Matanuska Branch of the Alaska Railroad, for coal export purposes.
	The railroad went through Sutton to the Chickaloon Mine. The Sutton
	Coal Washery operated from 1920 to 1922. Sutton was the base camp
	for construction of the Glenn Highway from 1941 to 1945. The post
	office was established in 1948. Coal from the privately-owned Evan
	Jones mine, Jonesville and Eska mines fueled the Sutton and Palmer
	economies until 1968, when the military bases in Anchorage converted
	their power systems to oil and coal mining ceased. During the 1980s,
	several large tracts of land were subdivided, fueling growth.
	Approximately 26% of the population are Alaska Native or part Native.
	Middle and high school students are bused to Palmer.
Economy	Alpine Historical Park, an open-air museum, features relics and historic
Lononiy	buildings from the coal washery. The local stores, lodges, restaurant,
	library, post office, and school provide income. The Palmer/Wasilla area
	and Anchorage offer a variety of employment opportunities. In 2009,
	three residents held commercial fishing permits. The Palmer
Danulat's	Correctional Center is located nearby.
Population	1,419 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)

Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation	Unincorporated
Туре	

EMERGENCY SERVICES	
VPSO	None listed
Fire	Borough/Sutton Volunteer Fire/EMS/Ambulance (373-8800/745-4811)
Medical	Auxiliary health care is provided by Sutton Volunteer Fire/EMS Dept.
	(373-8800/745-4811) and Valley Hospital in Palmer.

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chamber of	P.O. Box 24, Sutton,	745-4527	
Commerce	AK 99674	746-6359 (Fax)	
Alpine Civic Club &	P.O. Box 3444,	745-1006	gdr@mtaonline.net
Community Council	Sutton, AK 99674		

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Sutton accesses the state highway system from the Glenn Highway.	
	Transportation facilities are also available nearby in Palmer.	
Airport Facilities	There is a 1,450' public gravel airstrip at the Jonesville Mine, owned by	
	the Canadian Mine & Smeltering Co., and two additional private strips	
	in the area.	
Airline Services	Glacier Air (Matanuska Glacier)	
Freight	None listed	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	MTA	S
Wireless and	At&T GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / www.gci.net	NC
Internet Service		Ĭ
Provider		/2II
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTUU; KYES	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KNBZ-FM; All Anchorage AM stations	¥
Cable Provider	None	ő
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	0
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association	
Housing	Alaska Creative Adventures; River's Edge Recreation/RV Park	
Water & Sewage	Occupied homes have individual water wells and septic systems, and	
	are fully plumbed. The school operates its own well water system.	
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 73	
	students.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT (Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)

Potential Command	None listed
Posts	
Potential Staging Areas	None listed
Local Spill Response	https://dec.alaska.gov/spar/PPR/lra/Conex_Map.htm
Equipment	

7770.3.30 Talkeetii	TALKEETNA		
Location and	Located at the junction of the Talkeetna and Susitna Rivers, it lies 115		
Climate	miles north of Anchorage at mile 226.7 of the Alaska Railroad. The paved		
	Talkeetna Spur Road runs 14 miles east off the George Parks Highway at		
	milepost 98.7 (Latitude 62.3176/Longitude -150.1081). Talkeetna falls		
	within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid		
	atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
History, Culture,	The Talkeetna and Chulitna Rivers join the Susitna River at Talkeetna, a		
& Demographics	Dena'ina (Tanaina) Indian word meaning "river of plenty." Talkeetna was		
	settled as a mining town with an Alaska Commercial Co. trading post in		
	1896. A gold rush to the Susitna River brought prospectors to the area,		
	and by 1910, Talkeetna was a riverboat steamer station, supplying		
	miners and trappers in the Cache Creek, Iron Creek, and Broad Creek		
	districts. In 1915, Talkeetna was chosen as the headquarters for the		
	Alaska Engineering Commission building the Alaska Railroad, and the		
	community population peaked near 1,000. World War I and completion		
	of the railroad in 1919 dramatically decreased the population. Talkeetna		
	has since developed as an aviation and supply base for Mount McKinley		
	expeditions. Talkeetna is popular for its recreational fishing, hunting,		
	boating, flightseeing, skiing and dog mushing. Local businesses provide		
	services to Mount McKinley climbers. Several of its old log buildings are		
	now historical landmarks, and Talkeetna was placed on the National		
	Register of Historic Places in April 1993. State land disposals and		
	homestead programs helped the community grow.		
Economy	As the take-off point for fishing and flightseeing trips, and a staging area		
	for Mount McKinley climbing expeditions, Talkeetna provides air taxi,		
	helicopter, outfitters, and related services. In 2009, nine area residents		
	held commercial fishing permits.		
Population	859 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)		
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough		
<u>In</u>			
Incorporation	Unincorporated		
Туре			
Native Entities	Regional:		
	Profit: Gold Creek-Susitna 733-2329		

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
VPSO	None listed	
Fire	Borough Fire & Ambulance	
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Sunshine Community Health	
	Center. Auxiliary health care is provided by Talkeetna Ambulance	
	Service (376-8800/745-4811); Valley Hospital (746-8600) in Palmer.	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chamber of	P.O. Box 334	733-2330	info@talkeetnacham
Commerce	Talkeetna, AK 99676	7335051 (fax)	ber.org
			http://www.talkeetn
			achamber.org
Talkeetna	P.O. Box 608	733-2566	tccsecretary@yahoo.
Community Council	Talkeetna, AK 99676		<u>com</u>
			http://www.tkacoun
			cil.org/

	TRANSPORTATION
Accessibility	Talkeetna is accessible by a road off the George Parks Highway
Airport Facilities	There are two state-owned runways: one is an asphalt paved and 3,500'
	long by 75' wide runway; the other is a 480' long by 85' wide gravel
	strip. Another airstrip in the vicinity is owned by the U.S. Bureau of
	Land Management.
Airline Services	Hudson Air Service; K2 Aviation; Talkeetna Air Taxi; Doug Geeting
	Aviation; ERA Helicopters; McKinley Air Service; Peak Dodger Flight
	Service
Freight	Alaska Railroad depot
Vessel Support:	None listed

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	AT&T (Long Distance): 1-800-288-2020 / <u>www.att.com</u>	
Wireless and	AT&T , GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / <u>www.gci.net</u>	NS
Internet Service	HughesNet: 1-866-687-7094 / www.isatelliteinternet.com	0.
Provider		COMMUNICATIONS
TV Stations	Satellite	Ĭ
Radio Stations	KCHU Public Radio: 835-4665 (office) / 835-4671 (news) /	M
	news@kchu.org / www.kchu.org	Ĭ
Cable Provider	None	၂ ႘
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association.	
Housing	Mt. McKinley Princess Lodge; Talkeetna Motel; Talkeetna Alaskan	
	Lodge; Talkeetna Roadhouse; Latitude 62 Lodge/Motel; Fairview Inn;	
	Swiss-Alaska Inn; Paradise Lodge; Moose Dropping Inn B&B Denali	
	View B&B H&H Lakeview Lodge/RV Park; Montana Creek	
	Campgrounds; Talkeetna River Adventures RV Park	
Water & Sewage	, ,	
	complete plumbing. A piped water and sewer system is maintained by	
	the Talkeetna Water & Wastewater Utility. The high school operates its	
	own water system. Over 30% of homes are used only seasonally.	
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 90 students.	
	Middle and high school students are bused to schools at milepost 98 in	
	the Susitna Valley. A borough-operated refuse transfer station is	

located at mile 11.5 Talkeetna Spur Road. A sludge disposal site is available locally.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command None listed		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None listed	
Local Spill Response	https://dec.alaska.gov/spar/PPR/lra/Conex_Map.htm	
Equipment		

9970.3.51 – Trapper Creek

7770.3.31 – Happei	TRAPPER CREEK
Location and Climate History, Culture,	Trapper Creek lies between mile 107 and 133 of the George Parks Highway, in the Mat-Su Borough. It lies about 17 miles north of the Talkeetna Spur Road and west of the junction of the Chulitna, Susitna, and Talkeetna Rivers (Latitude 62.3163/Longitude -150.2339). Trapper Creek falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi- arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers. The area is Dena'ina Athabascan Indian territory. Once gold was
& Demographics	discovered on Cache Creek in 1906, prospectors traveled up the Susitna River to Susitna Station, and overland past Trapper Creek to Cache Creek. In 1920, the Alaska Road Commission started construction of a wagon road to Cache Creek from Talkeetna. Federal homesteading began here in 1948. In 1959, the "Fifty-Niners," a group of settlers from Detroit, Michigan, moved to Talkeetna and then on to Trapper Creek to find homesteads. They lived in trailers and tents before building log cabins. The Parks Highway opened as far as Trapper Creek in 1967, and was completed in 1971.
	Alaska Natives represent 11% of the population. Trapper Creek developed from homesteading through the 1960s, as well as some recent new subdivisions. Recreation, hunting, snow machining, and dog mushing are popular activities.
Economy	Subsistence and sporting activities are an integral part of the lifestyle. Some residents are retired. Those who are employed work in a variety of industries, such as education, transportation, and construction. In 2009, five residents held commercial fishing permits. A variety of transportation means are available in Wasilla, Palmer, and Anchorage. ERA Aviation operates a private heliport in Trapper Creek.
Population	475 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation	Unincorporated
Туре	

EMERGENCY SERVICES

VPSO	None listed
Fire	Borough Fire & Ambulance
Medical	Auxiliary health care is provided by Trapper Creek Ambulance Service
	(373-8800/745-4811) and Valley Hospital (746-8600) in Palmer.

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES					
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL					
Trapper Creek	P.O. Box 13021,	733-6506	Trappercreek2010@g		
Community Council	Trapper Creek, <u>mail.com</u>		mail.com		
	AK 99683				

TRANSPORTATION			
Accessibility	Accessibility Trapper Creek is accessible from the George Parks Highway. A variety		
	of transportation means are available in Wasilla, Palmer and		
	Anchorage.		
Airport Facilities	Several private airstrips are in the vicinity.		
Airline Services	None listed		
Freight	None listed		
Vessel Support	None listed		

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Matanuska Telephone Assoc.	S
Wireless and	AT&T, GCI: 1-800-800-4800 / www.gci.net	NC
Internet Service		\TI
Provider		/2II
TV Stations	ARCS; KAKM; KIMO; KTUU; KYES	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	KTNA-FM; KSKA-FM; KYAK-AM; KFQD-AM	M
Cable Provider	None	ő
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	0
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Association	
Housing	Trapper Creek Inn & General Store/RV Park; Trapper Creek Trading	
	Post/Cabins; The Forks Roadhouse; Mary's McKinley View Lodge;	
	McKinley Foothills B&B North Country B&B Denali View Chalets	
Water & Sewage	e The majority of occupied homes use individual wells and septic tanks. A	
	large number of homes in this area are used only seasonally. The	
	school operates its own permitted well water system.	
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 23	
	students. A borough refuse transfer station is located at mile 15.3 of	
	the Parks Highway.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local off	(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)	
Potential Command None listed		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None listed	
Local Spill Response	None listed	
Equipment		

9970.3.52 – Tyonek		TYONEK		
Location and	-	Tyonek lies on a bluff on the northwest shore of Cook Inlet, 43 miles		
Climate		of Anchorage. Tyonek is not located directly on the Kenai		
		Latitude 61.0681/Longitude -151.1434). Tyonek falls within		
	•	ast transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid		
		e, long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
History, Culture,	_	Dena'ina (Tanaina) Athabascan Indian village. In 1778		
& Demographics		ok observed that the Upper Cook Inlet Athabascans possessed		
		and glass beads, likely from indirect trade with the Russians.		
		836 and 1840, half of the region's Indians died from a pidemic. The Alaska Commercial Company had a major		
	outpost in Tyonek by 1875 and by 1880, a total of 117 residents,			
		09 Athabascans, 6 "creoles" and 2 whites. After gold was		
		at Resurrection Creek in the 1880s, Tyonek became a major		
		ment point for goods and people. A saltery was established in		
		e mouth of the Chuitna River north of Tyonek. In 1915, the		
	Tyonek Res	servation (also known as Moquawkie Indian Reservation) was		
	established	d. The devastating influenza epidemic of 1918-19 left few		
	survivors among the Athabascans. The village was moved to its present			
	location atop a bluff when the old site near Tyonek Timber flooded in the			
	_	early 1930s. The population declined when Anchorage was founded. In 1965, the federal court ruled that the Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA) had		
		· ·		
	•	lease Tyonek Indian land for oil development without		
		of the Indians themselves. The tribe subsequently sold rights oil and gas beneath the reservation to a group of oil		
		for \$12.9 million. The reservation status was revoked with		
		e of the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act in 1971. Beluga, a		
		yonek, is owned by Chugach Electric Association and provides		
		ricity for Anchorage. Alaska Natives represent 95% of the		
		; a federally recognized tribe is located in the community.		
		Dena'ina Indian village practicing a subsistence lifestyle.		
Economy		e activities provide salmon, moose, beluga whale, and		
		In 2009, 16 residents held commercial fishing permits. Tyonek		
		eational fishing and hunting guide services. Some residents		
		winter. The North Foreland Port Facility at Tyonek is the		
5 , , ,	· ·	site for export of Beluga coal.		
Population		Department of Labor Estimate)		
Borough Located	Kenai Penii	nsula Borough		
Incorporation	Unincorpo	rated		
Туре	ornincorpo	ateu		
Native Entities	Regional:			
	Profit:	Tyonek Native Corporation, (Anchorage)		
	Village:	Native Village of Tyonek (Federally Recognized Tribe)		
L	1 3-1	. g j (

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
VPSO	State VPSO (235-0577)	
Fire	Borough/Village Volunteer Fire; Fire Station	
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Tyonek Health Clinic (583-2461).	
	Auxiliary health care is provided by Tyonek Volunteer Rescue Squad	
	(583-2201/2271); flight to Anchorage hospitals.	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL	
Village Corporation	Tyonek Native	272-0707	bperatrovich@tyone	
	Corporation, 1689 C	274-7125 (fax)	<u>k.com</u>	
	Street #219,			
	Anchorage, AK 99501			
Village Council	Village of Tyonek,	583-2271	tyonek@aitc.org	
	P.O. Box 82009,	583-2442 (fax)		
	Tyonek, AK 99682			
TRANSPORTATION				
Accessibility		The village is not accessible by road. A local		
		road connects to nearby Beluga. Barges		
		deliver heavy goods to the village.		
	Airport Facilities		Permission is required to land at the local	
		3,000' gravel airstrip, owned by the Village of		
		Tyonek, although regularly-scheduled flights		
		are available. A State-owned 4,100' gravel		
		airstrip is available at Nikolai Creek, and a		
		2,400' gravel airstrip, owned by Arco Alaska,		
		is located at Beluga.		
Airline Services		None listed		
Freight		None listed		
Vessel Support:		None listed		

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Matanuska Telephone Assoc.	S
Wireless and		NC
Internet Service	None listed	Ĭ
Provider		/2
TV Stations	KYES; KAKM	COMMUNICATIONS
Radio Stations	All Anchorage stations; KSRM-AM; KWHQ-FM	¥
Cable Provider	None	ő
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	0
Electricity	Chugach Electric Association	
Fuel	None listed	
Fuel Storage	Tank Owner: Village / Number of Tanks: 2 / Tank Capacity: (2) 4,00	00
	gals	
Housing	Village guest house	
Water & Sewage	A piped water and sewer system serves the entire community	
	approximately 90 homes and facilities. Water is derived from Secon	nd

	Lake, is treated and stored in a 175,000-gal. tank. Back-up water supplies are available from a lake near the airport. The community wants to develop a groundwater source. A small coin-operated
	washeteria, with one washer and dryer, is available.
Miscellaneous	There is one school located in the community, attended by 30
	students.

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT		
(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command None listed		
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None listed	
Local Spill Response	None listed	
Equipment		

9970.3.53 - Wasilla

7770.3.33 - Wasilia	WASILLA
Location and	Wasilla is located midway between the Matanuska and Susitna Valleys,
Climate	on the George Parks Highway. It lies between Wasilla and Lucille Lakes,
	43 miles north of Anchorage (Latitude 61.5845/Longitude -149.4339).
	Wasilla falls within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a
	semi-arid atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture, &	Wasilla was named after a respected local Dena'ina Indian chief. In the
Demographics	Dena'ina Athabascan Indian dialect, "Wasilla" is said to mean "breath of
	air." The townsite was established in 1917 at the intersection of the
	Carle Wagon Road (now Wasilla-Fishhook Road) and the newly-
	constructed Alaska Railroad. It was a supply base for gold and coal
	mining in the region through World War II. The Matanuska-Susitna
	valley was settled by many Colony homesteaders in the 1930s.
	Construction of the George Parks Highway through Wasilla in the early
	1970s provided direct access to Anchorage, enabling families to live in
	Wasilla and commute to Anchorage for employment. The city
Economy	incorporated in 1974. Alaska Natives represent 9% of the population. Approximately 30% of the Wasilla workforce commutes to Anchorage.
Economy	The local economy is diverse, and residents are employed in a variety of
	city, borough, state, federal government, retail, and professional
	service positions. Tourism, agriculture, wood products, steel and
	concrete products are part of the economy. In 2009, 164 area residents
	held commercial fishing permits. Wasilla is home to the Iditarod Trail
	Committee and Iron Dog (snowmachine) Race
Population	8,468 (2015 DCCED Commissioner Certified Population)
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough
In	
Incorporation Type	1 st class city

	EMERGENCY SERVICES
Police	City Police Dept. (911/352-5401)

AKST	Anchorage Post: 248-1410
Fire	City Volunteer Fire Dept (373-8831); Trunk Road Fire Dept (745-2494);
	Borough Ambulance Lakes-Bogard Road Fire Dept (745-2228); Meadow
	Lakes Fire Dept (376-9790)
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Matanuska Health Care and
	private medical practices. Auxiliary health care is provided by Glacier
	View First Responders (373-8800/745-4811); Valley Hospital (746-8600),
	located 10 miles away in Palmer; Mat-Su Borough Dive Rescue Team
	(373-8800); Valley Transport Service (373-8800); and Wasilla Ambulance
	Service (373-8800/745-4811).

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES			
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS	PHONE	WEBSITE/EMAIL
Chamber of	East Railroad	376-1299	contact@wasillacha
Commerce	Avenue, Wasilla, AK	373-2560 (fax)	mber.org
	99654		
City	290 East Herning	583-2271	tyonek@aitc.org
	Ave., Wasilla, AK	583-2442 (fax)	
	99654		
Media	The Frontiersman	376-5225	
	5751 East Mayflower		
	Court		
	Wasilla, AK 99654		
Regional	351 West Parks Hwy.	373-1062	matsurcd@mtaonlin
Development	#100, Wasilla, AK	373-1064 (fax)	<u>e.net</u>
	99654		
	TRANSPO		
	Accessibility	The George parks highway, Glenn highway,	
		and other local roads connect the city to	
		anchorage, the remain	
		Canada. The Alaska rai	
		on the Fairbanks to Seward route.	
	Airport Facilities	A city airport, with a paved 3,700' long by 75'	
		wide airstrip, provides scheduled commuter	
		and air taxi services. There are ten additional	
		private airstrips in the	3
	Airline Services		Bean Air. Scheduled
		commuter and air taxi services are available.	
		Float planes land at Wa	
		Lake and Lake Lucille. (, ,
		are operated out of An	S .
Airport, approximately 50 miles away.		ou miles away.	
3		None listed	
Vessel Support N		None listed	

	FACILITIES & UTILITIES	
Telephone	Matanuska Telephone Assoc. GCI, AT&T	CO

Wireless and	GCI, AT&T, Verizon	
Internet Service		
Provider		
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTBY; KTUU; KTVA; KYES	
Radio Stations	KMBQ-FM	
Cable Provider	Rogers Cable systems of Alaska	
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network, Mat-Su Legislative Information	
	Office	
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Assoc.	
Housing	Lake Lucille Inn; Mat-Su Resort; Alaska Kozey Cabins; Best View RV	
	Park; Green Ridge Camper Park; The Wind Break Hotel/Cafe; Agate	Inn;
	Alaskan View Motel; Shady Acres B&B Susitna Dog Tours & B&B Valley	
	Country Store & Motel	
Water & Sewage	The majority of homes use individual water wells and septic systems	S,
	although the City operates a piped water and sewer system. Water is	
	provided by a well at Spruce Avenue and two at Iditarod School, wit	h a
	2.3 million gallon storage capacity.	
Miscellaneous	,	
	students. The borough landfill is located in Palmer. Piped natural gas	
	is primarily used for home heating.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT (Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)		
Potential Command	Potential Command None listed	
Posts		
Potential Staging Areas	None listed	
Local Spill Response	https://dec.alaska.gov/spar/PPR/lra/Conex_Map.htm	
Equipment		

9770.3.54 - Whittier

9770.3.34 - WHILLIE	·		
	WHITTIER		
(Note: While Whittier is not included in the Cook Inlet Subarea but in the Prince William			
Sound Subar	Sound Subarea, the town is immediately adjacent to the subarea perimeter. Therefore,		
emergency serv	ices are listed here in the event of an incident occurring near this location.)		
Location and	Whittier is on the northeast shore of the Kenai Peninsula, at the head of		
Climate	Passage Canal. It is on the west side of Prince William Sound, 60 miles		
	southeast of Anchorage (Latitude 60.7744/Longitude -148.6883). Whittier		
	falls within the gulf coast maritime climate zone, characterized by a rainy		
	atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.		
History, Culture,	Passage Canal was once the quickest route from Prince William Sound to		
& Demographics	Cook Inlet. Chugach Indians would portage to Turnagain Arm in search of		
	fish. Nearby Whittier Glacier was named for the American poet John		
	Greenleaf Whittier, and was first published in 1915 by the U.S. Coast &		
	Geodetic Survey. A port and railroad terminus were constructed by the		
	U.S. Army for transport of fuel and other supplies into Alaska during		
	World War II. The railroad spur and two tunnels were completed in 1943,		
	and the Whittier Port became the entrance for troops and dependents of		

the Alaska Command. The huge buildings that dominate Whittier began construction in 1948. The 14-story Hodge Building (now Begich Towers) was built for Army bachelors guarters and family housing, with 198 apartments. The Buckner Building, completed in 1953, had 1,000 apartments and was once the largest building in Alaska. It was called the "city under one roof," with a hospital, bowling alley, theater, gym, swimming pool and shops for Army personnel. Whittier Manor was built in the early 1950s by private developers as rental units for civilian employees. The Port remained an active Army facility until 1960; at that time, the population was 1,200. Whittier Manor was converted to condominiums in 1964; Begich Towers now houses the majority of residents, as the Buckner Building is no longer occupied. The City was incorporated in 1969. Residents enjoy sport-fishing, commercial fishing and subsistence activities. The 2010 U.S. Census data showed 5.45% of the population are Alaska Native or part Native. The 2010 U.S. Census data also showed there were 280 total housing units, and 166 were vacant, of which 104 of these units are used only seasonally. The median household income was \$46,250, per capita income was \$31,624 and 13.96% of residents were living below the poverty level. The city, school, local services and summer tourism support Whittier. **Economy** Tours, charters and sport fishing in Prince William Sound attract seasonal visitors. Ten residents hold commercial fishing permits. A small portion of Whittier residents practice the subsistence lifestyle. Subsistence 253 (2015 DCCEC Commissioner Certified Population) Population **Borough** Unorganized Located In Incorporation 2nd Class City Type Native Entities Regional: Chugach Alaska Corporation Nonprofit: Chugachmiut

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police	City Police (472-2340)	
Fire	City Volunteer Fire Department (472-2340); City Fire Hall, City	
	Ambulance	
Medical	The City of Whittier Medical Clinic (472-2303) is a qualified Emergency	
	Care Center. Auxiliary health care provided by Whittier Volunteer	
	Ambulance Corps (Clinic 472-2303/472-2340).	
Harbormaster	472-2375; Alyeska/SERVS (472-2473)	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES					
ORGANIZATION	ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL				
Chugach Alaska	3800 Centerpoint	561-2668	www.chugach-		
Corporation	Drive, Ste, 700	562-5258 (fax)	ak.com		
	Anchorage, AK				
	99503				

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES				
ORGANIZATION	ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/E			
City of Whittier	P.O. Box 608	472-2327	www.whittieralaska.	
	Whittier, AK 99693	472-2404 (fax)	gov	
			info@whittieralaska.	
			gov	
Eastern Aleutian	3380 C Street, Suite	277-1440	www.eatribes.org	
Tribes, Incorporated	100	277-1446 (fax)	(Native Health Care	
	Anchorage, AK		Provider)	
	99503			
Greater Whittier	P.O. Box 607	278-2493	<u>www.whittieralaskac</u>	
Chamber of	Whittier, AK 99693	278-2491 (fax)	hamber.org	
Commerce				
Municipality of	6325 West 6th Ave.,	343-4311	<u>www.muni.org</u>	
Anchorage	Suite 250	343-4313 (fax)	(Landfill Operator)	
	Anchorage, AK			
	99501			
PWS Economic	2207 Spenard Road,	222-2440	www.pwsedd.org	
Development District	Suite 207	222-2411 (fax)		
	Anchorage, AK			
	99503			

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	Whittier is an ice-free port and is accessible by road, rail, ferry, boat and	
	aircraft. To enter Whittier by vehicle, you must pass through the state	
	maintained tunnel and pay a \$12.00 roundtrip toll to enter (1-877-611-	
	2586 / http://dot.alaska.gov/creg/whittiertunnel/schedule.shtml).	
	Whittier has a 1480' by 58' gravel airstrip that accommodates charter	
	aircraft and a city-owned seaplane dock available for passenger transfer.	
Airport Facilities	The State-owned 1,480-foot gravel airstrip accommodates charter	
	aircraft, and a City-owned seaplane dock is available for passenger	
	transfer.	
Airline Services	None listed	
Freight	None listed	
Vessel Support	None listed	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES			
Telephone	Local Service: Yukon Telephone (472-2300 / www.yukontel.com)		
	Long Distance: GCI (1-800-800-4800 / www.gci.com)	NS	
Wireless and	GCI (1-800-800-4800 / <u>www.gci.com</u>)	0.	
Internet		:AT	
TV Stations	None	Ĭ	
Radio Stations	KCHU-AM		
Cable Provider	Supervisions Cable TV	COMMUNICATIONS	
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network; Valdez Legislative Information	\mathcal{C}	
	Office		
Electricity	Provided by Chugach Electric Association		

Fuel	Gasoline, diesel, and propane.
Fuel Storage	Shoreside Petroleum Inc. (48,000 gals.); Department of Defense.
Housing	June's Whittier B&B Suites, Anchor INN; Sportsman's Inn; Tent/RV Park
Water & Sewage	Water is derived from wells and a reservoir. Water storage capacity is
	1.2 million gallons. The entire community is served by a piped water
	and sewer system, and over 95% of homes are fully plumbed. The
	older portions of the City sewer system need replacement.
Miscellaneous	Refuse is hauled out by a private contractor to Anchorage - the landfill
	has been closed. An oil and hazardous waste recycling center was
	completed in 1998.

	SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT			
(Contact local off	icials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)			
Potential Command	Begich Towers Cullum Room; City Library; Whittier Historical &			
Posts	Fine Arts Museum; Whittier Community School			
Potential Staging Areas	None identified			
Local Spill Response	ADEC spill response conex (see page B-72 for an inventory of spill			
Equipment	response assets).			
	SERVS 14 emergency response equipment conexes are located			
	behind Long Dock. Additional emergency response equipment is			
	located near the HarborMaster's office and the USCG maintains			
	equipment in the railroad yard. Shoreside Petroleum has their			
own cleanup equipment that they manage and maintain.				
Shoreside provides fuel for the City of Whittier, cruise ships, and				
	fishing vessels in the small boat harbor. The Harbormaster and the			
	Fishing Vessel Administrator are responsible for the deployment			
	of the SERVS equipment in a crisis. Currently both positions are			
	held by the same person.			

9770.3.55 - Willow

	WILLOW
Location and	Willow is located in the Mat-Su Borough, between mile 60 and 80.7 of
Climate	the George Parks Highway, north of Houston. Its western boundary is the
	Susitna River (Latitude 61.7381/Longitude -150.0441). Willow falls
	within the transitional climate zone, characterized by a semi-arid
	atmosphere, long, cold winters, and mild summers.
History, Culture,	Dena'ina Athabascan Indians have occupied this area historically, living in
& Demographics	semi-permanent villages. The permanent community got its start when
	gold was discovered on Willow Creek in 1897. Supplies and equipment
	were brought in by boat to Knik. From there, a 26-mile summer trail
	went northwest, up Cottonwood Creek, and across Bald Mountain to
	Willow Creek. The winter sled trail went north, crossing the present line
	of the Alaska Railroad at Houston, and up the west end of Bald Mountain
	for 30 miles. This trail, dubbed the "Double Ender Sled Trail," is still being
	used by skiers, hunters, backpackers and snowmobile enthusiasts. The
	sleds then followed a trail along Willow Creek in an easterly direction,
	now Hatcher Pass Road. The Talkeetna Trail also passed through Willow

	and was us	ed by dog teams and pack horses. Cabins to accommodate			
	freighters a	and mail carriers were located at Nancy Lake, Willow and other			
	points nort	h. This route was the forerunner of the Parks Highway.			
		During construction of the Alaska Railroad, surveyors, construction			
		nesteaders and other settlers came to Willow. A Railroad			
	station hou	use was constructed in 1920. During World War II, a radar			
		ation and airfield were built. The Trail's End Lodge, built in			
		equently became a post office in 1948. By 1954, Willow Creek			
		's largest gold mining district, with a total production			
		ng 18 million dollars. Land disposals, homestead subdivisions,			
		etion of the George Parks Highway in 1972 fueled growth in			
		n 1976, Alaskans selected Willow for their new State capital			
	site. However, funding to enable the capital move was defeated in the				
	November 1982 election.				
Economy	Many Willo	ow residents are self-employed in a variety of businesses,			
	including lodging, guiding and charter services, and retail stores. There				
	are two saw mills and one prefabricated wood-building manufacturer.				
	Some resid	Some residents are employed in Palmer, Wasilla, or Anchorage. In 2009,			
	19 residents held commercial fishing permits. Capitol Speedway attracts				
	stockcar racing enthusiasts from the entire state.				
Population	2,000 (2015 Department of Labor Estimate)				
Borough Located	Matanuska-Susitna Borough				
In					
Incorporation	Unincorporated				
Туре					
Native Entities	Regional:				
	Profit:	Montana Creek Native Assoc., HC 89, Box 520, Willow, AK			
		99688; 733-			

EMERGENCY SERVICES		
Police	City Police Dept. (911/352-5401)	
AKST	Anchorage Post: 248-1410	
Fire	City Volunteer Fire Dept (373-8831); Trunk Road Fire Dept (745-2494);	
	Borough Ambulance Lakes-Bogard Road Fire Dept (745-2228); Meadow	
	Lakes Fire Dept (376-9790)	
Medical	Local hospitals or health clinics include Matanuska Health Care and	
	private medical practices. Auxiliary health care is provided by Glacier	
	View First Responders (373-8800/745-4811); Valley Hospital (746-8600),	
	located 10 miles away in Palmer; Mat-Su Borough Dive Rescue Team	
	(373-8800); Valley Transport Service (373-8800); and Wasilla Ambulance	
	Service (373-8800/745-4811).	

LOCAL CONTACTS & REGIONAL/STATE ORGANIZATIONS WITH LOCAL OFFICES					
ORGANIZATION ADDRESS PHONE WEBSITE/EMAIL					
Chamber of	P.O. Box 0183,	495-6800	mail@willowchambe		
Commerce	Willow, AK 99688	495-5858 (fax)	<u>r.org</u>		

			http://www.willowch amber.org
Community Non-	Willow Area	495-6633	chair@waco-ak.org
Profit	Community		http://www.waco-
	Organization, P.O.		ak.org/
	Box 1027, Willow, AK		
	99688		

TRANSPORTATION		
Accessibility	From the George parks highway, the area has access to the statewide	
	highway system and the transportation facilities of Wasilla, palmer and	
	anchorage.	
Airport Facilities	There are two public airstrips: one is a state-owned 4,400' long by 75'	
	wide gravel airstrip at mile 69.7 Parks Highway and the other is at	
	Deshka Landing and owned by the Alaska Department of Natural	
	Resources. There are five additional private strips and a seaplane base	
	at Kashwitna Lake.	
Airline Services	Willow Air Service; Sustina Air Service	
Freight	None listed	
Vessel Support:	None listed	

FACILITIES & UTILITIES		
Telephone	Matanuska Telephone	
Wireless and	GCI, AT&T, Verizon	S
Internet Service		6
Provider		ATI
TV Stations	KAKM; KIMO; KTUU; KYES	2
Radio Stations	KTNA-FM; KNBZ-FM	
Cable Provider		COMMUNICATIONS
Teleconferencing	Alaska Teleconferencing Network	00
Electricity	Matanuska Electric Assoc.	
Housing	Willow Trading Post Lodge; Ruth Lake Lodge; Pioneer Lodge/RV Campground; Willow Island Resort/RV Park; Sheep Creek Lodge; Chandalar RV Park; Cline's Caswell Lake B&B Camp Caswell RV Park Susitna Landing & Campground; Alaskan Host B&B Gigglewood Lakeside Inn; Nancy Lake B&B Willow Winter Park B&B	
Water & Sewage	Nearly all of the occupied homes in Willow use individual water wells and septic tanks, and are fully plumbed. Approximately 60% of the homes in this area are used only seasonally. The school operates its own water system.	
Miscellaneous	There are 2 schools located in the community, attended by 150 students. A borough refuse transfer site is available on Willow-Fishhook Road, about 2 miles off the Parks Highway.	

SPILL RESPONSE SUPPORT

(Contact local officials to determine possibility of using community facilities.)

Potential Command	None listed
Posts	
Potential Staging Areas	None listed
Local Spill Response	None listed
Equipment	